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July 3, 2020

National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited

Exchange Plaza, Corporate Relations Department
Plot no. C/1, G Block, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street

Bandra - Kurla Complex Mumbeai - 400 001

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051 BSE Scrip Code: 532648

NSE Symbol: YESBANK

Dear Sirs/ Madam

Sub.: Outcome of Board Meeting

This is with reference to our letters dated January 10, 2020 and March 26, 2020 with respect to the
meetings of the Board of Directors of the Bank and our letters dated February 7, 2020 and May
22, 2020 with respect to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Bank, approving
the raising of funds, in one or more tranches, on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit, by
way of issuance of securities including but not limited to through qualified institutions
placement/ further public issue / rights issue / global depository receipts / American depository
receipts / foreign currency convertible bonds or any other permissible mode (“Fund Raise”).

We wish to inform you that the Board of Directors has approved the Restated Consolidated and
Standalone Financial Statements of the Bank as at, and for the financial years ended March 31,
2018, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020, along with the notes and schedules and the
examination reports thereto (“Restated Financial Statements”). These Restated Financial
Statements are submitted herewith, and have been prepared and adopted solely for the limited
purpose of disclosure in any draft / final offer document that may be filed in relation to the
Fund Raise.

The meeting of the Board of Directors commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.45 pm.
We request you to kindly take this on record and consider the above in accordance with

Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
For YES BANK LIMITED

Shivanand R. Shettigar
Group Company Secretary

Encl.: As above

Tel. : +91 (22) (3366 9000) Fax: +91 (22) (2421 4500)

Regd. & Corporate Office: YES Bank Limited, YES Bank Tower, IFC 2, 15t Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone (W), Mumbai 400 013, India.
Website : www.yesbank.in  Email: communications@yesbank.in CIN — L65190MH2003PLC 143249
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Independent Auditor’s Examination Report on Restated Consolidated Financial Information in
connection with proposed further public offering of equity shares (the “Equity Shares”) by YES
Bank Limited (the “Bank”) (the "lIssue'™)

The Board of Directors

YES Bank Limited

YES BANK Tower; IFC 2, 15" Floor
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone (W)
Mumbai 400 013

3 July 2020

Dear Sirs

1. . We have examined the attached Restated Consolidated Financial Information of YES Bank
Limited (the “Bank” or the “Issuer’™) and its subsidiaries (the Bank and its subsidiaries together
referred to as the “Group”), comprising the Consolidated Restated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Restated Consolidated Restated Profit and Loss
Account and the Consolidated Restated Cash Flow Statement for the years ended 31 March 2020,
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Summary Statement of Significant Accounting Policies,
and other explanatory information (collectively the “Restated Consolidated Financial
Information™), as approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3 July 2020 for the
purpose of inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus (the “RHP”) / the Prospectus prepared by the
Bank in connection with its proposed Further Public Offering of equity shares (the “FPO”)
prepared in terms of the requirements of:

a. section 26 of Part I of Chapter 11 of the Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”);

b.  the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

C. The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to time (the
“Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility

2. The preparation of Restated Consolidated Financial Information is the responsibility of the Board
of Directors of the Bank for the purpose of inclusion in the RHP / Prospectus to be filed with
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), relevant stock exchanges and Registrar of
Companies, Maharashtra in connection with the proposed FPO. The Restated Consolidated
Financial Information have been prepared by the management of the Bank on the basis of
preparation stated in note 18.2 to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information. The respective
company’s management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the
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Management’s Responsibility (Continued)

preparation and presentation of Restated Consolidated Financial Information. The respective
Board of Directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Group complies
with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

We have examined such Restated Consolidated Financial Information taking into
consideration:

a.  the terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in
accordance with our engagement letter dated 11 June 2020 in connection with the
Issue;

b.  the Guidance Note. The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICALI,

c. concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on
verification of evidence supporting the Restated Consolidated Financial Information;
and

d.  the requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR regulations.

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to
your compliance with the Act, the ICDR regulations and the Guidance Note in connection
with the FPO.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC 1), Quality Control of Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Service Engagements.

These Restated Consolidated Financial Information have compiled by management from the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the years ended
31 March 2020, 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018, prepared in accordance with the Third
Schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, which have been
approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 6 May 2020, 26 April 2018 and
26 April 2018 respectively. The accounting and reporting policies of The Group used in the
preparation of these financial statements conform to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
from time to time, the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the extent applicable and
practices generally prevalent in the banking industry in India.

The audit report on the consolidated financial statements issued by us was modified and
included the following matters giving rise to modifications to the auditor’s report on the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020:
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

a.

that during the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank has breached the regulatory
requirements of RBI regarding maintaining the minimum CET1 and Tier 1 capital ratios
which indicates the position of capital adequacy of a bank. The breach is primarily on
account of the increase in the provision for advances during the year ended 31 March
7020as the Bank has decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage
Ratio on its non-performing asset (NPA) loans over and above minimum RBI loan level
provisioning. Inspite of the write back of the AT1 bonds on 14 March 2020 there is a
breach of Tier 1 capital ratio as at 31 March 2020. The CET1 ratio and the Tier 1 capital
ratio for the Bank as at 31 March 2020 stood at 6.3%.and 6.5 % as compared to the
minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This implies that the Bank
will have to take effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. Further,
in view of the RBI norms relating to the breach of the aforesaid ratio, there is uncertainty
around RBI's potential action for such a breach. We are unable to comment on the
consequential impact of the above regulatory breach on these consolidated financial
statements.

that the Bank became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock
exchanges of an anonymous whistle-blower complaint alleging irregularities in the
Bank's operations, potential conflicts of interests in relation to the former MD and CEO
and allegations of incorrect NPA classification. The Bank conducted an internal enquiry
of these allegations, which resulted in a report that was reviewed by the Board of
Directors in November 2018. Based on further inputs and deliberations in December
2018, the Audit Committee of the Bank engaged an external firm to independently
examine the matter. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank identified certain
further matters which arose from other independent investigations initiated by the lead
banker of a consortium on the companies allegedly favoured by the former MD and
CEO. In March 2020, the Enforcement Directorate has launched an investigation into
some aspects of dealings and transactions by the former MD and CEO basis draft
forensic reports from external agencics which further pointed out to conflict of interest
between the former MD and CEO and certain companies and arrested him. In view of the
fact that these enquiries and investigations are still ongoing, we are unable to comment
on the consequential impact of the above matter on these consolidated financial
statements.

6.  The audit report on the consolidated financial statements issued by us also included a
material uncertainty related to going concern as at 31 March 2020 as follows:

We draw attention to Note 18.2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
indicates that the Bank has incurred a loss of Rs 16,418 crores for the year ended 31
March 2020. Particularly during the last six months, there has also been a significant
decline in the Bank's deposit base, an increase in their NPA ratios resulting in breach of
loan covenants on its foreign currency debt and credit rating downgrades resulting in
partial prepayment of foreign currency debt linked to external credit rating. The Bank
has also breached minimum Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Liquidity Coverage
Ratio requirements of RBI during the year and has provided an amount of Rs.334 crores
for the expected penalty on the SLR breach. The Bank has also breached the RBI
mandated CET1 ratio and Tier 1 capital ratio which stood at 6.3%.and 6.5% as compared
to the minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This requires the
Bank to take effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. The breach
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

of the CET1 and Tier 1 requirements was also impacted by the decision of the Bank to
enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio, on a prudent basis, on its NPA loans over and
above RBI's minimum loan provisioning norms. Further, on 5 March 2020, the Central
Government, based on the RBI's application imposed a moratorium under section 45 of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective 5 March 2020. The
RBJ, in consultation with the Central Government and in exercise of the powers under
section 36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, superseded the Board of Directors
of the Bank on 5 March 2020. The above indicators of financial stress and actions taken
by the RBI resulted in a significant withdrawal of deposits.

On 13 March 2020, the Government of India notified the Yes Bank Limited
Reconstruction Scheme 2020 (the Scheme") [notified by the Central Government, in
exercise of the powers conferred by sub section (4) and subsection 7 of section 45 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949]. Under this Scheme the authorized share capital of the
Bank was increased to Rs.6,200 crores. The Bank has received capital from investors
amounting to Rs. 10,000 crores on 14 March 2020. The State Bank of India SBI) and
other banks and financial institutions invested in the Bank at a price of Rs. 10 per equity
share of the Bank (Rs.2 face value with a Rs.8 premium). SBI is required to hold upto
49% with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year
lock in). Other investors are subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they
make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing investors (other than investors holding
less than 100 shares) in the Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75% of their holding as
per this Scheme. A new Board of Directors, CEO and MD and Non Executive Chairman
have also been appointed pursuant to the Scheme. In addition, the moratorium imposed
on the Bank on 5 March 2020 was vacated on 18 March 2020 as per the Scheme. RBI
has also granted short-term funding to the Bank for the period of 90 days. The Bank has
submitted a proposal seeking extension for a period of one year. The draft reconstruction
scheme proposed on 6 March 2020 had also envisaged that the Bank would be able to
write back Additional Tier 1 (AT1) securities amounting to Rs.8,695 crores to equity.
However, the final Scheme issued by the Government of India on 13 March 2020 does
not contain any reference to the write back of the AT1 securities. Based on the legal
advice on the contractual terms of the AT1 bonds, the Bank has fully written back AT1
bonds aggregating to Rs 8,415 crores on 14 March 2020. This action by the Bank has
been legally challenged through a writ petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High court. In
line with the RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April
2020, the Bank has granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all
instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between I March 2020 and 31 May
2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on 29 February
2020,

In the opinion of the Bank, based on the financial projections prepared by the Bank and
approved by the Board for the next 3 years, the capital infusion, lines of liquidity
provided by RBI and the reconstruction Scheme, the Bank will be able to realize its
assets (including its deferred tax asset) and discharge its liabilities in its normal course of
business and hence the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The said assumption of going concern is inter-alia dependent on the Bank's ability to
achieve improvements in liquidity, asset quality and solvency ratios and mitigate the
impact of Covid-19 and thus a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant
doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. However, as stated above, as
per management and the Board there are mitigating factors to such uncertainties
including the amount of capital funds that have been raised in March 2020, the nature
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and financial resources of new investors who have infused funds in the Bank, the new
Board of Directors, CEO and MD and part time Chairman appointed as per the Scheme
and the extent of regulatory support provided to the Bank by the RBI.

Our conclusion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of
this matter.

7. The audit report on the consolidated financial statements issued by us also included emphasis
of matter paragraph as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

a) that the Bank has a total deferred tax asset of Rs. 8,281 crores as at 3 I March 2020.
As per the requirements of AS 22 - Income Taxes, based on the financial projections
prepared by the Bank and approved by the Board of directors, the Bank has assessed
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The Bank expects to
have a taxable profit for the future years. Our conclusion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

b) the Bank had made an additional provision of Rs. 15,422 crores for the period ended
31 December 2019 on a prudent evaluation of the status of NP As based on
discussion with regulator over and above the RBI norms relating to the minimum
provision to be made by banks on their loans and advances. The additional provision
is judgmental based on the quality and status of specific loans identified by the Bank
as at 31 March 2020. We believe that this judgment exercised by the Bank is
appropriate. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For the year ended 31 March 2019

a) the consolidated financial statements which describes the ongoing enquiry by the
Holding Company into certain anonymous whistle blower allegations. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter ‘

8.  As indicated in our audit reports referred above, we did not audit the financial statements of
one subsidiary whose share of total assets, total revenues and net cash flows included in the
consolidated financial statements, for the relevant years is tabulated below, which have been
audited by other auditor and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Bank’s
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these components, is based solely on
the reports of the other auditor:

Particulars ‘ . i - As at and for the year ended

(Amounts Rs in crore) 31 March2020 31 March2019 31 March 2018
Total assets | | 537 57.0 50.8
Total revenues 1.9 3.9 0.8
Net cash inflows / (outflows) (19.1) (26.6) 47.7
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Opinion

9. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
we report that the Restated Consolidated Financial Information:

a) have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting
policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the financial
years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 to reflect the same accounting treatment
as per the accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2020; ’

b) do not require any adjustments for the matter(s) giving rise to modifications mentioned
in paragraph [5] above

¢) have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note

10. The Restated Consolidated Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that
occurred subsequent to the respective dates of the reports on the audited consolidated
financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above.

11.  This report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the
previous audit reports issued by us nor should this be construed as a new opinion on any of
the financial statements referred to herein.

12. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of the report.

Restrictions of use

13. This report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the RHP / the
Prospectus to be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of India, stock exchanges where
the equity shares are listed and Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra (RoC), as applicable, in
connection with the proposed FPO. Our report should not be used, referred to or distributed
for any other purpose without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

ke

Venkataramanan Vishwanath

Partner

Date: 3 July 2020 Membership No. 113156
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 20113156AAAADY4149



YES Bank Limited - Restated Financials
Restated Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

( & in thousands)

AS AT AS AT AS AT
Schedule Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital 1 25,100,944 4,630,066 4,605,934
Reserves and surplus 2 191,848,655 264,244,035 252,919,138
Deposits 3 1,053,111,680 2,275,579,027 2,006,886,036
Borrowings 4 1,137,905,026 1,084,241,089 748,935,808
Other liabilities and provisions 5 170,355,332 179,901,880 111,149,620
TOTAL 2,578,321,637 3,808,596,097 3,124,496,536
ASSETS

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 24,867,028 161,871,938 133,280,682
Investments 8 437,478,034 893,285,327 682,934,387
Advances 9 1,714,330,897 2,413,971,851 2,035,188,250
Fixed assets 10 10,233,842 8,298,874 8,372,959
Other assets 11 331,975,286 223,190,738 150,462,769
TOTAL 2,578,321,637 3,808,596,097 3,124,496,536
Contingent liabilities 12 4,585,275,340 6,541,617,385 5,818,302,701
Bills for collection 51,201,926 50,592,373 19,355,641

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 18

forming part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants YES BANK Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

VW«ﬂmw Prartaut

Venkataramanan Vishwanath Prashant Kumar

Partner j Managing Director & CEO
Membership No: 113156 .o (DIN: 07562475) -
Mumbai

July 3, 2020

(/kﬁw
\J

e

Anurag Adlakha
Group Chief Financial Officer




YES Bank Limited

Restated Consolidated Profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2020

( ¥ in thousamds)

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

Schedule Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
L INCOME
Interest earned 13 260,520,173 296,237,987 202,685,947
Other income 14 119,560,986 46,754,814 52,931,509
TOTAL 380,081,159 342,992,801 255,617,456
IL EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 192,580,598 198,112,872 125,294,301
Operating expenses 16 68,701,459 63,614,279 52,735,403
Provisions and contingencies 17 283,124,906 64,172,992 35,255,352
TOTAL 544,406,963 325,900,143 213,285,256
I PROFIT
Net profit for the year (164,325,804) 17,092,658 42,332,200
Profit brought forward 107,427,743 103,695,292 79,189,628
TOTAL (56,898,061) 120,787,950 121,521,828
Iv. APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 4,300,697 10,561,409
Transfer to Capital Reserve 6,655,507 1,010,096 659,648
Transfer to Investment Reserve 147,226 6,707 -
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve - 339,066
Dividend paid for previous year 4,633,917 6,223,989 5,488,101
Tax on Dividend paid for previous year 952,516 1,279,652 1,117,377
Balance carried over to balance sheet (69,287,227) 107,427,743 103,695,292
TOTAL (56,898,061) 120,787,950 121,521,828
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
forming part of financial statements 18
Earning per share
Basic (%) (56.11) 7.40 18.46
Diluted (%) (56.11) 7.33 18.09

(Face Value of Equity Share is T2/-)

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
- Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

117 W —
Venkataramanan Vishwanath

Partner
Membership No: 113156

Mumbai
July 3, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
YES BANK Limited

P 2asbiond

Prashant Kumar
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 07562475)

Y be

Anurag Adlakha
Group Chief Financial Officer

. Shettigar
Group Company,gecretary




YES BANK Limited
Restated Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2020
( & in thousands)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before taxes ' (208,381,933) 23,490,051 62,045,363
Adjustment for
Depreciation for the year 3,419,327 3,054,514 2,323,569
Amortization of premium on investments 2,459,276 2,102,585 . 1,673,308
Provision for investments 64,415,773 6,824,889 2,599,443
Provision for standard advances (19,410,781) 22,514,059 1,687,427
Provision/ write off of non performing advances 278,060,357 25,669,535 10,792,641
Other provisions 4,115,686 2,767,116 397,075
AT1 Write-down (84,150,000) -
(Profit)/Loss on sale of land, building and other assets (3,282) (3,947) 12,891
(i) 40,524,423 86,418,802 81,531,717
Adjustments for :
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits (1,222,467,347) 268,692,991 578,311,598
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 54,388,418 38,421,426 (1,058,963)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investments 241,661,936 (159,318,010) (103,781,671)
(Increase)/Decrease in Advances 421,580,597 (404,453,136) (725,041,549)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other assets : (107,244,746) (49,363,644) (25,122,220)
(ii) R (6124081,142) (306,020,373) (276,692,805)
Payment of direct taxes, (iii) (5,655,486) (26,131,440) (22,943,356)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) (i+ii+iii) ) (577,212,205) (245,733,011) (218,104,444)
Cash flow from investing activities )
Purchase of fixed assets (5,416,951) (3,031,859) (3,932,525)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 63,960 335,375 91,050
(Increase) / Decrease in Held To Maturity (HTM) securities 147,270,308 (59,960,403) (83,607,484)
Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities (B) 141,919,317 (62,936,887) (87,448,959)
Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in Borrowings 141,354,848 313,708,194 241,003,505
Tier II Debt raised - 30,420,000 70,000,000
Innovative Perpetual Debt raised - (1,754,400) 54,150,000
Tier II Debt repaid during the year (4,024,500) (5,430,400) (2,489,000)
Proceeds from issuance of Equity Shares (net of share issue expense) 118,639,176 953,472 1,420,167
Dividend paid during the year (4,633,917) (6,223,989) (5,488,101)
Tax on dividend paid (952,516) (1,279,652) (1,117,377)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) 250,383,091 330,393,225 357,479,194
Effect of exchange fluctuation on translation reserve (D) (635,925) 587,809 65,803
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) (185,545,721) 22,311,137 51,991,595
Contd...
Contd. ..

b Cumpound,
pshi Marg,



Restated Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

YES BANK Limited

( T in thousands)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1% 269,849,307 247,538,171 195,546,577
Cash and cash equivalents as at Mar 31° 84,303,578 269,849,307 247,538,171
Notes to the Cash flow statement:
Cash and cash equivalents includes the following
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 24,867,028 161,871,938 133,280,682
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31" 84,303,578 269,849,307 247,538,171

As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants YES BANK Limited

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Vel b

Venkataramanan Vishwanath Prashant Kumar

TRV s

Anurag Adlakha

Partner Managing Director & CEO  Group Chief Financial Officer

Membership No: 113156

(DIN: 07562475)

Mumbai
July 3, 2020

Shivanand'i{.

ettigar

Group Company Secretary



YES BANK Limited

Sehedules forming part of Restated Consolidated Balance Sheel

( & in thousands)

AS AT AS AT ASAT
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULLE Y - CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
30,000,000,000 equily shates of T2/- cach . 60,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
20,000,000 preference shares of T 10/ - cach 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
fssucd, subscribed and paid-up capital (Refer Sch18.7.1)
12,5530,472,251  equily shares of ¥ 2/ cach : 25,100,914 4,630,066 4,605,934
(March 31, 2019 1 2,315,033,039 equily shares of ¥ 2/- cach)
(March 31, 2018 1 2,302,967,243 cquity shares of * 2/~ cach)
TOTAL 25,100,943 4,630,066 4,605,934
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
1 Statutory Reserves
Qpening balance 48,934,100 44,633,403 34,073,994
Additions during the year - 4,300,697 10,561,409
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing, balance 48,934,100 48,934,100 44,633,403
1t Share Preminm .
Opening balance 100,987,679 100,038,339 98,679,248
Addilions during the year (Refer Sch 18.7.1) 99,118,298 929,340 1,379,091
Deductions during the year 950,000 - -
Closing balance 199,155,977 100,987,679 100,058,339
111 Capital Reserve
Opening balance 5,534,577 4,524,481 3,864,833
Addilions during the year 6,655,507 1,010,096 639,648
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 12,190,084 5,534,577 4,524,481
v Investment Resexve
Opening balance 232,904 226,197 226,197
Additions during the year 147,226 6,707 -
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 380,130 232,904 226,197
v Toreign Currency Transalation Reserve
Opening balance 613,295 25,486 (40,317
Additions during the year {635,925) 587,809 63,803
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance (22,630} 613,295 25,486
VI Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Opening balance (25,323) (244,057) {160,135}
Additions during the year (15,533) 218,734 (83,922)
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance (40,856) (25,323) (244,057)
VIL Tnvestment Fluctuation Reserve
Opening batance 539,066 - -
Addilions during the year - 539,066 -
Deduclions during the year - - -
Closing balance . 539,066 539,066 -
VIIIL Balance in Profit and Loss Account (69,287,215) 107,427,739 103,693,291
TOTAL 191,848,655 264,244,037 252,919,138
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YES BANK Limited

Schedules forming pant of Restated Consolidaled Batance Shoot
( T in thousands)

ASAT AS AT AS AT
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPQSITS
AL Demand Deposits
i) From Banks 7,932,044 17,201,403 14,602,217
i) From Others 86,893,712 268,020,176 273,033,590
11 Savings Bank Deposit 185,635,246 67,112,348 504,509
1. Term Deposits
i} From banks 86,786,217 184,849,900 TE2071, 2410
i) From others (incl. CD's issued) 685,864,461 1,338,293,194 L162,174,479
TOTAL 1,053,111,680 2,275,579,027 2,006,886,036
B. 1. Deposits of branches in India 1,052,773,191 2,274,432,000 2,003,95.4,161
11 Deposits of branches outside India 338,489 1,147,027 Y3875
: TOTAL 1,053,111,680 2,275,579,027 2,006,886,036
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
L. Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) and Tier II Debt
A.  Borrowing in India
i) IPDI 5,870,000 90,020,000 91,560,000
i) Tier Il Borrowings 177,759,000 180,759,000 132,339,000
183,622,060 270,779,000 243,899,000
B. Borrowings outside Indja
i} IPDI - - 323,875
i) Tier Il Borrowings 5,674,875 6,213,786 11,172,824
TOTAL (B) 5,674,875 6,215,786 11,498,699
TOTAL (A+B) 189,303,875 276,994,786 255,397,699
. Other Borrowings
A.  Borrowings in India
i) Reserve Bank of India 520’,380'000 - 13,000,000
it) Other banks . 18,350,000 57,147,925 15,811,399
iii) Other institutions and agencies 278,921,592 343,669,057 187,167,910
TOTAL {A) 817,651,592 402,816,982 217,979,309
B. Borrowings ontside India TOTAL (B) 130,949,559 404,429,321 275,558,800
TOTAL (A+B) 948,601,151 807,246,303 493,538,109
TOTAL (I+11) 1,137,905,026 1,084,241,089 748,935,808

(1) Secured borrowings are ¥ 521,379,868 thousands (March 31, 2019 : % 4,996,813 thousands) (March 31, 2018 : % 46,163,308 thowsands)

(2) Including % 237,121,724 thousands of refinance borrowing (March 31, 2019: ¥ 302,872,241 thousands) (March 31, 2018: % 123,216,106 thousands) ¥ 16,450,000 thousands
(March 31 2019: 3 16,450,000 thousnads) (March 31 2018: 3 16,450,000 thousnads) of Green Infrastructure Bonds raiscd fo fand ‘Green Projects’ and ¥ 21,330,000 thousands
(March 31, 2019: 21,350,000 thousands) (March 31, 2018: 21,350,000 thousands) of Long Term Infrastructure Bonds raiscd to finance alfordable housing and infrastructure
projects.

(3) Includes bonds of T 36,032,742 thousands (March 31, 2019: €32,909,863 thousands) (March 31, 2018: 238,974,842 thousands)of Medium Term Notes issued from
International Business Unit (IBU) in GIFT cily Gujaral to fund its growth,
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YES BANK Limited

Schedules forming parl of Restated Consolidated  Balance Sheet
( ¥ fu Housairds)

AS AT AS AT ASAT
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
|3 Bills payable 2,867,243 ERIR NG 9,151,490
i nter-office adjustments (het) - - -
118 ilerest acerued 22,632,492 370,048 21,932,630
v, Others (including provisions) -
- Provision for standard advances 12,597,187 22,007,968 9,493,909
- Country risk exposures 69,000 302,784 -
- Olhers 129,355,765 166,001,275 70,571,571
- Income Tax Provision 2,833,648 - -
TOTAL 170,355,332 179,901,880 111,149,620
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
1 Cash in hand 16,307,411 6,333,912 6,226,739
1. Batances with Reserve Bank of India
- In current account 43,129,139 101,643,437 108,030,750
- In other account - - -
TOTAL 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS, MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
i InIndia
Balances with banks-
i) n current accounts 6,143,114 2,157,843 787,042
ity in other deposit accounts 677,270 790,390 189,134
Money at call and short notice
i) wilh Banks - - -
ii) with olher instilutions - - -
iii) lending under reverse repo (RB1 & Banks) 13,200,000 88,310,161 112,009,634
TOTAL (1) 20,020,384 91,258,393 112,985,830
1. Quiside India
i) in current account 4,532,635 39,148,020 14,494,277
if} in other deposit account - - -
1ii) money at call and short notice 314,010 31,463,525 3,800,575
TOTAL (iI) 4,846,644 70,613,545 20,294,852

TOTAL (I+1I) 24,867,028 161,871,938 133,280,682




YUS BANK Limited

Schedules forming part of Restated Consotidated Balance Sheet

( ¥ in thousinds)

AS AT
Mar 31, 2020

AS AT
Mar 31, 2019

AS AT
Mar 31, 2018

SCIHEDULES - INVESTMENTS (Nel of provisions)

Ao Investments in ndia

1) Government Securities 329,069,163 333,411,120 88,860,831
i) Other approved securitivs - - -
i) Shares 243,865 429,168 643,782
v} Debenlures and bonds 74,399,345 134,985,-14 145,045,609
V) Subsidiaries and/or juinl ventures - -
Vi
k Others (CPs, CDs, Sevurity Receipls, Pass through certificates ete) 32,254,100 61,130,681 38,030,003
TOTAL (1) 435,966,473 770,156,410 672,580,225
B, Iavestments outside India
] Governmenl Securilies - 120,595,843 3,445,612
i) Shares - 9421 6,908,350
i) Debentures and bonds - 2,523,653 10,334,162
Others {(CPs, CDs, Security Receipts, Pass Ihrough cerlificates
iv) el) 1,511,561 - -
TOTAL (11) 1,511,561 123,128,917 10,354,162
TOTAL (I+11) 437,478,034 893,285,327 682,934,387
SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES
Al i) Bills purchased and discounted 22,086,320 42,078,951 29,54
i) Cash credit, overdrafts and loans pavable on demand 342,839,985 411,627,297 349,346,228
iii) Term loans* 1,349,404,592 1,960,265,603 1,646,298,730
TOTAL 1,714,330,897 2,413,971,851 2,035,188,250
* Provision on Non Performing Advances (NPAs) has been netted off from Termt Loans
B. 7 Secured by tangible assets (includes advances secured by fixed deposits and book
debt) 1,300,993,862 1,960,480,829 1,477,523,720
ii) Covered by Bank/Goverament guarantees 2,720,758 10,366,160 3,996,099
iii} Unsecured ! 410,616,277 443,124,862 551,666,431
TOTAL 1,714,330,897 2,413,971,851 2,035,188,250
T Inchides advances of ¥37,671,709.07 thousands (March 31, 2019: ¥ 128 510,880 Hiousands) (March 31, 2018: ¥ 337,552,952 thousands) for
which security docuntentation is either being obtuined or being registered. As al March 31, 2020 advances amounting to ¥ 12,738,207.03 thousand
(March 31, 2019 : ¢ 2,403,000 thousands) (March 31, 2018 : Nil) has beew secired by intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses,
anthority, etc.
C L Advances in India
i) Priority sectors 470,973,962 539,338,030 46,472,144
ii) Public sector 488,829 56,671 1,524,237
iii} Banks 1,119,061 674,817 1,214,227
iv) Others 1,100,867,916 1,685,204,048 1,441,912,028
TOTAL (1) 1,573,449,767 2,225,273,585 1,891,122,636
IL Advances outside India
i) Due from Banks 5,853 431,707 1,716,986
ii) (@) Bills purchased and discounted - -
(b) Syndicated loans 35,862,373 20,796,065 142,348,628
{ <) others 105,012,904 157 470,494 -
TOTAL (11) 140,681,130 188,698,266 144,065,614
TOTAL (1+11) 1,714,330,897 2,413,971,851 2,035,188,250
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YES BANK Limited

Schedules forming part of Restated Consolidated Balanee Sheet

¢ ¢ i thonsads)

As at As at As
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS
1. Premises
Atvost as on March 3 st ol preceding year 378,031 378,031 378,031
Additions during the year - -
Deductions during, the veay - - -
Avcumufated depreciation to date (21,006) {14,704) {8,402)
TOTAL {1) 357,025 363,327 369,629
1. Other Fixed Assels {including furniture and fixtures and software)
Alcost as on March AsLof preceding year 18,305,440 15,319,476 11,802,938
Additions during the year 2,992,739 3,245,135 3,963,415
Deductions during the year (310,977) {239,173) (446,876)
Accumulated depreciation to date (14,049,021) (10,884,314 (8,037,673)
TOTAL (1) 6,938,181 7,421,123 7,281,804
TOTAL {+1) 7,295,206 7,783,450 7,651,433
Capilal work-in-progress 2,938,634 514,423 721,526
TOTAL 10,233,842 8,298,874 8,372,959
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS
L Interest Acerued 22,516,878 39,050,909 25,169,413
1. Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision) - 4,894,170 1,721,287
1. Deferred Lax asset (Refer Sch 18.15) 82,809,960 25,374,714 8,762,413
v Non-Banking assets aquired in satisfaction of claims 353,000 353,000 364,790
v Others 226,295,448 153,517,945 114,444,866
TOTAL 331,975,286 223,190,738 150,462,769
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
L Claims agiainsl the bank not acknowledged as debts 612,500 549,157 116,436
1L Liabilily for parlly paid invesimenls - - -
1. Liability on account of outstanding, forward exchange contracts 8 _
1,519,467,414 2,834,098,764 3,000,4-48,825
V. Liability on account of outstanding derivative contracts -
- Single currency Interest Rale Swap 1,866,270,431 1,702,671,190 1,141,H0,348
- Others 548,274,930 868,291,165 783,747,908
V. Guarantees given on behalf on constituents -
- in India 420,131,381 437,248,909 314,307,933
- Outside India - - -
VL Acceptances, endorsement and other obligations 198,799,106 390,140,737 411,689,385
Vil Other items for which the bank is contingently liable -
- Purchase of securities pending settlement 836,632 3,622,750 9,068,982
- Capital conumitment 3,213,827 2,984,859 2,942,928
-Amount deposited with RBl under Depositor Education and Awareness Fund 53,681 32,834 13,533
(DEAF)
- Foreigh exchange contracts (Tom & Spot} 25,887,555 300,477,020 154,526,423
-Cuslody 1,727,883 - -
- Bills Rediscounting, - 1,500,000 -
TOTAL 4,585,275,340 6,541,617,385 5,818,302,701

1,

FO0 Mg 29.10% (Mar 31, 2019:
AN

Conlingent Liabnlily on account of outstanding forward exchange contracs and stngle currency intossl rale swap as on Macch 31, 2020 inclades notional amount of T1,067,721,532 thowsands and

7 thousands and 3407, sands) (Mar 31, 2018: ¥2,313,099,034 thousands and 318,672,816 thousands) guaranleed by CCIE
84% and 23.92%) (Mar 31, 2018: 77.16% o
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YES BANK Limited

Schedules forming part of Restated Consolidated Profil and Loss Account

{ ¥ in thousands)

For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020

Torthe year ended
Nar 31, 2019

For the year ended
Mar 31, 2018

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED

N
.

Inlerest/ discount on advances/ bilts

Income on investments

Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-
bank funds

Others
TOTAL

SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME

I
1.

Il
V.

V.

VL

VIl

Commission, exchange and brokerage
Profit on the sale of investments (net)
Profil/ (Loss) on the revatualion of investments (nel)
Profit/{Loss) on sale of land, building and other assuts
Profit on exchange transactions (net)
Income earned by way of dividends etc. from subsidiarivs, companies and/or joint
ventures abroad/in India
Miscellaneous income
TOTAL

Miscellaneons income for the period ended March 31, 2020 inclndes extraordinary income on account of write dotwn of Additional Tier 1

Bouds amounting to ¥ 34,150,000 Hhousands

SCHEDULE15 - INTEREST EXPENDED

me
R
i o =,
K

Interest on deposits

Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-bank borrowings/ Tier Land Tier I debt
instruments

Others

TOTAL

212,466,013 229,185,383 154,778,487
42,609,208 60,484,213 +1,025,311
2,103,677 3,975,728 3,160,730
3,341,275 2,592,649 1,721,419
260,520,173 296,237,987 202,685,947
15,259,280 36,352,664 42,070,717
11,134,575 3174838 3,134,739
3,282 3,947 (12,892)
3,731,959 1,570,297 2,315,709
89,431,890 5,633,068 3,423,236
119,560,986 46,754,814 52,931,509
120,019,406 136,826,853 93,824,814
66,661,229 6,764,723 29,840,501
5,899,963 521,297 1,628,986
192,580,598 198,112,872 125,294,301




YES BANK Limited

Sehedules forming part of Restated Consolidated Profitand Loss Account

(¢ i thousainds)

Forthe year ended
Mar 31, 2020

For the year ended
Mar 31, 2019

For the year eaded
Mar 31, 2018

SCHEDULE16 - OPERATING EXPENSES

XL

X,

Payments 1o and provisions Jor employees
Rent, taxes and Hghting

Printing and slationery

Adverlisement and publivily
Depreciation on Group's property
Dircetors' fees, allowances and expenses
Auditors’ fees and expenses

Law charges

Postage, lelegrams, welephones, el
Repairs and mantenance

Insurance

Other expenditure

SCHEDULE 17 - PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES

3.

A
V.

Provision for taxation {Refer Sch 18.8)
Provision for invesiments

Provision for standard advances

Provision/ write off for non porforming advances

Other Provisions

¢ Compound,

Gutn Marg,

TOTAL

TOTAL

26,913,246 25,381,132 22,246,642
4,540,763 4,237,307 4 562
37,322 425,902 372,93%
296,655 662,134 963,047
3,419,327 3,054,514 2,323,368
57,867 46,613 21,423
44,898 25,229 13,97
151,949 90,931 60,940
643,777 648,219 604,812
357,857 423,286 348,022
2,162,391 2,079,092 1,312,828
29,705,408 26,539,820 19,575,688
68,701,459 63,614,279 52,735,403
(44,056,129) 6,397,393 19,713,163
64,415,773 6,824,889 2,599,443
(19,410,781) 22,514,059 1,687,427
278,060,357 25,669,535 10,792,641
4,115,686 2,767,116 462,878
283,124,906 64,172,992 35,255,552
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Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the restated accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 1. Statement on Material Adjustments and Regroupings

The Restated Consolidated Financial Statements consists of Restated Consolidated Balance Sheet, Restated Consolidated Profit
and Loss Account, Restated Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Restated Consolidated Schedules to Restated Balance
sheet & Restated Profit and Loss Account as of and for the Fiscal Years ended, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019, and March 31,
2020 are collectively referred to as the "Restated Financial Information".

Material Adjustments:

The accounting policies as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 are materially consistent with the policies adopted
for each of the previous financial years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. The Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared based on the respective audited Historical Financial Statements for the Fiscal Years
ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

The following accounting policy was implemented during the year ended March 31, 2020, which has no material effect on the
Restated Consolidated Financial Statements:

Revenue recognition:

The Bank in FY20, has changed the methodology recognition of fee income such that a fee in excess of 2% received upfront on
the origination of a loan would be amortized over the life of loan. The impact of such change in methodology for recognition of
fees is not material and accordingly the same is not considered for Restated Financials.

Non adjusting items:
1. Qualification in auditors’ report
a.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the following
qualifications, which does not require any adjustment in the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements

¢ We draw attention to Note 18.2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which indicates that during
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank has breached the regulatory requirements of the Reserve Bank
of India (‘'RBI') regarding maintaining the minimum Common Equity Tier (CET’) 1 and Tier 1 capital
ratios which indicates the position of capital adequacy of a bank. The breach is primarily on account of
the increase in the provision for advances during the year ended 31 March 2020 as the Bank has decided,
on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio on its Non-Performing Asset (NPA) loans
over and above minimum RBI loan level provisioning. Inspite of the write back of the AT1 bonds on 14
March 2020 there is a breach of Tier 1 capital ratio as at 31 March 2020. The CET1 ratio and the Tier 1
capital ratios for the Bank as at 31 March 2020 stood at 6.3% and 6.5 % as compared to the minimum
requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This implies that the Bank will have to take effective
steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. Further, in view of the RBI norms relating to the
breach of the aforesaid ratios, there is uncertainty around RBI's potential action for such a breach. We
are unable to comment on the consequential impact of the above regulatory breach on these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Wedraw attention to Note 18.19 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which discloses that the Bank
became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock exchanges of an anonymous
whistle-blower complaint alleging irregularities in the Bank’s operations, potential conflicts of interests
in relation to the former MD and CEO and allegations of incorrect NPA classification. The Bank
conducted an internal enquiry of these allegations, which resulted in a report that was reviewed by the
Board of Directors in November 2018. Based on further inputs and deliberations in December 2018, the
Audit Committee of the Bank engaged an external firm to independently examine the matter. During
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank identified certain further matters which arose from other
independent investigations initiated by the lead banker of a lenders’ consortium on the companies
allegedly favoured by the former MD and CEO. In March 2020, the Enforcement Directorate has
launched an investigation into some aspects of dealings and transactions by the former MD. and CEO




Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

basis draft forensic reports from external agencies which further pointed out to conflict of interest
between the former MD and CEO and certain companies and arrested him. In view of the fact that these
enquiries and investigations are still ongoing, we are unable to comment on the consequential impact of
the above matter on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Material uncertainty related to going concern

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the following paragraph on
material uncertainty related to going concern, which does not require any adjustment in the Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. We draw attention to Note 18.2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which indicates that the Bank has incurred a
loss of Rs 16,418 crores for the year ended 31 March 2020. Particularly during the last six months, there has also been a
significant decline in the Bank’s deposit base, an increase in their NPA ratios resulting in breach of loan covenants on
its foreign currency debt and credit rating downgrades resulting in partial prepayment of foreign currency debt
linked to external credit rating. The Bank has also breached minimum Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Liquidity
Coverage Ratio requirements of RBI during the year and has provided an amount of Rs.334 crores for the expected
penalty on the SLR breach. The Bank has also breached the RBI mandated CET1 ratio and Tier 1 capital ratio which
stood at 6.3%.and 6.5% as compared to the minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This requires
the Bank to take effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. The breach of the CET1 and Tier 1
requirements was also impacted by the decision of the Bank to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio, on a prudent
basis, on its NPA loans over and above RBI's minimum loan provisioning norms. Further, on 5 March 2020, the
Central Government, based on the RBI's application imposed a moratorium under section 45 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective 5 March 2020. The RBI, in consultation with the Central
Government and in exercise of the powers under section 36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, superseded the
Board of Directors of the Bank on 5 March 2020. The above indicators of financial stress and actions taken by the RBI
resulted in a significant withdrawal of deposits. On 13 March 2020, the Government of India notified the Yes Bank
Limited Reconstruction Scheme 2020 (‘the Scheme’) [notified by the Central Government, in exercise of the powers
conferred by sub section (4) and subsection 7 of section 45 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949]. Under this Scheme
the authorized share capital of the Bank was increased to Rs.6,200 crores. The Bank has received capital from investors
amounting to Rs.10,000 crores on 14 March 2020. The State Bank of India (SBI) and other banks and financial
institutions invested in the Bank at a price of Rs.10 per equity share of the Bank (Rs.2 face value with a Rs.8 premiumy).
SBI is required to hold upto 49% with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock
in). Other investors are subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they make in the Bank under this
Scheme. Existing investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares) in the Bank are also subject to a lock in
for 75% of their holding as per this Scheme. A new Board of Directors, CEO and MD and Non Executive Chairman
have also been appointed pursuant to the Scheme. In addition, the moratorium imposed on the Bank on 5 March 2020
was vacated on 18 March 2020 as per the Scheme. RBI has also granted short-term funding to the Bank for the period
of 90 days. The Bank has submitted a proposal seeking extension for a period of one year. The draft reconstruction
scheme proposed on 6 March 2020 had also envisaged that the Bank would be able to write back Additional Tier 1
(AT1) securities amounting to Rs.8,695 crores to equity. However, the final Scheme issued by the Government of India
on 13 March 2020 does not contain any reference to the write back of the AT1 securities. Based on the legal advice on
the contractual terms of the AT 1 bonds, the Bank has fully written back AT 1 bonds aggregating to Rs 8,415 crores on
14 March 2020. This action by the Bank has been legally challenged through a writ petition in the Hon’ble Bombay
High court.

In line with the RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020, the Bank has granted a
moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between
March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 (later extended to August 31, 2020) to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard,
even if overdue, as on 29 February 2020.

In the opinion of the Bank, based on the financial projections prepared by the Bank and approved by the Board for the
next 3 years, the capital infusion, lines of liquidity provided by RBI and the reconstruction Scheme, the Bank will be
able to realize its assets (including its deferred tax asset) and discharge its liabilities in its normal course of business
and hence the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The said assumption of going
concern is inter-alia dependent on the Bank’s ability to achieve improvements in liquidity, asset quality and solvency
igs and mitigate the impact of Covid-19 and thus a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant doubt on
’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as stated above, as per management and the Board there
ting factors to such uncertainties including the amount of capital funds that have been raised:iri March 2020,
nd financial resources of new investors who have infused funds in the Bank, the new Board of Dlrectors,
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Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

CEO and MD and part time Chairman appointed as per the Scheme and the extent of regulatory support provided to
the Bank by the RBI.

Our conclusion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

3. Emphasis of matter paragraph in auditor’s report
a.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the following
Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, which do not require any adjustment in the Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements

+ that the Bank has a total deferred tax asset of Rs. 8,281 crores as at 31 March 2020. As per the
requirements of AS 22 - Income Taxes, based on the financial projections prepared by the Bank and
approved by the Board of directors, the Bank has assessed that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
The Bank expects to have a taxable profit for the future years. Our conclusion is not modified in respect
of this matter

* the Bank had made an additional provision of Rs. 15,422 crores for the period ended 31 December 2019
on a prudent evaluation of the status of NPAs based on discussion with regulator over and above the
RBI norms relating to the minimum provision to be made by banks on their loans and advances. The
additional provision is judgmental based on the quality and status of specific loans identified by the
Bank as at 31 March 2020. We believe that this judgment exercised by the Bank is appropriate. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

b.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 included the following
Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, which do not require any adjustment in the Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements

* the consolidated financial statements which describes the ongoing enquiry by the Holding Company
into certain anonymous whistle blower allegations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

4. Change in estimates

a. From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank considers slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end
till the date of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning requirements.
Further, the Bank had decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio on its NPA loans over
and above the RBI loan level provisioning requirements. This change is considered as change in estimates, and
consequently no retrospective adjustments have been made in this regard to the Restated Financials

b. As part of the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise for the Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 2018-19 concluded in
November 2019, the Reserve Bank of India (‘'RBI') has pointed out certain retrospective divergence in respect of
the Bank's asset classification and provisioning under the applicable prudential norms on income recognition,
asset classification and provision as at 31 March 2019 and accordingly, the impact of such divergence is
considered in the year in which the RBI has issued the report and consequently no retrospective adjustments
have been made in this regard to the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements.

5. Material regroupings

2, (;xfgﬁaﬁg\priate regrouping/reclassifications have been made in the Restated Financial Statements in accordance with the
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align them with the groupings as per the audited financial statements of the Bank. Non-financial information including
ratios, percentages, etc, have been updated to the extent applicable, as a consequence of regroupings / reclassifications
made, as indicated above.

6. Material errors

are no material errors that require any adjustment in the Restated Financial Statements.
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18. Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the restated accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.1 Background

YES BANK is a publicly held bank engaged in providing a wide range of banking and financial services. YES BANK
is a banking company governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The Bank was incorporated as a limited
company under the Companies Act, 1956 on November 21, 2003. The Bank received the licence to commence banking
operations from the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI’) on May 24, 2004. Further, YES BANK was included to the Second
Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 with effect from August 21, 2004. Also the Bank has a branch at
International Financial Services Centre ('IFSC’) at GIFT City, Gujarat (IBU’). The Bank classifies transactions
undertaken by IBU as overseas operation.

On March 13, 2020, the Government of India notified the ”Yes Bank Ltd. Reconstruction Scheme, 2020” (Scheme). As
per the Scheme, authorized capital has been increased from ¥ 11,000 million to ¥ 62,000 million. The State Bank of
India (SBI) and other investors invested in the Bank at a price of ¥ 10 per equity share of the Bank (% 2 face value with
a X 8 premium). As per the scheme, SBI is required to hold upto 49% with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the
Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments
they make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares) in
Yes Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75% of their holding as per this Scheme.

YES Securities (India) Limited ('the Company’) was incorporated on March 14, 2013, as a wholly owned subsidiary of
YES Bank Limited ("YBL' / ‘Holding Company’). The Company is a securities broker registered with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India since July 8, 2013. The Company also got SEBI registration as Category I Merchant
Banker w.e.f. September 3, 2015 and as a Research Analyst w.e.f. November 30, 2015. The Company also got SEBI
registration as Investment Adviser w.e.f. March 20, 2017. The Company offers, inter alia, trading / investment in
equity, merchant banking and other financial products along with various value added services. The Company is
member of the National Stock Exchange ('NSE) since May 2, 2013 and the Bombay Stock Exchange ('BSE’) since
June 11, 2013 and MCX since February 5, 2019, NCDEX since February 6, 2020.

YES Asset Management (India) Limited (the Company) was incorporated on April 21, 2017 as a wholly owned
subsidiary of YES BANK Limited (YBL / Holding Company). The Company has entered into an investment
management agreement with Yes Trustee Limited to act as the investment manager for any funds to be launched by
YES Mutual fund. The company obtained registration from Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') to launch
Mutual fund operations on July 3, 2018. Yes Mutual Fund launched its first Scheme YES Liquid Fund in January
2019. Subsequently in the FY 2019-20 Yes Mutual Fund launched two schemes namely YES Ultra Short Term Fund
and YES Overnight Fund.

YES Trustee Limited (the ‘Company') was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 on 3 May
2017 having its registered office in Mumbai. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of YES Bank Limited. The
Company is engaged in providing trusteeship services to YES Mutual Fund.YES Mutual Fund has launched its first
Scheme YES Liquid Fund in January 2019. Subsequently in FY 2019-20, YES Mutual Fund has launched two schemes
namely YES Ultra Short Term Fund and YES Overnight Fund.

182 Basis of preparation

The Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management from the audited financial statements of
each of the years ended March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (together, the "Historical Audited Financial Statements”). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank in preparation of the Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements and are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of financial statements for the year ended March
31,2020

o %«&The Restated Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Bank in accordance with the
'ﬂ» & (\Q irements of relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

ements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time in pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board
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18.3

18.4

of India Act, 1992, to the extent applicable. The Restated Summary Statements have been prepared by the Bank
specially for inclusion in the offer document to be filed by the Bank with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) to facilitate the management discussion and analysis of the Bank’s financial performance in connection with
its proposed initial public offering, and were approved by the Board on July, 03, 2020.

The Historical Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under
the Third Schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting and reporting policies
of The Group used in the preparation of these restated financial statements conform to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to
time, the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the
extent applicable and practices generally prevalent in the banking industry in India. The Group follows accrual
method of accounting and the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated by RBI guidelines.

Principles of Consolidation

The restated consolidated financial statements comprise the restated financial statements of YES Bank
Limited, and its subsidiaries, YES Securities (India) Limited, YES Asset Management (India) Limited and YES
Trustee Limited which together constitute the ‘Group’.

The Bank consolidates its subsidiaries in accordance with Accounting Standard ('AS’) 21, Consolidated Financial
Statements notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs to the extent applicable on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure.

Use of estimates

The preparation of restated financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
are considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the
restated financial statements and income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the restated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results
could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and
future periods.

Assessment of Going Concern:

In the aftermath of the IL&FS crisis in September 2018, the financial sector had been heavily constrained from a
liquidity stand-point. Also, rising defaults in Power and Infrastructure sector in second half of 2019 have taken a toll
on the stressed book of various Banks and NBFCs. In this macro environment, given its low capital covers, the Bank
has been adversely impacted on account of elevated slippages in its corporate book especially in power and infra
sector. The Bank reported a marginal profit for the quarter ended 30 June 2019 and reported loss in the quarter ended
September 30, 2019. For the quarter ended December 31, 2019, as a consequence of increase in NPAs, additional
recording slippages post period end and increase in Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR), the reported loss was ¥ 185,604
million. The Bank had also breached the RBI mandated Common Equity (CET1) ratio which stood at 0.62% at 31
December 2019 as compared to the requirement of 7.375%. The delay in capital raising triggered the downgrade of
the Bank's rating by Rating Agencies.

In addition the deposit outflow in early October on account of a combination of events such as invocation of
Promoter’s pledged shares\IT glitches for Yes Bank (and others)\ problems arising from financial distress in Punjab
and Maharashtra Cooperative Bank led to a continuing breach in Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) starting October '
019.and continues till date. The Bank’s deposit base has seen a reduction from ¥ 2,094,973 million as at September
; /23 \o % 1,657,554 million as at December 31, 2019. The deposit position as at March 31, 2020 is ¥ 1,053,639 million
-&sﬁfge\duced further to ¥ 1,027,179 million as at May 02, 2020. The Bank had also prepaid NUSD 1.18 bllhon (?
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85,000 million) by February 29, 2020. On March 5, 2020, the Central Government, based on the RBI's application
imposed a moratorium under section 45 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective March
5, 2020 which was lifted on March 18, 2020. Further, the RBI, in consultation with the Central Government and in
exercise of the powers under section 36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, superseded the Board of Directors
of the Bank on March 5, 2020. As per the moratorium a restriction was imposed on the withdrawal by depositors of
amounts up to ¥ 50,000 and the Bank also could not grant or renew loans or make any investments.

A new Board of Directors, MD & CEO and Non Executive Chairman have also been appointed under the Scheme.
The Bank has since obtained a Board approval to raise additional equity of upto Rs 150,000 million. As a consequence
of the reconstitution the Bank was deemed to be un-viable. Consequently, write-back of certain Basel 11l additional
tier 1 Bonds ("AT 1 Bonds") issued by the Bank had been triggered. Hence, such AT 1 Bonds amounting to ¥ 84,150
million have been fully written down permanently. The Trustees, on behalf of the holders of AT 1 Bonds have filed a
writ petition seeking to challenge the decision of the Bank to write down AT 1 bonds. The Bank, based on the legal
opinion of its external independent legal counsel is of the view that the merits of the Bank’s decision to write back the
AT 1 bonds is in accordance with the contractual terms for issuance of AT 1 Bonds. The Bank had also been granted a
short term special liquidity facility for 90 days from the RBI. The Bank also raised CDs of ¥ 72,000 million as at March
31, 2020. As a consequence of the above factors the Bank’s loss post tax and AT 1 write back (exceptional income) is ¥
164,180 million. The Bank’s CET1 ratio is 6.3% (regulatory requirement with CCB of 7.375%) and tier 1 capital ratio is
6.5% (regulatory requirement of 8.875%) as at March 31, 2020. The Bank has substantially enhanced its PCR and
strengthened its Balance Sheet. However, RBI's current framework on 'Prompt Corrective Action' (PCA) considers
regulatory breaches in CET as a potential trigger. The Bank remains in constant communication with RBI on the
various parameters and ratios and RBI has not imposed any fine on the Bank for the regulatory breaches.

The Bank’s deposit base has seen a reduction from * 2,276,102 million as at March 31, 2019 to * 1,053,639 million as at
March 31, 2020 (Position as at May 02, 2020 * 1,027,179 million). Consequently, the Bank's quarterly average
‘Liquidity Coverage Ratio” (LCR) has fallen from 74% for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 to 40% for the quarter
ended March 31, 2020 (regulatory limit 100%), position as at May 02, 2020 34.8%(regulatory limit 80%). The Bank also
has a deferred tax asset of * 82,810 million as at March 31, 2020. Though the Bank has made a loss of * 164,180 million
for the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has a taxable profit for the year ended March 31, 2020. The Bank
continues to carry such deferred tax asset in its Balance Sheet, as basis financial projections approved by the Board of
Directors, there is reasonable certainty of having sufficient taxable income to enable realization of the said deferred
tax asset as specified in Accounting Standard 22 (Accounting for Taxes on Income).

In the month of March 2020, SARS-CoV-2 virus responsible for COVID-19 continued to spread across the globe and
India, which has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a
significant decrease in global and local economic outlook and activities. On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak
was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization. On March 24, 2020, the Indian government
announced a strict 21-day lockdown which was further extended across the country to contain the spread of the
virus. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Bank's future results will depend on related
developments, which remain highly uncertain.

The Bank witnessed significant deposit withdrawal immediately post the moratorium was lifted, however the
deposits stabilised post March 23, 2020. While further reduction in deposits lost post moratorium may cast material
uncertainty, particularly in the current COVID scenario, the Bank under the leadership of new management and
Reconstituted Board is confident that it can tide over the current issues successfully.

This belief is reinforced by the pedigree of new investors of the Bank (led by State Bank of India and other
Financial Institutions). The Bank believes that the stress is temporary in nature and would be rectified through
infusion of fresh capital and the liquidity initiative measures being undertaken. Further, The Bank’s management
d board of directors have made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern based on the detailed
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will enable the Bank to continue its business for the foreseeable future, so as to be able to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in its normal course of business. Based on the projection and assessment, the Bank believes
that it will achieve operating profit in near term and expects higher level of recoveries from NPA as significant
portion of the stressed book already classified as NPA, the Bank expected to be on a growth trajectory. As such, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

18.5 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank considers slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end till
the date of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning requirements. Further,
the Bank had decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio on its NPA loans over and above
the RBI loan level provisioning requirements. As a result, the Bank recognized additional provisions of ¥ 154,220.39
million for the period ended December 31, 2019. In line with the RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March
27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and the Governor’s Statement dated May 22, 2020, the Bank has granted a moratorium
of six months on the payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on February 29, 2020. For
all such accounts where the moratorium is granted (except advances at IFSC Banking Unit (IBU)), the asset
classification shall remain stand still during the moratorium period (i.e. the number of days past-due shall exclude
the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification under the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning norms) and as the asset classification as of March 31, 2020 has been retained based on the overdue
status as at February 29, 2020. Hence on account of above mentioned RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package, Bank
has not considered slippages post March 31, 2020 till the date of results / financial statement.

In line with RBI requirements, the Bank holds necessary provisions as at March 31, 2020 against the assets where the
asset classification benefit has been extended on account of standstill requirements.

Restated significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured.
» Interestincome is recognized in the profit and loss account on accrual basis, except in the case of non-performing

assets. Interest on non-performing assets is recognized as per the prudential norms of the RBIL. Penal Interest is
recognized upon certainty of its realization.

+ Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
e Commission on guarantees issued by the Bank is recognized as income over the period of the guarantee.
» Commission on Letters of Credit (LC’) issued by the Bank is recognized as income at the time of issue of the LC.

* Income on non-coupon bearing discounted instruments is recognized over the tenure of the instrument on a
straight line basis. In case of coupon bearing discounted instruments, discount income is recognized over the
tenor of the instrument on yield basis.

» In case of Bonds and Pass Through Certificates, premium on redemption, if any, is amortised over the tenure of
the instrument on a yield basis.

e Revenue from financial advisory services is recognized in line with milestones achieved as per terms of
agreement with clients which is reflective of services rendered.

¢  Facility fees and loan processing fees are recognised when due and realizable.

e Other fees and commission are accounted for as and when they became due.

¢ Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rate on execution of transaction on behalf of the customers on
the trade date, GST and stock exchange expenses..

s FPee income from Investment banking / Merchant banking services are recognised based on completion of

milestone as per the engagement letter. Further Fee income in relation to public issues/ other securities is
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s Fee for subscription based services are recognised as earned on a pro rata basis over the term of the plan.

e Management fees are accounted for on accrual basis in accordance with the investment management agreement
and SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996.
¢ Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

18.6.2  Investiments

Classification and valuation of the Bank’s investments are carried out in accordance with RBI Circular
DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015.

Accounting and Classification

The Bank follows settlement date accounting for Investments. In compliance with RBI guidelines, all investments, are
categorized as “Held for trading” ("HFT’), “Available for sale” ('AFS’) or “Held to maturity” ('HTM’) at the time of
its purchase. For the purpose of disclosure in the balance sheet, investments are classified as disclosed in Schedule 8
('Investments’) under six groups (a) government securities (b) other approved securities (c) shares (d) bonds and
debentures (e) subsidiaries and joint ventures and (f) others.

a)  Cost of acquisition

Costs such as brokerage pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition and broken period interest are
charged to the profit and loss account as per the RBI guidelines.

b)  Basis of classification

Securities that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified under the
HFT category. Investments that The Group intends to hold till maturity are classified under the HTM category,
or as per RBI guidelines. Securities which are not classified in the above categories are classified under the AFS
category.

¢} Transfer between categories

Reclassification of investments from one category to the other, if done, is in accordance with RBI guidelines.
Transfer of scrips from AFS / HFT category to HIM category is made at the lower of book value or market
value. In the case of transfer of securities from HTM to AFS / HFT category, the investments held under HTM at
a discount are transferred to AFS / HFT category at the acquisition price and investments placed in the HTM
category at a premium are transferred to AFS/ HFT at the amortized cost.

Transfer of investments from AFS to HFT or vice- a- versa is done at the book value. Depreciation carried, if any,
on such investments is also transferred from one category to another.

d)  Valuation

Investments categorized under AFS and HFT categories are marked to market (MTM) on a periodical basis as
per relevant RBI guidelines. Net depreciation, if any, in the category under the classification mentioned in
Schedule 8 (‘'Investments’) is recognized in the profit and loss account. The net appreciation, if any, in the
category under each classification is ignored, except to the extent of depreciation previously provided. The book
value of individual securities is not changed consequent to periodic valuation of investments.

Investments received in lieu of restructured advances scheme are valued in accordance with RBI guidelines. Any
diminution in value on these investments is provided for and is not used to set off against appreciation in
respect of other performing securities in that category. Depreciation on equity shares acquired and held by The
Group under restructuring scheme is provided as per RBI guidelines.
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accordance with RBI Circular DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015. Where in the opinion of
management, a diminution, other than temporary in the value of investments classified under HTM has taken
place, suitable provisions are made. Profit/loss on sale of investments in the ‘Held to Maturity’ category is
recognised in the profit and loss account and profit is thereafter appropriated (net of applicable taxes and
statutory reserve requirements) to Capital Reserve.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Paper and Certificates of deposit being discounted instruments, are valued at
carrying cost.

Pass Through Certificates purchased for priority sector lending requirements are valued at Book Value in
accordance with RBI guidelines.

The market/ fair value applied for the purpose of periodical valuation of quoted investments included in the
AFS and HEFT categories is the market price of the scrip as available from the trades/ quotes on the stock
exchanges and for Subsidiary General Ledger (‘'SGL') account transactions, the prices as periodically declared by
Financial Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd.(FBIL).

The market/ fair value of unquoted government securities included in the AFS and HFT category is determined
as per the prices published by FBIL. Further, in the case of unquoted bonds, debentures, pass through certificates
(other than priority sector) and preference shares, valuation is carried out by applying an appropriate mark-up
(reflecting associated credit risk) over the Yield to Maturity ("YTM') rates of government securities. Such mark
up and YTM rates applied are as per the relevant rates published by FIMMDA /FBIL.

The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities in accordance with RBI
guidelines. The short position is reflected as the amount received on sale and is netted in the Investment
schedule. The short position is marked to market and loss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss account while
gain, if any, is ignored. Profit / Loss on settlement of the short position is recognised in the Profit and Loss
account.

Units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) held under AFS category are valued using the Net Asset Value (NAV)
shown by VCF as per the financial statement. The VCFs are valued based on the audited results once in a year.
In case the audited financials are not available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued at 3 1
per VCE.

Quoted equity shares are valued at their closing price on a recognized stock exchange. Unquoted equity shares
are valued at the break-up value if the latest balance sheet is available, else, at ¥ 1 per company, as per relevant
RBI guidelines.

At the end of each reporting period, security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction company are valued in
accordance with the guidelines applicable to such instruments, prescribed by RBI from time to time.
Accordingly, in cases where the cash flows from security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction company are
limited to the actual realization of the financial assets assigned to the instruments in the concerned scheme, The
Group reckons the net asset value obtained from the asset reconstruction company from time to time, for
valuation of such investments at each reporting date. In case of investment in Security Receipts on or after April
01, 2017 which are backed by more than 50% of the stressed assets sold by the bank or 10% of the stressed asset
sold by the bank post April 01, 2018, provision for depreciation in value is made at higher of - provisioning rate
required in terms of net assets value declared by Reconstruction Company(RC)/Securitization Company(SC) or
the provisioning rate as per the extant asset classification and provisioning norms as applicable to the
underlying loans, assuming that the loan notionally continue in the books of the Bank. All other investments in
the Security Receipts are valued as per the NAV obtained from issuing RC/SC.

Investments in quoted Mutual Fund (MF) Units are valued at the latest repurchase price/net asset value
declared by the mutual fund. Investments in un-quoted MF Units are valued on the basis of the latest re-

purchase price declared by the MF in respect of each particular Scheme.

\kstment in hsted instruments of Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) /Infrastructure Investment Trust (INVIT)
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not traded on any stock exchange within 15 days prior to date of valuation, valuation is done based on the latest
NAV (not older than 1 year) submitted by the valuer.

Sovereign foreign currency bonds are valued using Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader (CBBT) price or
Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVAL) price or on Treasury curve in the chronological order based on availability.

Non- Sovereign foreign currency Bonds are valued using either Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader (CBBT)
price, Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVAL) price , Bloomberg Generic price (BGN) , Last available CBBT pricing
for the instrument or Proxy Bond Pricing from Bloomberg in the chronological order based on availability.

Masala bonds are valued using either Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader (CBBT) price, Bloomberg Valuation
Service (BVAL) price or as per FIMMDA guided valuation methodology for unquoted bonds in the
chronological order based on availability.

Special bonds such as oil bonds, fertilizer bonds, UDAY bonds etc. which are directly issued by Government of
India (GOT'} is valued based on

b

Equity shares in the Banks demat account, acquired through exercise of pledge, is not accounted as investments.
Upon sale of the pledged shares, the proceeds are utilized to offset the borrower’s liability

Non-performing investments are identified and depreciation / provision are made thereon based on the RBI
guidelines. Based on management assessment of impairment, The Group additionally creates provision over and
above the RBI guidelines. The depreciation / provision on such non-performing investments are not set off
against the appreciation in respect of other performing securities. Interest on non-performing investments is not
recognised in the Profit and Loss account until received.

e)  Profit/Loss on sale of Investments

Profit/Loss on sale of Investments in the HTM category is recognized in the profit and loss account and profit
thereafter is appropriated (net of applicable taxes and statutory reserve requirements) to Capital Reserve.
Profit/Loss on sale of investments in HFT and AFS categories is recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

) Accounting for repos / reverse repos

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Repos) and securities purchased under agreements to resell
(Reverse Repos) including liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) with RBI are treated as collateralized borrowing
and lending  transactions  respectively in  accordance with RBI  master circular  No.
DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015. The first leg of the repo transaction is contracted at the
prevailing market rates. The difference between consideration amounts of first and second (reversal of first) leg
reflects interest and is recognized as interest income/expense over the period of transaction.

Group also undertakes Repo and Reverse repo transactions from IFSC Banking Unit in GIFT City in Foreign
currency Sovereign Securities and accounting is similar to the domestic repo transactions.

g Investment fluctuation reserve

With a view to building up of adequate reserves to protect against increase in yields, RBI through circular
number RBI/2017-18/147 DBR.No.BP.BC.102/21.04.048/2017-18 dated April 2, 2018, advised all banks to create
an IFR with effect from the FY 2018-19.

. Transferred to IFR will be Jower of the following (i) net profit on sale of investments during the year or (ii) net
,) 0,, O flt for the year less mandatory appropriations; until the amount of IFR is at least 2 percent of the HFT and
// ortfoho on a continuing basis.
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18.6.3  Advances

Accounting and classification

Advances are classified as performing and non-performing based on the relevant RBI guidelines. Advances are
stated net of specific provisions, interest in suspense, inter-bank participation certificates issued, direct assignment
and bills rediscounted.

Provisioning

Provisions in respect of non-performing advances are made based on management’s assessment of the degree of
impairment of the advances, subject to the minimum provisioning level prescribed in relevant RBI guidelines. The
specific provision levels for retail non-performing assets are also based on the nature of product and delinquency
levels. Specific provisions in respect of non-performing advances are charged to the Profit and Loss account and
included under Provisions and Contingencies. From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank consider
slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end till the date of results / restated financial statement, while
determining NPAs and related provisioning requirements.

In accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17,
2020, the Bank has granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all installments and / or interest, as
applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 (later extended to August 31, 2020) to all eligible
borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on February 29, 2020. For all such accounts where the
moratorium is granted (except advances at IFSC Banking Unit (IBU)), the asset classification as of March 31, 2020 has
been retained based on the overdue status as at February 29, 2020. As a consequence the Bank has not recognized any
slippage in asset classification from standard to NPA post February 29, 2020 on account of moratorium.

As per the RBI guidelines a general provision is made on all standard advances, including provision for borrowers
having unhedged foreign currency exposure and for credit exposures computed as per the current marked to market
values of interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts. These also include provision for stressed sector
exposures and provision for incremental exposure of the banking system to a specified borrower beyond Normally
Permitted Lending Limit (NPLL) in proportion to bank’s funded exposure to specified borrower. Such provisions are
included in Schedule 5 - “Other liabilities & provisions - Others’.

In respect of restructured standard and non performing advances, provision is made for the present value of principal
and interest component sacrificed at the time of restructuring the assets, based on the RBI guidelines.

Accounts are written-off in accordance with the Bank’s policies. Recoveries from bad debts written-off are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account and included under other income.

In case of loans sold to asset reconstruction company, if consideration is more than net book value, the group records
the security receipts as investment at Net Book Value as per RBI guidelines.

The Bank has in place a Country Risk management policy as part of its Board approved Credit policy, which is based
on extant regulatory guidelines and addresses the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of country
risk. Countries are categorized into seven risk categories, viz. Insignificant, Low Risk, Moderately Low Risk,
Moderate Risk, Moderately Risk, High Risk and Very High Risk. The Bank calculates direct and indirect country risk
in line with the policy requirements. Indirect exposure is reckoned at 50% of the exposure in case of countries where
the net funded exposure exceeds 1% of the Bank’s total assets. Further, if the net funded exposure of The Bank in
respect of each country exceeds 1% of the Bank’s total assets, provisioning is required to be made on exposure to such
~countries. Depending on the risk category of the country, provisioning is done on a graded scale ranging from 0.25%
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18.6.4  Transactions involving foreign exchange

Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Income and expenditure items of integral foreign operations (representative
offices) are translated at the daily average closing rates and of non-integral foreign operations (foreign branches) at
the monthly average closing rates.

Premia/discounts on foreign exchange swaps, that are used to hedge risks arising from foreign currency assets and
liabilities, are amortized over the life of the swap.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the balance sheet date at rates notified by the
Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India (‘FEDALI'). Foreign exchange contracts are stated at net present value
using LIBOR/SWAP curves of the respective currencies with the resulting unrealised gain or loss being recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account and correspondingly in other assets {representing positive Mark-to-Market) and in
other liabilities (representing negative Mark-to-Market (MTM)) on a gross basis.

In accordance with AS 11 ‘The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, contingent liabilities in respect of
outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts, derivatives, guarantees, endorsements and other obligations are
stated at the exchange rates notified by FEDAT corresponding to the balance sheet date.

Both monetary and non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations are
translated at closing exchange rates notified by FEDAI at the Balance Sheet date and the resulting profit / loss
arising from exchange differences are accumulated in the Foreign Currency Translation Account until the disposal of
the net investment in the non-integral foreign operations.

In accordance with the RBI clarification, the Bank does not recognise in the profit and loss account the proportionate
exchange gains or losses held in the foreign currency translation reserve on repatriation of profits from overseas
operations.

Currency future contracts are marked to market daily using settlement price on a trading day, which is the closing
price of the respective future contracts on that day. While the daily settlement prices is computed on the basis of
weighted average price of such contract, the final settlement price is taken as the RBI reference rate on the last
trading day of the future contract or as may be specified by the relevant authority from time to time. All open
positions are marked to market based on the settlement price and the resultant marked to market profit / loss is
daily set.

18.6.5  Earnings per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20,
“Earnings per Share” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. Basic earnings per equity share have
been computed by dividing net profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares options outstanding during the period except where the results are anti -dilutive.

18.6.6  Accounting for derivative transactions

Derivative transactions comprises forward rate agreements, swaps and option contracts. The Group undertakes
:r,ﬁ%gel‘ivative transactions for market making/trading and hedging on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. All market
V4 (x’ﬁf@\‘l\fing/ trading transactions are marked to market on a monthly basis and the resultant unrealized gains/losses are
(e éﬁnized in the profit and loss account.
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18.6.7

¥

Derivalive transactions that are undertaken for hedging are accounted for on accrual basis except for the transaction
designated with an asset or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost or market value in the financial
statements, which are accounted similar to the underlying asset or liability.

Cross currency interest rate swaps which are used by The Group to hedge its foreign currency borrowings have been
designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value. The corresponding gain or loss is recognised as cash
flow hedge reserve. Further to match profit/ loss on account of revaluation of foreign currency borrowing, the
corresponding amount is recycled from cash flow hedge reserve to Profit and Loss account.

The Group follows the option premium accounting framework prescribed by FEDAI SPL- circular dated Dec 14,
2007. Premium on option transaction is recognized as income/expense on expiry or early termination of the
transaction. Mark to market (MTM) gain/loss (adjusted for premium received/paid on option contracts) is recorded
under 'Other Income’.

The amounts received/paid on cancellation of option contracts are recognized as realized gains/losses on options.
Charges receivable/payable on cancellation/ termination of foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps are
recognized as income/ expense on the date of cancellation/ termination under ‘Other Income’.

Valuation of Interest Rate Futures (IRF) is carried out on the basis of the daily settlement price of each contract
provided by the exchange.

The requirement for collateral and credit risk mitigation on derivative contracts is assessed based on internal credit
policy. Overdue if any, on account of derivative transactions are accounted in accordance with extant RBI guidelines.

As per the RBI guidelines on ‘Prudential Norms for Off-balance Sheet Exposures of Banks’ a general provision is
made on the current gross MTM gain of the contract for all outstanding interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
transactions.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use. Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future benefit
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18.6.8  Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method, over estimated useful lives, as determined by the
management, at the rates mentioned below-

Class of asset Useful life of Assets Useful life of Assets as per
as per Companies Bank’s Accounting Policy
Act, 2013
Owned Premises 60 years 60 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years
Computer hardware! 6 years 3 years
Computer software * 6 years 4 years
Vehicles! 8§ years 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 10 years
Automated Teller Machines (' ATMs")1 15 years 10 years
Leasehold improvements to premises - Over the lease period or 9
years whichever is less.

*As per RBI Guidelines.

! Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C
of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

*  Assets costing up to ¥ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

¢ Forassets purchased/ sold during the year, depreciation is being provided on pro rata basis by the Bank.

*  Improvements to leasehold assets are depreciated over the remaining period of lease

*  Reimbursement, if any, is recognised on receipt and is adjusted to the book value of asset and depreciated
over the balance life of the asset

*  Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of the asset, the unamortised depreciable amount is
charged over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset

*  The useful life of assets is based on historical experience of the Bank, which is different from the useful life
as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

18.6.9  Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its
value in use. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is recognised by debiting the profit and
=y, Joss account and is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable

j) Mo
e 2}\}1\0unt of the assets.
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18.6.10 Employee benefits

Employee Stock Option Scheme ('ESOS’)

The Employee Stock Option Scheme ('the Scheme’) provides for the grant of options to acquire equity shares of The
Group to its employees. The options granted to employees vest in a graded manner and these may be exercised by
the employees within specified periods.

Measurement of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. The Group measures compensation cost relating to
employee stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation cost is measured by the excess, if any, of the
fair market price of the underlying stock (i.e. the last closing price on the stock exchange on the day preceding the
date of grant of stock options) over the exercise price. The exercise price of the Bank’s stock option is the last closing
price on the stock exchange on the day preceding the date of grant of stock options and accordingly there is no
compensation cost under the intrinsic value method.

Compensated Absence

The employees of the Group are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/unutilized leave subject to a
maximum limit. The employees cannot encash unavailed/unutilized leave. The Group provides for leave
encashment / compensated absences based on an independent actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date, which
includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest rates and leave utilisation.

Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, covering eligible employees. The plan provides
for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of
employment for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service if the
service is more than 5 years. The Group accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits using the projected unit
cost method based on annual actuarial valuation.

The defined gratuity benefit plans are valued by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit credit method as per the requirement of AS-15, Employee Benefits, to determine the present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the related service costs. Under this method, the determination is based on
actuarial calculations, which include assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases and interest
rates. Actuarial gain or loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

Provident fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan in which both the employee and The Group contribute monthly at a pre determined rate.
Contribution to provident fund are recognized as expense as and when the services are rendered. The Group has no
Hability for future provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

In February 2019, the honorable Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified that certain special allowances
should be considered to measure obligations under Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952 (the PF Act). The Group has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of
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National Pension System (NPS)

The NPS is a defined contribution retirement plan. The primary objective is enabling systematic savings and to
provide retirees with an option to achieve financial stability. Pension contributions are invested in the pension fund
schemes. The Group has no liabilitv for future fund benefits other than the voluntary contribution made by
employees who agree to contribute to the scheme.

18.6.11 Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term in accordance with Accounting Standard -19, Leases.

18.6.12 Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax comprises of the amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under. Deferred income taxes
retlects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and
reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax
consequences of timing differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases,
and operating loss carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future. In case of unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, all deferred tax assets are
recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets supported by convincing evidence. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is
reasonably /virtually certain to be realized.

18.6.13 Provisions and contingent assets/liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of The Group or a
present obligation that arises from past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be
made. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the restated financial
statements

In accordance with AS 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, The Group creates a provision
when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the restated financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

18.6.14 Cash and Cash equivalents

e N:Q\Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money at call and
@ e P B hort notice.
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18.6.15 Corporate social responsibility

Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility, in accordance with Companies Act, 2013, are recognised in the
Profit and Loss account.

18.6.16 Debit and credit cards reward points

The Bank estimates the probable redemption of debit and credit card reward points and cost per point using actuarial
valuation method by employing an independent actuary, which includes assumptions such as mortality, redemption
and spends.

Provisions for liabilities on said reward points are made based on the actuarial valuation report as furnished by the
said independent actuary and included in other liabilities.

18.6.17 Bullion

The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis for selling to its customers. The
imports are typically on a back-to-back basis and are priced to the customer based on a price quoted by the supplier.
The Group earns a fee on such bullion transactions. The fee is classified in other income. The Group also deals in
bullion on a borrowing and lending basis and the interest paid / received thereon is classified as interest expense /
income respectively.

18.6.18 Share issue expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Share Premium Account in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

18.6.19 Segment information

The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with AS-17, Segment Reporting and as per guidelines
issued by RBL

18.6.20  Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)

The Bank, in accordance with RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/ 04.09.01/2015-16 dated April 7, 2016, trades in
priority sector portfolio by selling or buying PSLC. There is no transfer of risks or loan assets in these transactions.
The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an ‘Expense’ and the fee received from the sale of PSLCs is treated
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18.7 Capital
18.71  Equity Issuc

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has issued 231,055,018 equity shares of % 2 each for cash
pursuant to a Qualified Institutions Placement (QIP) at ¥ 83.55 aggregating to % 19,304.64 million.

On March 13, 2020, the Government of India notified the ”Yes Bank Ltd. Reconstruction Scheme, 2020”7 (Scheme). As
per the Scheme, authorized capital has been increased from Z-11,000 million to T 62,000 million (X 8,000 million as at
March 31, 2019). The State Bank of India (SB1) and other investors invested in the Bank at a price of X 10 per equity
share of the Bank R 2 face value with a ¥ 8 premium). As per the scheme, SBI is required to hold upto 49% with a
minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are subject to a 3
year lock In for 75% of the investments they make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing investors (other than
investors holding less than 100 shares) in YES Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75% of their holding as per this
Scheme. Further, as per final reconstruction scheme of the Bank, Bank has issued 10,000 million equity shares at ¥ 10
each aggregating to  100,000.00 million.

The share allotment under reconstruction scheme is given below:

;I’o. Name of Investor Subscription Amount Number of Equity Shares Allotted
. iy (in Million)
(X in million)
1 State Bank of India 60,500 6,050
2 Housing Development Finance 10,000 1,000
Corporation Limited
3 ICICI Bank Limited 10,000 1,000
4 Axis Bank Limited 6,000 600
5 Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 5,000 500
6 The Federal Bank Ltd 3,000 300
7 Bandhan Bank Limited 3,000 300
8 IDEC First Bank Limited 2,500 250
TOTAL 100,000 10,000

The Bank accreted X 79,550.00 million (net of estimated share issue expenses of ¥ 450.00 million) as premium. The
Bank also issued 4,384,174 shares pursuant to the exercise of stock option aggregating to ¥ 284.53 million. During the
financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Bank has issued 12,065,794 shares pursuant to the exercise of stock option
aggregating to X 953.47 million.

On September 8, 2017, the shareholders of the Bank approved the sub-division of each equity share having a
face value of 10 into five equity shares having a face value of 2 2 each through postal ballot. The record date
for the sub-division was September 22, 2017. All shares and per share information in the restated financial
results reflect the effect of such sub-division.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Bank has issued 20,538,180 shares pursuant to the
2 @%?r‘clgﬁe of stock option aggregating to ¢ 1,378.65 million.

M L LN .
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Movement in Share Capital

(¥ in million)

Share Capital As at ‘ As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Opening Share Capital 4,630.07 4,605.93 4,564.86
Addition due to exercise of Stock Onption 8.76 24.13 41.07
Addition due to shares issued for QIP 462.11 - -
Addition due to shares issued under Reconstruction scheme 20,000.00 - -
Closing Share Capital 25,100.94 4,630.07 4,605.93

Write Down of AT1 Bonds

On March 13, 2020, pursuant to the provisions of Section 45 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) reconstituted YES Bank Limited (“the Bank”). As a consequence of the reconstitution, the Bank was deemed
to be non-viable. Further, the Bank incurred losses and breached RBI mandated Common Equity Ratio (CET 1) and
other statutory ratios. This activated the triggers for write-down of Basel Il additional tier 1 Bonds amounting to X
84,150 million ("AT 1 Bonds") issued by the Bank. Accordingly, the Bank was constrained to write down AT Bonds on
March 14, 2020. The Trustees, on behalf of the holders of AT 1 Bonds have filed a writ petition seeking to challenge the
decision of the Bank to write down AT 1 bonds. The Bank, based on the legal opinion of its external independent legal
counsel is of the view that the merits of the Bank’s decision to write down the AT 1 bonds in accordance with the
contractual terms for issuance of AT 1 Bonds.

Interest on Additional Tier I Capital (Unsecured, Non-Convertible, Tier I Subordinated Perpetual Bonds in the nature
of Promissory Notes issued under Basel Il guidelines) amounting to ¥ 84.0 million was not paid by the Bank as the
regulatory ratio of the Bank were lower than the minimum required

18.7.2  Proposed Dividend:

The Bank has made loss during the year and as consequence to that the Bank has not declared any dividend. Further,
the Reserve Bank of India, vide its circular dated April 17, 2020, has declared that banks shall not make any further
dividend payouts from profit pertaining to financial year ended March 31, 2020, until further instructions with the
view to conserve capital in the environment of heightened uncertainly caused by COVID- 19.

18.7.3  Divergeiice in Asset Classification and Provisioning for NPAs

In terms of the RBI circular no. DBR.BP.BC.No.32/21.04.018/2018-19 dated 1" April, 2019. banks are required to
disclose the divergences in asset classification and provisioning consequent to RBI's annual supervisory process in
their notes to accounts to the financial statements, wherever either or both of the following conditions are satisfied:
(a) the additional provisioning for NPAs assessed by RBI exceeds 10 per cent of the reported profit before provisions
and contingencies for the reference period and (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceed 15 per cent of
he published incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period. As part of the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise
L Kff%lc?\Y 2018-19 concluded in November 2019, the RBI has pointed out certain retrospective divergence in the Bank's
N .
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asset classification and provisioning as on 31st March 2019. In conformity with the above mentioned RBI circular, the
below table outlines divergences in asset classification and provisioning.

Sr. Particulars (X in millions)
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 78,825.59
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI 111,595.59
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) 32,770.00
4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 44,848.49
5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI 67,838.49
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 22,990.00
7 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 33,977.10
8  Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI ‘ 43,757.10
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 9,780.00

10 1225113901 ted Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 17202.79
Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended

11 March 31, 2019 after taking into account the divergence in 10,840.31
provisioning

Divergence reported in financial of March 31, 2018.

*  The Bank classities performing and non-performing advances (NPAs) as per the RBI's Prudential Norms on Income
recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning.

* Based on application of RBI's prudential norms as stated above, the Bank classified and made the prescribed
provisions against the NPAs as at the end of 31st March, 2017.

*  As part of the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise for FY 2016-17 concluded in October 2017, the RBI has pointed
out certain retrospective divergence in the Bank's asset classification and provisioning as on 31st March 2017. In
conformity with the RBI circulars DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018,/2016-17 issued on April 18, 2017, SEBI circular issued
on July 18, 2017 and as per approval from the Board of Directors at its Board Meeting held on October 26, 2017, the
below table outlines divergences in asset classification and provisioning,

Sr. Particulars ® in millions)
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 20,185.57
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 83,737.57
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) 63,551.99
4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 10,722.68
5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 58,916.24
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 48,193.56
7 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 9,462.89
8 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 24,821.38
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 15,358.49
10 Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 33,300.96
11 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 after

taking into account the divergence in provisioning 23,161.28

The net current impact of the aforementioned retrospective slippages due to divergence noted by RBI in October 2017

e,

. Eg, Been duly reflected in the results for the year ended March 31, 2018.

AN
i E%Itgo {K’é\ w%)tal divergence current position as on Mar 31, 2018 is as under:
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Particulars X in millions) Yo
1. Net Repayments (In full / partial)* 24,343 47 38.30%
2.Sold to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) 8,031.58 12.64%
against Securily Receipts** (non cash component)
3. Outstanding as on March 31, 2018 (a+b): 31,176.94 49.06%
) Upgraded as Standard on account of satisfactory ' 26,326.94 41.43%
account conduct
b) Classified as NPA*** 4,850.00 7.63%
Total (1+2+3) 63,551.99

* includes cash received from ARC for loans sold
** Recorded at Net book value of ¥ 5,681.97 million
** Corresponding provision carried is 40%

18.8 Income Taxes

Provisions made for Income Tax during the year
(T inmillion)

For the year ended For the year For the year

March 31,2020 ended March 31, ended March 31,

2019 2018

Current income tax expense 13,379.12 23,009.69 22,439.16
Deferred income tax credit (57,435.25) (16,612.30) (2,726.00)
TOTAL (44,056.13) 6,397.39 19,713.16

18.9 Staff retirement benefits

The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the Group’s
financial statements as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

Changes in present value of Obligations
(Tin million)

As at March 31, 2020 As at As at
March March
31,2019 31,2018

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 1,464.09 1,155.37 902.92
Interest Cost 103.41 87.56 61.85
Current Service Cost 376.36 279.03 262.64
Past Service Cost - - 0.41
Benefits Paid (154.86) (83.96) (108.47)

dal (gain)/loss on Obligation (204.80) 26.07 36.01
sg\?’lyﬂ\lé\}ue of Obligation at the end of the year 1,584.20 1,464.09 1,155.37
kY %
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Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

(< timmnillion)

For the year ended For the year ended Zor the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,125.60 1,155.29 885.95
Adjustment to Opening Balance - - 4.25
Expected return on plan assets 7917 80.78 61.93
Contributions 200.00 - 321.34
Benefits paid (154.86) (83.96) (108.47)
Actuarial gain/( loss) on plan assets (27.02) (26.51) (9.71)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 1,222.89 1,125.60 1,155.29

The Group has entire contribution of Gratuity Fund as Investments with Insurance Companies which are invested primarily
in debt instruments as approved by IRDA.

Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on the expected average long-term rate of return on investments of
the Fund during the estimated term of the obligations

Net gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 comprises the following components:
(T inmillion)

For the year ended For the year For the year

March 31,2020  ended March 31, ended March 31,

2019 2018

Current Service Cost 376.36 279.03 262.64
Interest Cost 103.41 87.55 61.85
Expected Return on plan assets (79.17) (80.78) ) (61.93)
Net Actuarial gain recognized in the year (177.78) 52.59 45.72
Past Service Cost - 0.09 041
Expenses recognized » 222.82 338.48 307.14

Experience History: -
(¥ inmillion)

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

(Gain)/Loss on (252.08) 57.48 (70.88) 48.37 15.18
obligation due to
change in

assumption »
Experience 47.97 (31.99) 113.80 32.76 (5.99)
(Gain)/Loss on

obligation

Actuarial (27.02) (26.51) (G.21) 8.46 (18.68)

Gain/(Loss) on
lan assets
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For the year For the year ended For the year ended
ended March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
March 31, 2020

Discount Rate 5.47%~6.60% 7.05%~7.55% 7.4%~7.60%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.00% 7.00% 7.00%~8.00%
Mortality TIALM (2012-14) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult  TALM (2006-08) Ult
Future Salary Increases 9%~10.00% 10%~12.00% 12.00%
Disability -
Attrition 10%-34% 8%-~27% 6%-25%
Retirement 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs

Actuarial assumption on salary increase also takes into consideration the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.

Position of plan asset / liability

(T in million)
For the year For the year ended For the year ended
ended March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
March 31, 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 1,222.89 1,125.60 1,155.29
Pr t Val f Obligation at the end of tl
resent Value of Obligation at the enc o The 1,564.20 1,464.00 1,155.38
year
Plan asset/ (liability) (361.31) (338.49) (0.09)

The Group is yet to determine future contribution to Gratuity fund for Financial Year 2020-21

National Pension Scheine

The Group has contributed ¥ 26.69 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: 320.82 million) (March
31, 2018: 215.22) to NPS for employees who had opted for the scheme. The Group has no liability for future fund
Dbenefits other than its annual contribution for the employees who agree to contribute to the scheme.

Provident Fund (PF)

The Group has recognised in the profit and loss account  1,069.79 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March
31, 2019: T 823.71 million ) (March 31, 2018: ¥ 730.44 million ) towards contribution to the provident fund.

Compensated absence

The Group has recognised ¥ 170.40 million in the profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March
31, 2019: T 174.07 million) (March 31, 2018: ¥ 53.85 million) towards compensated absences.

18.10  Segment Results

Pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI on AS-17 (Segment Reporting) - Enhancement of Disclosures dated April 18,
2007, effective from period ending March 31, 2008, the following business segments have been reported.

e Treasury: Includes investments, all financial markets activities undertaken on behalf of the Bank's
customers, proprietary trading, maintenance of reserve requirements and resource mobilisation from other

S banks and financial institutions.
L o~ f",\
Sth Floor, \\‘\{ﬁ\«}

Corporate / Wholesale Banking: Includes lending, deposit taking and other services offered to corporate

customers.

£y Vius,
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Retail Banking: Includes lending, deposit taking and other services offered to retail customers.
Other Banking Operations: Includes para banking activities like third party product distribution, merchant

banking etc.

7/
/
/

8
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Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2020 are set out below:
(¢ inmillion)

Business Segments Treasury Corporate/ Retail Other Banking Total
Wholesale Banking Banking Operations

Segment Revenue 118,905.25 170,401.49 59,161.77 2,977.86 351,446.36

Less: Inter-segment o - L e (55,515.21)

Revenue net of inter- segment . - . . : 295,931.16

Result (15,056.17) (244,883.17) (10,469.90) (450.87) (270,860.56)

Unallocated Expenses (21,671.86)

Operating Profit (292,531.93)
Income Taxes (65,236.68)
Extra-ordinary Profit/(Loss) 62,969.45
Net Profit (164,325.80)
Other Information: ‘ S o : . ,

Segment assets 718,964.42 1,258,777.91 503,345.05 1,773.61 2,482,860.98

Unallocated assets 95,460.66
Total assets ...~ _ o o 2,578,321.64
Segment liabilities 1,317,079.06 478,934.16 547,960.39 1,958.42 2,345,931.98
Unatlocated liabilities . ‘ . - 232,389.66
Total liabilities 2,578,321.64

Other banking operations includes income from bancassurance business ¥ 836.40 million during year ended March
31, 2020.

Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2019 are set out below:
(T inmillion)

Business Segments Treasury Corporate/ Retail Other Banking Total

Wholesale Banking Banking Operations

Segment Revenue 104,539.78 222,612.45 45,658.71 2,936.72 375,747 65
Less: Inter-segment o . o - o - (32,759.28)
Revenue net of inter- segment 342,988.37
Result 46,003.61
Unallocated Expenses (22,513.56)
Operating Profit 23,490.05
Income Taxes 6,397.39
Extra-ordinary Profit/(Loss) -
Net Profit 17,092.66
Other Information: . - .

Segment assets 1,302,564.99 1,979,830.69  486,554.09 2,939.84 3,771,889.61

Unallocated assets 36,706 .48
Total assets L - . 3,808,596.10
Segment liabilities 1,081,751.87 1,411,265.34 947,394.05 2,112.79 3,442,524.05
Unallocated liabilities o . . e 366,072.04
Total liabilities 3,808,596.10

“"“Otﬁgp%king operations includes income from bancassurance business ¥ 868.16 million during year ended March 31, 2019.
o, \(\i«i"\ \
o A
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Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2018 are set out below:

(T inmillions)

Business Segments

Segment Revenue
Add/ (Less): Inter-segment

Revenue net of inter- segment

Result

Unallocated Expenses
Operating Profit

Income Taxes
Extra-ordinary Profit/(Loss)
Net Profit

Other Information:
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

102212860 1714497.01 37137033 141115  3,109,407.09

Treasury Corporate Retail Other Total
/ Banking Banking
Wholesale Operatio
Banking ns
65927.05  166,354.92  29,72816 2,662.90 264,673.03
(9,044.10)
255,628.93
2046099 5475348  (5907.63) 122337  79,530.21
: e (17,484.85)
62,045.36
19,713.16
42,332.20

15,089.45

3,124,496.54
2,768,272.54

356,224.00
3,124,496.54

5,311.04

75107532 1,261,088

Other banking operations includes income from bancassurance business 2 767.80 million during year ended

March 31, 2018.

Notes for segment reporting:

1. The business of the Bank is concentrated largely in India. Accordingly, geographical segment results have not been reported in

accordance with AS-17 (Segment Reporting).

2. In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the Management and have been relied

upon by the auditors.

3. Income, expense, assets and liabilities have been either specifically identified with individual segment or allocated to segments on

a systematic basis or classified as unallocated,

4. The unallocated assets Includes tax paid in advance/tax deducted at source and deferred tax asset.

5. The unallocated liabilities include Share Capital, Reserves & Surplus and Tier 1 bond borrowings.

[nter-segment transactions have been generally based on transfer pricing measures as determined by the Management.
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18.11 Related Party Disclosures
The Bank has transactions with its related parties comprising of investing party, key management personnel and the
relative of key management personnel
As per AS 18 “Related Party Disclosures”, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014, the Bank’s related parties for the year ended March 31, 2020
are disclosed below:
Individuals having significant influence:
. Mr. Ravneet Gill, Managing Director & CEO (till March 05, 2020)
. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Administrator - Appointed by the Reserve Bank of India, (from March 06, 2020 till
March 25, 2020)
. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Managing Director & CEO (from March 26, 2020)
Investing Company
Investing party - State Bank of India Limited (SBI)
Key Management Personnel (KMP’) (Whole time Director)
. Mr. Ravneet Gill, Managing Director & CEO (till March 05, 2020)
. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Administrator - Appointed by the Reserve Bank of India, (from March 06, 2020 till
March 25, 2020)
. M. Prashant Kumar, Managing Director & CEO (from March 26, 2020)
The following represents the significant transactions between the Group and such related parties including relatives
of above mentioned KMP during the year ended March 31, 2020:
(¥ inmillion)
Items/ Related Party Investing Maximum Whole time Maximum Relatives of Maximum Enterprise
Category Party  Balance  directors/  Balance wholetime Balance  where relative
during the  individual duringthe directors/ duringthe  of whole time
year having year  individual year director having
significant having significant
influence significant influence
influence
Deposits # # - 12.65
Investment # #
Interest received #
Interest paid # 0.31
Receivable #
Payable #
Funded/Non #
Funded Exposure
taken

* Represents outstanding as of March 31, 2020

# As per RBI Circular, where there is only one entity in any category of related party, disclosure pertaining
to that related party other than the relationship with that related party

- *Represents outstanding as of March 31, 2020
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During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has contributed ¥ 405.42 million (previous year X 537.86 million) to
YES Foundation. YES Foundation is an independent public charitable trust which undertakes social charitable
activities. YES Foundation does not qualify as Related Party, as defined under the Accounting Standard 18 - Related
Party Disclosure and RBI guidelines.

The following represents the significant transactions between the Bank and such related parties including relatives
of above mentioned KMP during the year ended March 31, 2019:

(T inmillion)

Items / Related Party Whole time Maximum Relatives of whole Maximum Enterprise
Category directors / Balance time directors / Balance where relative
individual having  during the individual having during the of whole time
significant year significant influence year director
influence having
significant
influence
Deposits 3.06* 15.62
Interest paid 0.52
Receiving of services 5.46
Dividend paid 270.00

* Represents outstanding as of March 31, 2019

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Bank has contributed ¥ 537.86 million {previous year ¥ 452.13 million) to
YES Foundation. YES Foundation is an independent public charitable trust which undertakes social charitable
activities. YES Foundation does not qualify as Related Party, as defined under the Accounting Standard 18 - Related
Party Disclosure and RBI guidelines.

As per AS 18 “Related Party Disclosures”, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Group’s related
parties for the year ended March 31, 2018 are disclosed below:

Individuals having significant influence:

. Mr. Rana Kapoor, Managing Director & CEO

Key Management Personnel (‘KMP’) (Whole time Director)
o Mr. Rana Kapoor, Managing Director & CEO
Related party to key management personnel

¢ Late Mrs. Sheela Kapoor

¢  Mrs. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon (transaction till March 31, 2017)




Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The following represents the significant transactions between the Group and such related parties
including relatives of above mentioned KMP during the year ended March 31, 2018:

(T in millions)

Items/ Related Whole time  Maximum Relatives of whole Maximum Enterprise
Party directors/ Balance time directors / Balance v.vhere
Category individual having  during the individual having  during the relative of
significant year significant year Wh(g_e mtne‘
influence influence llrec. or
having
significant
influence
Deposits # # # # 6.02
Interest paid # #
Receiving of #
Services
Dividend paid # -

* Represents outstanding as of March 31, 2018

# In Financial Year 2017-18 there was only one related party in the said category, hence the Group has not disclosed
the details of transactions in accordance with circular issued by the RBI on March 29, 2003 “Guidance on compliance
with the accounting standards by banks”.

18.12  Operating Leases

Lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2020 was ¢3,940.53 million
(Previous year Rs 3,651.58 million, FY 2018 Rs 4,067.79 million). During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group
had paid minimum lease payment % 3,819.65 million (Previous year Rs 3,661.08 million, FY 2018 Rs 3,723.92 million).

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of future rentals payment on operating leases:

(T inmillion),

Lease obligations As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Not Jater than one year 3,370.46 3,501.92 3,711.47
Later than one year and not later than five years 10,123.52 9,817.78 14,691.30
Later than five years 13,749.82 12,418.84 16,627.33
TOTAL 27,243.80 25,738.54 35,030.10

T«ﬁ(ef are no undue restrictions or onerous clauses in the agreements.

]
)

Th%t{rms of renewal/purchase options and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements.
.
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1813 Earuings Per Share ('EPS’)
The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20,
“Earnings Per Share”. The dilutive impact is mainly due to stock options granted to employees by the Bank.

The computation of earnings per share is given below:
(T inmillion)

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Basic (annualised)

Weighted average no. of equity 2,928,382,648 2,309,296,728 2,292,768,279

shares outstanding

Net profit / (loss) (¥ ) (164,325.80) 17,092.66 42,332.20

Basic earnings per share (¥ ) (56.11) 7.40 18.46

Diluted (annualised)

Weighted average no. of equity 2,928,411,435 2,331,418,688 2,339,752,831

shares outstanding

Net profit / (loss) (¥ ) (164,325.80) 17,092.66 42,332.20

Diluted earnings per share () (56.11) 7.33 18.09

Nominal value per share (¥ ) 2 2 2

The difference between weighted average number of equity shares outstanding between basic and diluted in the
above mentioned disclosure is on account of outstanding ESOPs.

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per equity
share has been computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares options outstanding during the year,
except where the results are anti-dilutive. The dilutive impact is on account of stock options granted to employees
by the Bank. There is no impact of dilution on the profits in the current year and previous year.
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18.14

ESOP disclosures

Statutory Disclosures Regarding Joining Stock Option Scheme:
The Group has Five Employee Stock Option Schemes viz.

Joining Employee Stock Option Plan 1I JESOP 1),

Joining Employee Stock Option Plan HI (JESOP 111),

YBL ESOP (consisting of two sub schemes JESOP IV/PESOP 1)

YBL JESOP V/PESOP 11 (Consisting of three sub schemes JESOP V/ PESOP 11/ PESOP 11 -2010).

YBL Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (YBL ESOS 2018) [Consisting of YBL Joining Employee Stock Option
Plan, 2018 (JESOP 2018); YBL Performance Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 (PESOP 2018); and YBL MD&CEO
(New) Stock Option Plan, 2019 (MD&CEQ Plan 2019)]

Effective from June 13, 2018, all new options have been granted under the YBL ESOS 2018 (which inter-alia consists
of JESOP 2018, PESOP 2018 and MD & CEO Plan 2019). The YBL ESOS 2018 and plans formulated thereunder are in
compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time.
Source of shares are primary in nature, since the Bank has been issuing new equity shares upon exercise of options

JESOP 11 and JESOP HI were in force for employees joining the Bank up to March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007
respectively. Grants under PESOP II had been discontinued w.e.f. January 20, 2010. Grants under JESOP 1V /PESOP
I and JESOP V/ PESOP II -2010 had been discontinued w.e.f. June 12, 2018 pursuant to coming into effect of YBL
ESOS 2018. However, any options already granted under the abovementioned plans would be valid in accordance
with the terms & conditions mentioned in the plans

In accordance with the various Employee Stock Option Plans/ Schemes of the Bank as mentioned above, the
Employees can exercise the options granted to them from time to time:

JESOP/PESOP ESOP Scheme Exercise period

JESOP II 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP 111 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP JESOP IV 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP V 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
MD&CEO Plan 2019 20%, 30% & 50% each year, from end of 1styear from the Grant date
PESOP I 25% after each year from the Grant date
PESOP I 30%, 30% & 40% after each year from the Grant date
PESOP PESOP 1I - 2010 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 3rd year from the Grant date
JESOP 2018 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
PESOP 2018 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 3'd year from the Grant date
PESOP 2019 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 3'd year from the Grant date

- Options under all the aforesaid plans are granted for a term of 10 years (inclusive of the vesting period) and are
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A summary of the status of the group’s stock option plans as on March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2018
is set out below:

As at March 31, 2020
PESOP JESOP
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 35,019,115 18,254,826
Granted during the year 18,032,000 2,025,000
Exercised during the year 4,037,675 346,499
Forfeited / lapsed during the year 12,316,650 5,419,275
Options outstanding at the end of the year 36,696,790 14,514,052
Options exercisable 16,388,915 6,650,302
Weighted average exercise price (%) 63.56 80.52
Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding
. 2.39 1.77
option (yrs)
"As at March 31, 2019
PESOP JESOP
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year . 46,257,335 15,963,100
Granted during the year 365,000 5,940,000
Exercised during the year 9,265,020 2,800,774
Forfeited / lapsed during the year 2,338,200 847,500
Options outstanding at the end of the year _ 35,019,115 18,254,826
Options exercisable 18,701,265 3,901,451
Weighted average exercise price (%) 70.84 106.08
Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding
. 1.50 1.86
option (yrs)
As at March 31, 2018
PESOP JESOP
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 64,802,165 20,614,950
Granted during the year 3,847,500 1,697,500
Exercised during the year 15,590,830 4,947,350
Forfeited / lapsed during the year 6,801,500 1,402,000
Options outstanding at the end of the year 46,257,335 15,963,100
Options exercisable 18,413,585 2,277,350
Weighted average exercise price (3) 64.76 74.59
Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding
option (yrs) 1.78 1.82

The group has charged Nil amount, being the intrinsic value of the stock options granted for the year ended March
31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. Had the Bank adopted the Fair Value method (based on Black- Scholes pricing model),
for pricing and accounting of options, net profit after tax would have been lower by ¥ 505.40 million (March 31, 2019:
% 375.18 million) (March 31, 2018: X 414.98 million), the basic earnings per share would have been ¥ (56.29) (March 31,
2019:37.24) (March 31, 2018: X 18.28) per share instead of ¥ (56.11) (March 31, 2019: % 7.40) (March 31, 2018: T 18.46)
per share; and diluted earnings per share would have been ¥ (56.29) (March 31, 2019: ¥ 7.17) (March 31, 2018: % 17.92)

xmmbai-uOL .
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The following assumptions have been made for computation of the fair value of ESOP granted for the year ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Risk free interest rate 6.29%-923% 6.29%-9.23% 6.29%-9.93%
Expected life 15 yrs-7.5yrs 15 yrs-7.5yrs 15 yrs-7.5 yrs
Expected volatility 25.01%-48.72% 25.01%-48.72% 25.01%-48.72%
Expected dividends 1.10% 1.20% 1.20%

In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the Management.

18.15  Deferred Taxation

The deferred tax asset of T 82,809.96 million as at March 31, 2020, ¥ 25,374.71 million as at March 31, 2019 and ¥
8,762.42 millions as at March 31, 2018, is included under other assets and the corresponding credits have been
taken to the profit and loss account.

The components that give rise to the deferred tax asset included in the balance sheet are as follows:

(T inmillion)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,
2018
Deferred tax asset

Depreciation 585.78 597.38 418.59
Provision for gratuity and unutilized leave 322.73 39553 213.48
Provision for Non Performing Assets 60,164.53 9,779.42 2,930.53

Amortization of premium on HTM 132.39
securities 1,035.72 1,02576
Provision for standard advances 3,123.15 11,119.17 3,220.59
Other Provisions 18,481.38 2,447 48 953.47
Deferred tax asset 82,809.96 25,374.70 8,762.42

The Group has a total deferred tax asset of  82,809.96 million as at March 31, 2020. During the year ended March 31,
2020, the Bank has made loss of ¥ 164,180.31 million, however it had taxable profit in the year ended March 31, 2020.
The Bank believes that the stress is temporary in nature and would be rectified through infusion of fresh capital and
the liquidity initiative measures being undertaken. Based on detailed financial projections approved by the Board,
including plan for raising of deposits and other sources of funds for the next 3 years, the Bank is satisfied that with
the proposed capital infusion and the Bank’s strong customer base and branch network the Bank is expected to have
sufficient future taxable income to utilise the said deferred tax assets. The Bank as a result continues to carry such
deferred tax asset in its Balance Sheet, as there is reasonable certainty of its realization as specified in Accounting
Standard 22 (Accounting for Taxes on Income).

uring the quarter ended September 30, 2019, the Bank had elected to exexcise the option permitted under section
g lﬂEﬁA“A\x of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
%y = e ﬁ%c?’cérﬂp’ ly, the Bank had recognised Provision for Income Tax and re-measured its deferred tax assets basis the rate

gﬁﬁc}i{? in the aforesaid section and recognized the effect of this change by revising the annual effective income
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tax rate. The rate of income tax is changed from 34.944% to 25.168%. The re-measurement of accumulated deferred
tax asset had resulted in a one-time additional charge of ¥ 7,086.10 million.

18.16  Provisions and Contingencies

The breakup of provisions of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are
given below:

(T inillion)

Particulars For the year For the year For the year

ended ended ended

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,

2018

Provision for taxation (44,056.13) 6,397.39 19,713.16

Provision for investments 64,415.77 6,824.89 2,599.44

Provision for standard advances (19,410.78) 22,514.06 1,687.43

Provision made/write off for non performing 278,060.36 25,669.54 10,792.64
advances

Others Provisions* 4,115.69 2,768.12 462.88

TOTAL 283,124.91 64,172.99 35,255.55

* Other Provisions includes provision made against other assets.

18.17  Dues to Micro and Sinall Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from October 2, 2006,
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been °
655.70 million (March 31, 2019 % 437.40 million) (March 31, 2018 Nil) worth bills which were paid with delays to
micro and small enterprises. There have been ¥ 19.72 million worth bills remained unpaid as at March 31, 2020. There
have been no demand of interest on these payments. The above is based on the information available with the Bank
which has been relied upon by the auditors.

18.18  Provision for Long Term contracts

The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for -
material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and recorded adequate provision as required
under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including
derivative contracts) in the books of account and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the financial
statements.

1819  Disclosure on Complaints-

The Bank became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock exchanges of anonymous
whistleblower complaints alleging irregularities in the Bank’s operations, potential conflict of interest of the founder
Wy, and former MD & CEO and allegations of incorrect NPA classification. The Bank conducted an internal enquiry of
-2 @ se allegations, which was carried out by management and supervised by the Board of Directors. The enquiry
Ai:ius, 85 \ted in a report that was reviewed by the Board in November 2018. Based on further inputs and

iberations in
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December 2018, the Audit Committee of the Bank engaged an external firm to independently examine the matter. In
April 2019, the Bank had received the phase 1 report from the external firm and based on further review/
deliberations had directed a phase 2 investigation from the said firm. Further, during the quarter ended December 31,
2019, the Bank received forensic reports on certain borrower groups commissioned by other consortium bankers,
which give more information regarding the above mentioned allegations. The Bank at the direction of its Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) obtained an independent legal opinion with respect to these matters. In
February 2020, the Bank has received the final phase 2 report from the said external firm. Meanwhile, in March 2020,
the Enforcement Directorate has launched an investigation into some aspects of transactions of the founder and
former MD & CEO and alleged links with certain borrower groups. The ED is investigating allegations of money
laundering, fraud and nexus between the founder and former MD & CEQ and certain loan transactions. The Bank is
in the process of evaluating all of the above reports and concluding if any of the findings have a material impact on
financial statements/ processes and require further investigation. The Bank has taken this report with the newly
constituted Audit Committee and Board and is awaiting further guidance and recommendation.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank had received various whistleblower complaints against the Banks
management, former MD & CEO and certain members of the Board of Directors prior to being superseded by RBL
The NRC, basis investigations conducted by the management has, post its review, concluded that they have no
material impact on financial statements.

In January 2020, the then Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank highlighted certain concerns around
corporate governance and other operational matters at the Bank. The then Board decided to get this investigated by
an independent external firm. A preliminary report has been received by the Board. While most of the allegations are
unsubstantiated, the Board has requested the external firm for detailed recommendations highlighting areas where
corporate governance can be further strengthened.

18.20  Additional disclosure

Additional statutory information disclosed in the separate financial statements of the Bank and subsidiaries having
no material bearing on the true and fair view of the consolidated financial statements and the information pertaining
to the items which are not material have not been disclosed in the restated consolidated financial statement.

18.20.1 Credit/ Debit card reward points

Provision for credit card and debit card reward points for the year ended March 31, 2020

(T inmillion)

Particulars For the year ended March  For the year ended March

31, 2020 31,2019
Opening provision 233.67 v 112.12
Provision made during the year 166.98 180.73
Utilised/ Write-back of provision (57.79) (59.18)
Closing provision 342.86 233.67

The valuation of credit card and debit card reward points is based on actuarial valuation method obtained from an independent
actuary.

18.20.2  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

mount required to be spent by the Bank on CSR during the year ¥ 831.9 million (March 31, 2019
5.8 million ) (March 31, 2018 ¥ 772.2 million ).

=
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b)  Amount spent towards CSR during the year and recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss

account
on CSR related activities is ¥ 405.42 million (March 31, 2019 ¥ 537.86 million) (March 31, 2018 ¥ 452.13

million), which comprise of following -

(T i nillion)
March 31, 2020
In cash Amt. unpaid/
provision Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
On purposes other than (i) above 211.12 19430 405.42
(< inmillion)
March, 31 2019
Amt. unpaid/
In cash provision Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
On purposes other than (i) above 470.78 67.08 537.86
(¥ inmillion) March 31, 2018
In cash Amt. unpaid/ )
provision Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
Onjpurposes other than (i) above 397.89 54.24 45213
18.20.3  Un-hedged / uncovered foreign currency exposure of the Group
The Group’s foreign currency exposures as at March 31, 2019 that are not hedged/covered by either derivative
instruments or otherwise are within the Net Overnight Open Position limit (NOOP) and the Aggregate Gap limit,
as approved by the RBI. NOOP is ¥ 5,561.32 million as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 ¥ 2,206.32 million and
March 31, 2018 X 1,354.82 million).
18.20.4

Iirvestor Education and Protection Fistd

The unclaimed dividend amount due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during
c==theyear ended March 31, 2020 has been transferred without any delay.

406015
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18.21  Description of contingent liabilities

Sr. No. Contingent Liabilities Brief
1. Claims against the Bank not The Bank is a party to various legal and tax proceedings in the normal
acknowledged as debts course of business. The Bank does not expect the outcome of these

proceedings to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial
conditions, results of operations or cash flows.

2. - Liability on account of forward The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, currency options,
exchange and derivative forward rate agreements, currency swaps and interest rate swaps with
contracts. interbank participants and customers. Forward exchange contracts are

commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a future date at the
contracted rate. Currency swaps are commitments to exchange cash
flows by way of interest/principal in one currency against another,
based on predetermined rates. Interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash flows. The notional
amounts of financial instruments of such foreign exchange contracts
and derivatives provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s exposure to credit
or price risks. The derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or
unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market rates or
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favorable or unfavorable and, thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate

significantly.

3. Guarantees given on behalf of As a part of its commercial banking activities the Bank issues
constituents, documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of its customers.
acceptances, endorsements and Documentary credits such as letters of credit enhance the credit
other obligations standing of the customers of the Bank. Guarantees generally represent

irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event of
the customer failing to fulfill its financial or performance obligations.

4. Other items for which the Bank Purchase of securities pending settlement, capital commitments,
is contingently liable amount deposited with RBI under Depositor Education =~ Awareness
Fund (DEAF), bill re-discounting, Foreign Exchange Contracts (Tom &
Spot)
5 PF Liability In February 2019, the honorable Supreme Court of India in its judgment

clarified that certain special allowances should be considered to
measure obligations under Employees' Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the PF Act). The Bank has been
legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the
application of judgment retrospectively and as such does not consider
there is any probable obligations for past periods. Due to imperative
challenges, the Bank has not disclosed contingent liability amount for
S past liability.
. \/\\ Refer Schedule 12 for amounts relating to contingent linbility

5
Gty iUOr,




Restated Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 W/m

Prior period comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year classification.

For BSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants YES BANK Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

l/ WW Pocstiaut— Jkﬁw"v‘“‘“ /

Venkataramanan Vishwanath Prashant Kumar Anurag Adlakha Sh;{.mnand R
SheHigar
Partner Managing Director & CEO  Group Chief Financial Group Company
Officer Secretary
Membership No: 113156 (DIN: 07562475)
Mumbai

July 03,2020
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Chartered Accountants

5th Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telephone +91 (22) 4345 5300
Apollo Mills Compound Fax +91 (22) 4345 5399
N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

Mumbai - 400011

India

Independent Auditor’s Examination Report on Restated Standalone Financial Information in
connection with proposed further public offering of equity shares (the “Equity Shares”) by YES
Bank Limited (the “Bank’) (the "Issue'")

The Board of Directors

YES Bank Limited

YES BANK Tower; IFC 2, 15" Floor
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone (W)
Mumbai 400 013

3 July 2020

Dear Sirs

l.

We have examined the attached Restated Standalone Financial Information of YES Bank Limited
(the “Bank” or the “Issuer”) ), comprising the Restated Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Restated Standalone Profit and Loss Account and
the Restated Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the years ended 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018, the Summary Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, and other
explanatory information (collectively the “Restated Standalone Financial Information”), as
approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3 July 2020 for the purpose of
inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus (the “RHP”) / the Prospectus prepared by the Bank in
connection with its proposed Further Public Offering of equity shares (the “FPO”) prepared in
terms of the requirements of:

a. section 26 of Part 1 of Chapter III of the Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”);

b.  the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

c. The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATD), as amended from time to time (the
“Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility

2.

The preparation of Restated Standalone Financial Information is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors of the Bank for the purpose of inclusion in the RHP / Prospectus to be filed with
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), relevant stock exchanges and Registrar of
Companies, Maharashtra in connection with the proposed FPO. The Restated Standalone
Financial Information have been prepared by the management of the Bank on the basis of
preparation stated in note 18.2 to the Restated Standalone Financial Information. The Board of
Directors of the Bank are responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining adequate

B S R & Co {a partnership firm with Registered Office:
Registration No. BA81223) converted into 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus

B S R & Co. LLP (a Limited Liability, Partnership Apollo Mills Compound

with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181} N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011.India
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Management’s Responsibility (Continued)

internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of Restated Standalone Financial
Information. The Board of Directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the
Bank complies with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

We have examined such Restated Standalone Financial Information taking into
consideration:

a. the terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in
accordance with our engagement letter dated 16 June 2020 in connection with the
Issue; '

b.  the Guidance Note. The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical

requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI;

c. concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on
verification of evidence supporting the Restated Standalone Financial Information; and

d.  the requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR regulations.

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to
your compliance with the Act, the ICDR regulations and the Guidance Note in connection
with the FPO.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC 1), Quality Control of Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Service Engagements.

These Restated Standalone Financial Information have compiled by management from the
audited standalone financial statements of the Bank as at and for the years ended
31 March 2020, 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018, prepared in accordance with the Third
Schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 , which have been
approved by Board of Directors at their meeting held on 6 May 2020, 26 April 2019 and 26
April 2018 respectively. The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank used in the
preparation of these financial statements conform to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
from time to time, the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the extent applicable and
practices generally prevalent in the banking industry in India.

The audit report on the standalone financial statements issued by us was modified and
included the following matters giving rise to modifications to the auditor’s report on the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020:

a. that during the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank has breached the regulatory
requirements of RBI regarding maintaining the minimum CET I and Tier 1 capital ratios
which indicates the position of capital adequacy of a bank. The breach is primarily on
account of the increase in the provision for advances during the year ended 31 March
2020 as the Bank has decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage
Ratio on its non-performing asset (NPA) loans over and above minimum RBI loan level
provisioning. Inspite of the write back of the AT 1 bonds on 14 March 2020 there is a
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continned)

breach of Tier 1 capital ratio as at 31 March 2020. The CET | ratio and the Tier I capital
ratio for the Bank as at 31 March 2020 stood at 6.3%.and 6.5 % as compared to the
minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This implies that the Bank
will have to take effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. Further,
in view of the RBI norms relating to the breach of the aforesaid ratio, there is uncertainty
around RBI's potential action for such a breach. We are unable to comment on the
consequential impact of the above regulatory breach on these standalone financial
statements.

b. that the Bank became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock
exchanges of an anonymous whistle-blower complaint alleging irregularities in the
Bank's operations, potential conflicts of interests in relation to the former MD and CEO
and allegations of incorrect NPA classification. The Bank conducted an internal enquiry
of these allegations, which resulted in a report that was reviewed by the Board of
Directors in November 2018. Based on further inputs and deliberations in December
2018, the Audit Committee of the Bank engaged an external firm to independently
examine the matter. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank identified certain
further matters which arose from other independent investigations initiated by the lead
banker of a consortium on the companies allegedly favoured by the former MD and
CEO. In March 2020, the Enforcement Directorate has launched an investigation into
some aspects of .dealings and transactions by the former MD and CEO basis draft
forensic reports from external agencies which further pointed out to conflict of interest
between the former MD and CEO and certain companies and arrested him. In view of the
fact that these enquiries and investigations are still ongoing, we are unable to comment
on the consequential impact of the above matter on these standalone financial statements

6.  The audit report on the standalone financial statements issued by us also included a material
uncertainty related to going concern as at 31 March 2020 as follows:

o We draw attention to Note 18.3 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which indicates
that the Bank has incurred a loss of Rs. 16,418 crores for the year ended 31 March 2020.
Particularly during the last six months, there has also been a significant decline in the
Bank’s deposit base, an increase in their NPA ratios resulting in breach of loan
covenants on its foreign currency debt and credit rating downgrades resulting in partial
prepayment of foreign currency debt linked to external credit rating. The Bank has also
breached minimum Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Liquidity Coverage Ratio
requirements of RBI during the year and has provided an amount of Rs.334 crores for the
expected penalty on the SLR breach. The Bank has also breached the RBI mandated
CET1 ratio and Tier 1 capital ratio which stood at 6.3%.and 6.5% as compared to the
minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This requires the Bank to
take effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. The breach of the
CET! and Tier 1 requirements was also impacted by the decision of the Bank to enhance
its Provision Coverage Ratio, on a prudent basis, on its NPA loans over and above RBI’s
minimum loan provisioning norms. Further, on 5 March 2020, the Central Government,
based on the RBI’s application imposed a moratorium under section 45 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective 5 March 2020. The RBI, in
consultation with the Central Government and in exercise of the powers under section
36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, superseded the Board of Directors of the
Bank on 5 March 2020. The above indicators of financial stress and actions taken by the
RBI resulted in a significant withdrawal of deposits. On 13 March 2020, the Government
of India notified the Yes Bank Limited Reconstruction Scheme 2020 (‘the Scheme’)
[notified by the Central Government, in exercise of the powers conferred by sub section
(4) and subsection 7 of section 45 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949].
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Under this Scheme the authorized share capital of the Bank was increased to Rs.6,200
crores. The Bank has received capital from investors amounting to Rs.10,000 crores on
14 March 2020. The State Bank of India (SBI) and other banks and financial institutions
invested in the Bank at a price of Rs.10 per equity share of the Bank (Rs.2 face value
with a Rs.8 premium). SBI is required to hold upto 49% with a minimum holding of
26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are subject
to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they make in the Bank under this Scheme.
Existing investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares) in the Bank are also
subject to a lock in for 75% of their holding as per this Scheme. A new Board of
Directors, CEO and MD and Non Executive Chairman have also been appointed
pursuant to the Scheme. In addition, the moratorium imposed on the Bank on 5 March
2020 was vacated on 18 March 2020 as per the Scheme. RBI has also granied shori-term
funding to the Bank for the period of 90 days. The Bank has submitted a proposal
seeking extension for a period of one year. The draft reconstruction scheme proposed on
6 March 2020 had also envisaged that the Bank would be able to write back Additional
Tier 1 (AT1) securities amounting to Rs.8,695 crores to equity. However, the final
Scheme issued by the Government of India on 13 March 2020 does not contain any
reference to the write back of the AT1 securities. Based on the legal advice on the
contractual terms of the AT 1 bonds, the Bank has fully written back AT 1 bonds
aggregating to Rs. 8,415 crores on 14 March 2020. This action by the Bank has been
legally challenged through a writ petition in the Hon’ble Bombay High court. In line
with the RBI’s COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020,
the Bank has granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments
and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 to all
eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on 29 February 2020.

In the opinion of the Bank, based on the financial projections prepared by the Bank and
approved by the Board for the next 3 years, the capital infusion, lines of liquidity
provided by RBI and the reconstruction Scheme, the Bank will be able to realize its
assets (including its deferred tax asset) and discharge its liabilities in its normal course of
business and hence the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The said assumption of going concern is inter-alia dependent on the Bank’s ability to
achieve improvements in liquidity, asset quality and solvency ratios and mitigate the
impact of Covid-19 and thus a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant
doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as stated above, as
per management and the Board, there are mitigating factors to such uncertainties
including the amount of capital funds that have been raised in March 2020, the nature
and financial resources of new investors who have infused funds in the Bank, the new
Board of Directors, CEO and MD and part time Chairman appointed as per the Scheme
and the extent of regulatory support provided to the Bank by the RBI.

Our conclusion on the Standalone Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

7.
Opinion
8.
a)
b)
c)
9.
10.
11.

The audit report on the standalone financial statements issued by us also included emphasis
of matter as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

a) that the Bank has a total deferred tax asset of Rs. 8,281 crores as at 31 March 2020.
As per the requirements of AS 22 - Income Taxes, based on the financial projections
prepared by the Bank and approved by the Board of directors, the Bank has assessed
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The Bank expects to
have a taxable profit for the future years. Our conclusion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

b) the Bank had made an additional provision of Rs. 15,422 crores for the period ended
31 December 2019 on a prudent evaluation of the status of NP As based on
discussion with regulator over and above the RBI norms relating to the minimum
provision to be made by banks on their loans and advances. The additional provision
is judgmental based on the quality and status of specific loans identified by the Bank
as at 31 March 2020. We believe that this judgment exercised by the Bank is
appropriate. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

a) the standalone financial statements which describes the ongoing enquiry by the Bank
into certain anonymous whistle blower allegations. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
we report that the Restated Standalone Financial Information:

have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting
policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the financial
years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 to reflect the same accounting treatment
as per the accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2020;

do not require any adjustments for the matter(s) giving rise to modifications mentioned
in paragraph [5] above

have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note

The Restated Standalone Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that
occurred subsequent to the respective dates of the reports on the audited standalone financial
statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above.’

This report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the
previous audit reports issued by us nor should this be construed as a new opinion on any of
the financial statements referred to herein.

We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of the report.



BSR&Co. LLP

YES Bank Limited
3 July 2020
Page 6 of 6

Restrictions of use

2. This report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the RHP / the
Prospectus to be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of India, stock exchanges where
the equity shares are listed and Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra (RoC), as applicable, in
connection with the proposed FPO. Our report should not be used, referred to or distributed
for any other purpose without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022

Venkataramanan Vishwanath
Partner

Date: 3 July 2020 Membership No. 113156
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 20113156 AAAADZ5249



YES Bank Limited - Restated Financials
Restated Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(T in thousands)

Restated financial statements

As at As at As at
Schedule Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital 1 25,100,944 4,630,066 4,605,934
Reserves and surplus 2 192,161,992 264,411,895 252,976,864
Deposits 3 1,053,639,434 2,276,101,818 2,007,381,476
Borrowings 4 1,137,905,026 1,084,241,089 748,935,808
Other liabilities and provisions 5 169,461,829 178,876,786 110,555,951
TOTAL 2,578,269,225 3,808,261,654 3,124,456,033
ASSETS

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 24,393,460 160,917,748 133,086,175
Investments 8 439,148,259 895,220,327 683,989,387
Advances 9 1,714,432,943 2,414,996,024 2,035,338,628
Fixed assets 10 10,090,882 8,169,955 8,323,917
Other assets 11 330,767,131 220,980,231 149,460,437
TOTAL 2,578,269,225 3,808,261,654 3,124,456,033
Contingent liabilities 12 4,585,260,892 6,541,580,198 5,818,296,390
Bills for collection 51,201,926 50,592,373 19,355,641

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts forming part of 18

As per our report of even date attached.

For BS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

(AN —

Venkataramanan Vishwanath
Partner

Membership No: 113156

Mumbai
July 3, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

YES BANK Limited

Parcstiand

Prashant Kumar Anurag Adlakha
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 07562475)

At

Group Chief Financial Officer

Shivanand R{

Group Compan¥ Secretary



YES BANK Limited

Restated Standalone Profit And Loss for the period ended March 31, 2020

( < in thousands)

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Schedule Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
I.  INCOME
Interest earned 13 260,666,039 296,247,473 202,674,216
Other income 14 118,564,938 45,901,526 52,238,335
TOTAL 379,230,977 342,148,999 254,912,551
il. EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 192,613,725 198,157,160 125,303,624
Operating expenses 16 67,292,114 62,642,768 52,127,798
Provisions and contingencies 17 283,505,448 64,146,283 35,235,492
TOTAL 543,411,287 324,946,211 212,666,914
1.  PROFIT
Net profit for the year (164,180,310) 17,202,788 42,245,637
Profit brought forward 107,595,597 103,753,016 79,333,915
TOTAL (56,584,713) 120,955,804 121,579,552
IV. APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 4,300,697 10,561,409
Transfer to Capital Reserve 6,655,507 1,010,096 659,648
Transfer to Investment Reserve 147,226 6,707 -
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve - 539,066 -
Dividend paid 4,633,917 6,223,989 5,488,101
Tax on Dividend paid 952,516 1,279,652 1,117,377
Balance carried over to balance sheet (68,973,879) 107,595,597 103,753,016
TOTAL (56,584,713) 120,955,804 121,579,552
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts forming part of
Restated financial statements 18
Earning per share (Refer Sch. 18.6.39)
Basic (%) (56.07) 745 18.43
Diluted (%) (56.06) 7.38 18.06
(Face Value of Equity Share is ¥ 2/-)
As per our report of even date attached.
For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants YES BANK Limited }
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 A
Wy gt palar -
- E
Venkataramanan Vishwanath Prashant Kumar Anurag Adlakha Shivamand K Shettigar
Partner Managing Director & CEO Group Chief Financial Officer Group Cnmu, y Secretary

Membership No: 113156

Mumbai
July 3, 2020

(DIN: 07562475)




YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials
Restated Cash flow statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2020
( T in thousands)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before taxes (208,259,197) 23,573,471 61,943,094
Adjustment for
Depreciation for the year 3,356,319 3,015,420 2,309,704
Amortization of premium on investments 2,459,276 2,102,585 1,673,308
Provision for investments 64,819,073 6,824,889 2,599,443
Provision for standard advances (19,410,781) 22,514,059 1,687,427
Provision/write off of non performing advances 278,060,357 25,669,335 10,788,287
Other provisions ’ 4,115,686 2,767,116 397,075
AT1 Write-down (84,150,000) - -
(Profit)/I.oss on sale of land, building and other assets (3,282) (3,947) 12,892
() 40,987,451 86,463,128 81,411,230
Adjustments for :
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits (1,222,462,384) 268,720,342 578,642,909
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 54,542,767 38,016,714 (1,384,431)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments 241,926,711 (160,198,010) (104,836,672)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances 422,502,724 (405,326,931) (725,187,573)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other assets (108,247,100) (48,182,922) (24,532,910)
(i) - v, (611,737,282) (306,970,807) (277,298,677)
Payment of direct taxes (i) N e (5,655,486) (26,103,985) (22,889,711)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) (i+ii+iii) (576,405,317) (246,611,664) (218,777,158)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (5,339,514) (2,912,885) (3,900,382)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 65,547 55,372 89,251
Investment in subsidiaries (150,000) (1,185,000) (555,000)
(Increase) / Decrease in Held To Maturity (HTM) securities 147,017,008 (58,775,403) (82,552,484)
Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities (B) 141,593,041 (62,817,916) (86,918,615)
Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in Borrowings 141,354,847 313,708,193 241,003,504
Tier IT Debt raised - 30,420,000 70,000,000
Innovative Perpetual Debt (paid)/raised - (1,754,400} 54,150,000
Tier I Debt repaid during the year (4,024,500) (5,430,400) (2,489,000)
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital {net of share issue expense) 118,639,176 953,472 1,420,167
Dividend paid during the year (4,633,917) (6,223,989) (5,488,101)
Tax on dividend paid (952,516) (1,279,652) (1,117,377)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) 250,383,090 330,393,224 357,479,193
Effect of exchange fluctuation on translation reserve (D) (635,925) 587,809 65,803
01-07-20 (185,065,111) 21,551,453 51,849,223

Contd...




YES BANK Limited
Restated Cash flow statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2020
( ¥ in thousands)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1" 268,895,117 247,343,664 195,494,441
Cash and cash equivalents as at Mar 31" 83,830,010 268,895,117 247,343,664
Notes to the Cash flow statement:
Cash and cash equivalents includes the following
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 24,393,460 160,917,748 133,086,175
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31" 83,830,010 268,895,117 247,343,664
As per our report of even date attached.
For B SR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants YES BANK Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

N i Y S PV e

Venkataramanan Vishwanath Prashant Kumar Anurag Adlakha
Partner Managing Director & CEO Group Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 113156 (DIN: 07562475)

Mumbai

July 3, 2020
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Schedules forming part of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet
{ & in thousmnds)

Asat Asat Asat
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31,2018
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL )
Authorised Capital
30,000,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 2/- cach 60,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
20,000,000 preference shares of ¥ 100/- each 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital (Refer Sch 18.6.1)
12,550,472,231  equity shares of € 2/- each 25,100,944 4,630,066 4,605,934
(March 31, 2019 : 2,315,033,039 equity shares of ¥ 2/- each)
(March 31, 2018 : 2,302,967,245 equity shares of * 2/- each)
TOTAL 25,100,944 4,630,066 4,605,934
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
1. Statutory Reserves
Opening balance 48,934,100 44,633,403 34,071,994
Additions during the year - 4,300,697 10,561,409
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 48,934,100 48,934,100 44,633,403
11, Share Premium
Opening balance 100,987,679 100,058,339 98,679,248
Additions during the year (Refer Sch 18.6.1) 99,118,298 929,340 1,379,091
Deductions during the year 950,000 - -
Closing balance 199,155,977 100,987,679 100,058,339
111 Capital Reserve
Opening balance 5,534,577 4,524,481 3,864,833
Additions during the year (Refer Sch 18.6.3) 6,655,507 1,010,096 659,648
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 12,190,084 5,534,577 4,524,481
Iv. Investment Reserve
Opening balance : 232,904 226,197 226,197
Additions during the year (Refer Sch 18.6.4) 147,226 6,707 -
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 380,130 232,904 226,197
v Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance 613,295 25,486 (40,317)
Additions during the year (635,925) 587,809 65,803
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance (22,630) 613,295 25,486
VI Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Opening balance (25,323) (244,057) (160,135)
Additions during the year (Refer Sch 18.6.5) {15,533) 218,734 (83,922)
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance (40,856) {25,323) {244,057)
VIIL Investment Fluctuation Reserve
Opening balance 539,066 - -
Additions during the year - 539,066 -
Deductions during the year - - -
Closing balance 539,066 539,066 -
VI Balance in Profit and Loss Account {68,973,880) 107,595,597 103,753,016
TOTAL 192,161,992 264,411,895 252,976,864
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YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials
Schedules forming part of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet

{ T in thousands)

As at As al As at
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS
A, 1. Demand Deposits
i} From Banks 7,932,044 17,301,403 14,602,217
ii) From Others 87,061,069 268,119,467 273,655,030
1L Savings Bank Deposit 185,635,246 467,112,348 443,504,509
I Term Deposits
i) From banks 86,786,217 184,849,906 112,971,241
ii) From others (incl. CD's issued) 686,224,858 1,338,718,694 1,162,648,479
: TOTAL 1,053,639,434 2,276,101,818 2,007,381,476
B. 1 Deposits of branches in India 1,053,300,945 2,274,954,791 2,006,449,601
II.  Deposits of branches oulside India 338,489 1,147,027 931,875
TOTAL 1,053,639,434 2,276,101,818 2,007,381,476
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
1. Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) and Tier 1T Debt
A.  Borrowing in India
i) 1PDI 5,870,000 90,020,000 91,560,000
if) Tier Il Borrowings 177,759,000 180,759,000 152,339,000
TOTAL (A) 183,629,000 270,779,000 243,899,000
B.  Borrowings outside India
i) IPDI - - 325,875
ii) Tier I Borrowings 5,674,875 6,215,786 11,172,824
TOTAL (B} 5,674,875 6,215,786 11,498,699
TOTAL (A+B) 189,303,875 276,994,786 255,397,699
1L Other Borrowings
A.  Borrowings in India
D Reserve Bank of India 520,380,000 - 15,000,000
i) Other banks 18,350,000 57,147,925 15,811,399
1ii) Other institutions and agencies 278,921,592 345,669,057 187,167,910
TOTAL {(A) 817,651,592 402,816,982 217,979,309
B. Borrowings outside India TOTAL (B) 130,949,559 404,429,321 275,558,800
TOTAL (A+B) 948,601,151 807,246,303 493,538,109
TOTAL {I+11) 1,137,905,026 1,084,241,089 748,935,808

(1) Secured borrowings are X 524,379,868 thousands (March 31, 2019 : ¥ 4,996,813 thousands)(March 31, 2018 : * 46,463,203 thousands).

(2) Including ¥ 237,121,724 thousands of refinance borrowing (March 31, 2019: 3 302,872,244 thousands)(March 31, 2018: 123,216,106 thousands) ¥ 16,450,000 thousands (March 31 2019: ¥
16,450,000 thousnads)(March 31 2018: * 16,450,000 thousands) of Green Infrastructure Bonds raised to fund 'Green Projects’ and ¥ 21,350,000 thousands (March 31, 2019; ¥ 21,350,000
thousands) (March 31, 2018: * 21,350,000 thousands) of Long Term Infrastructure Bonds raised to finance affordable housing and infrastructure projects.

ity Gujarat to fund its growth.

nds of T 36,032,742 thousands (March 31, 2019: 332,909,865 thousands) (March 31, 2018: “38,974,842 thousands) of Medium Term Notes issued from International Business




YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials

Schedules forming part of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet
(T in thonsands)

As at As at Asat
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE S - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
I Bills payable 2,867,243 3,913,805 9,151,490
1L Inter-office adjustments (net) - - -
111 Interest accrued 22,639,407 37,455,379 21,932,830
v, Others (including provisions)
- Provision for standard advances 12,597,187 32,007,968 9,493,909
- Country risk provision 69,000 532,784 -
- Others 128,339,480 104,966,850 69,977,722
- Income Tax Provision 2,949,512 - -
TOTAL 169,461,829 178,876,786 110,555,951
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
1. Cash in hand 16,307,411 6,333,912 6,226,739
1L Balances with Reserve Bank of India
- In current account 43,129,139 101,643,457 108,030,750
- In other account - - -
TOTAL 59,436,550 107,977,369 114,257,489
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
I InlIndia
Balances with banks-
i) In current accounts 6,091,720 1,988,954 781,586
ii) In other deposit accounts 255,095 5,089 83
Money at call and short notice
i) With Banks - - -
i) With other institutions - - -
iii) Lending under reverse repo (RBI & Banks) 13,200,000 88,310,161 112,009,654
TOTAL (I) 19,546,815 90,304,204 112,791,323
I OQutside India
i) In current account 4,532,635 39,148,020 14,494,277
ii) In other deposit account - - -
iii) Money at call and short notice 314,010 31,465,525 5,800,575
TOTAL (IT) 4,846,645 70,613,545 20,294,852
TOTAL (I+1I) 24,393,460 160,917,748 133,086,175
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YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials
Schedules forming part of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet
( T in Housands)

As at As at : As at
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS (Net of provisions)
A. Investments in India
i) Government Securities 329,069,163 553,611,120 488,860,831
if) Other approved securities - - -
iii} Shares 243,865 429,168 643,782
iv) Debentures and bonds 74,399,345 154,985,441 145,045,609
v) Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures 1,986,700 2,240,000 1,055,000
Others (CPs, CDs, Security Receipts, Pass
vi) through certificates etc) 31,937,625 60,825,681 38,030,003
TOTAL (1) 437,636,698 772,091,410 673,635,225
B. Investments outside India
i) Government Securities - . 120,595,843 3,445,612
i) Shares - 9,421 -
iif) Debentures and bonds - 2,523,653 6,908,550
Others (CPs, CDs, Security Receipts, Pass
iv) through certificates etc) 1,511,561 - -
TOTAL (11) 1,511,561 123,128,917 10,354,162
TOTAL (I+1I) 439,148,259 895,220,327 683,989,387
SCHEDULE 9- ADVANCES
A. i) Bills purchased and discounted 22,086,320 42,078,951 39,543,292
i) Cash credit, overdrafts and loans payable on demand 342,942,031 412,651,470 349,496,606
iii) Term loans* 1,349,404,592 1,960,265,603 1,646,298,730
TOTAL 1,714,432,943 2,414,996,024 2,035,338,628
* Provision on Non Performing Advances (NPAs) Ias been netted off from Tern Loans
B. i} Secured by tangible assets (includes 1,301,095,908 1,961,505,002 1,477,676,098
advances secured by fixed deposits and
book debt)
ii) Covered by Bank/Government guarantees 2,720,758 10,366,160 5,996,099
i) Unsecured! 410,616,277 443,124,862 551,666,431
TOTAL 1,714,432,943 2,414,996,024 2,035,338,628

! Yueludes advances of ¥37,671,709.07 thousands (March 31, 2019: ¥ 128,510,880 thousauds) (March 31, 2018;° 337,552,952 thousands) for which
securiby documentation is either being obtained or being registered. As at March 31, 2020 advarnces amounting to ¥ 12,738,207.03 thousand (March 31,
2019 : ¥ 2,403,000 thousands) (March 31, 2018 : Nil) has been secured by intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc.

C L Advances in India
i) Priority sectors 470,973,962 539,338,050 446,472,144
i) Public sector 488,829 56,671 1,524,237
iii) Banks 1,119,061 674,817 1,214,227
iv) Others 1,100,969,962 1,686,228,220 1,442,062,406
TOTAL({]) 1,573,551,813 2,226,297,758 1,891,273,014
1L Advances outside India

i} Due from Banks 5,853 431,707 1,716,986
i) Due from Others 140,875,277 188,266,559 142,348,628

() Bills purchased and discounted - - -
(b) Syncticated and Term loans 35,862,373 30,796,065 142,348,628

(c) others 105,012,904 157,470,494 -
TOTAL (1) 140,881,130 188,698,266 144,065,614

TOTAL (I+1I) 1,714,432,943 2,414,996,024 2,035,338,628




YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials

Schedules forming part of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet
51 .
(< in thousands)

As at Asat Asat
Mar 31, 2020 NMar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS
1. Premises
At cost as on March 3ist of preceding year 378,031 378,031 378,031
Additions during the year - - -
Deductions during the year - -
Accumulated depreciation 1o date (21,006) (14,704) (8,402)
TOTAL(]) 357,025 363,327 369,629
1L Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures and software)
At cost as on March 31st of preceding year 18,108,761 15,232,744 11,745,713
Additions during the year 2,905,665 3,133,713 3,931,501
Deductions during the year (310,177} (257,697) (444,470)
Accumulated depreciation to date (13,904,030} (10,801,920) (7,994,083)
TOTAL (1) 6,800,219 7,306,840 7,238,661
TOTAL (I+11) 7,157,244 7,670,167 7,608,290
Capital work-in-progress 2,933,638 499,788 715,627
TOTAL 10,090,882 8,169,955 8,323,917
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS
L Interest Accrued 22,506,873 39,033,483 25,152,344
1L Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision) - 4,801,326 1,674,968
111, Deferred tax asset (Refer Sch 18.6.51) 82,809,960 25,329,143 8,717,588
. Non-Banking assets aquired in satisfaction of claims 353,000 353,000 364,790
V. Others 225,097,298 151,463,279 113,550,747
TOTAL 330,767,131 220,980,231 149,460,437
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
L Claims against the bank not acknowledged 612,500 519,157 116436
as debts
Jin Liability for partly paid investments - - -
111 Liability on account of outstanding 1,519,467,414 2,834,098,764 3,000448,825
forward exchange contracts
. Liability on account of outstanding
derivative contracts
- Single currency Interest Rate Swap 1,866,270,431 1,702,671,190 1,141,440,348
- Others 548,274,930 868,291,165 783,747,908
Ve Guarantees given on behalf on constituents
- In India 420,131,381 437,258,909 314,307,933
- Outside India - -
VL Acc.ept‘fmces, endorsement and other 198,799,106 390,140,737 411,689,385
obligations
VIL Other items for which the bank is
contingently liable
- Purchase of securities pending settlement 836,632 3,622,750 9,068,982
- Capital commitment 3,199,380 2,937,672 2,936,618
- Amount deposited with RBI under
Depositor Education and Awareness Fund 53,681 32,834 13,533
(DEAF)
- Foreign exchange contracts (Yom & Spot) 25,887,555 300,477,020 154,526,423
-Custody 1,727,883 - -
- Bills Rediscounting - 1,500,000 -
TOTAL 4,585,260,892 6,541,580,198 5,818,296,390

Canlmgenl Liability on account ofouts:‘nudmgfonumd exchnge contracis and single curvency interest rate swap as on March 31, 2020 includes notional amount of

424,532 thonsands and ¥543,032,121 thousands (Mar 31, 2019: ¥2,035,934,447 thonsands and 407,303,929 thousands) (March 31, 2018:°2,315,099,034 thousands
% m@é% 81( 6 thousands) guaranteed by CCIL representing 70.27% and 29.10% (Mar 31, 2019: 71.84% and 23.92%) (Mar 31, 2018: 77.16% and 27,92% )of tatal

lir f@zunhi\\f\\(lmuge contracts and single currency inferest rate swaps respectively.




YES BANK Limited - Restated Finanvials
Schedules forming a part of Restated Profit and Loss Account

( & in thousands)

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED
L Interest/ discount on advances/bills 212,611,879 229,226,405 154,782,364
15 Income on investments 42,609,208 60,484,215 41,025,311
Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of
TIL India and other inter-bank funds 2,103,677 3,975,738 5,160,730
. Others 3,341,275 2,561,115 1,705,811
TOTAL 260,666,039 296,247,473 202,674,216
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME
L Commission, exchange and brokerage 15,261,935 36,361,452 41,379,643
1L Profit on the sale of investments (net) 11,134,575 3,174,838 5,134,739
1L Profit/ (Loss) on the revaluation of investiments (net) - - -
v, Profit/(Loss) on sale of land, building and other assets 3,282 3,947 (12,892)
V. Profit on exchange transactions (net) 3,731,959 1,570,297 2,215,700
VI Income earned by way of dividends etc.
from subsidiaries, companies and/or joint
ventures abroad/in India - - -
VIL Miscellaneous income 88,433,187 4,790,992 3,421,136
TOTAL 118,564,938 45,901,526 52,238,335
Miscellaneons income for the period ended March 31, 2020 includes extraorinary income on account of write down
of Additional Tier I Bonds amounting to & 84,150,000 thonsands
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED
L Interest on deposits 120,052,790 136,871,140 93,834,137
11, Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-
bank borrowings/Tier I and Tier Il debt
instruments 66,661,229 60,764,723 29,840,501
1L Others 5,899,706 521,297 1,628,986
TOTAL 192,613,725 198,157,160 125,303,624




YES BANK Limited - Restated Financials
Schedules forming a part of Restated Profit and Loss Account

( T in thonsands)

Yor the year ended

For the year ended

Yor the year ended

Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018
SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES

L Payments to and provisions for employees 25,998,717 24,697,653 21,889,199
1. Rent, taxes and lighting 4,462,409 4,173,934 4,543,758
1L Printing and stationery 393,774 423,256 368,753
1v. Advertisement and publicity 274,273 648,283 959,102
V. Depreciation on Bank's property 3,356,319 3,015,420 2,309,704
VL Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 54,242 43413 19,848
VIIL Auditors’ fees and expenses 42,500 23,203 13,685
VIIL Law charges 151,949 90,931 60,940
X, Postage, telegrams, telephones, etc. 643,740 647,585 604,220
X. Repairs and maintenance 351,547 420,294 345,426
X1, Insurance 2,161,614 2,078,487 1,512,106
XIL Other expenditure 29,401,030 26,380,312 19,501,057
TOTAL 67,292,114 62,642,768 52,127,798

SCHEDULE 17 - PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES
I Provision for taxation (Refer Sch 18.6.33) (44,078,887) 6,370,684 19,697 457
1L Provision for investments 64,819,073 6,824,889 2,599,443
1L Provision for standard advances (19,410,781) 22,514,059 1,687,427
v. Provision/write off for non performing advances 278,060,357 25,669,535 10,788,287
V. Other Provisions 4,115,686 2,767,116 462,878
TOTAL 283,505,448 64,146,283 35,235,492
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

18. Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the restated accounts for the year ended March
31, 2020

Note 1. Statement on Material Adjustments and Regroupings

The Restated Standalone Financial Statements ‘consists of Restated Standalone Balance Sheet, Restated Standalone
Profit and Loss Account, Restated Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Restated Standalone Schedules to
Restated Balance sheet & Restated Profit and Loss Account as of and for the Fiscal Years ended, March 31, 2018,
March 31, 2019, and March 31, 2020 are collectively referred to as the "Restated Financial Information”.

Material Adjustments:

The accounting policies as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 are materially consistent with the policies
adopted for each of the previous financial years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. The Restated Standalone
Financial Statements have been prepared based on the respective audited Historical Financial Statements for the
Fiscal Years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31,2018,

The following accounting policy was implemented during the year ended March 31, 2020, which has no material
effect on the Restated Standalone Financial Statements:

Revenue recognition:

The Bank in FY20, has changed the methodology recognition of fee income such that a fee in excess of 2% received
upfront on the origination of a loan would be amortized over the life of loan. The impact of such change in
methodology for recognition of fees is not material and accordingly the same is not considered for Restated
Financials.

Non adjusting items:
1. Qualification in auditors’ report
a.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The auditor’s report. on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the
following qualifications, which does not require any adjustment in the Restated Standalone Financial
Statements

*  We draw attention to Note 18.3 of the standalone Financial Statements, which indicates that
during the year ended 31 March 2020, the Bank has breached the regulatory requirements of
the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') regarding maintaining the minimum Common Equity Tier
(CET’) 1 and Tier 1 capital ratios which indicates the position of capital adequacy of a bank.
The breach is primarily on account of the increase in the provision for advances during the
year ended 31 March 2020 as the Bank has decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its
Provision Coverage Ratio on its Non-Performing Asset (NPA) loans over and above minimum
RBI loan level provisioning, Inspite of the write back of the AT1 bonds on 14 March 2020 there
is a breach of Tier 1 capital ratio as at 31 March 2020. The CET1 ratio and the Tier 1 capital
ratios for the Bank as at 31 March 2020 stood at 6.3% and 6.5 % as compared to the minimum
requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This implies that the Bank will have to take
effective steps to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. Further, in view of the RBI
norms relating to the breach of the aforesaid ratios, there is uncertainty around RBI's potential
action for such a breach. We are unable to comment on the consequential impact of the above
regulatory breach on these standalone financial statements.

*  We draw attention to Note 18.6.69 to the Standalone financial statements, which discloses that
the Bank became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock exchanges of
an anonymous whistle-blower complaint alleging irregularities in the Bank’s operations,
potential conflicts of interests in relation to the former MD and CEO and allegations of
incorrect NPA classification. The Bank conducted an internal enquiry of these allegations,
which resulted in a report that was reviewed by the Board of Directors in November. 018:
Based on further inputs and deliberations in December 2018, the Audit Committee of the B
engaged an external firm to independently examine the matter. During the year ended
March 2020, the Bank identified certain further matters which arose from other independent
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

investigations initiated by the lead banker of a lenders’ consortium on the companies allegedly
favoured by the former MD and CEO. In March 2020, the Enforcement Directorate has
launched an investigation into some aspects of dealings and transactions by the former MD
and CEO basis draft forensic reports from external agencies which further pointed out to
conflict of interest between the former MD and CEO and certain companies and arrested him.
In view of the fact that these enquiries and investigations are still ongoing, we are unable to
comment on the consequential impact of the above malter on these standalone financial
statements.

2. Material uncertainty related to going concern

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the following
paragraph on material uncertainty related to going concern, which does not require any adjustment in the
Restated Standalone Financial Statements

1.  We draw attention to Note 18.3 of the Standalone Financial Statements, which indicates that the Bank has
incurred a loss of Rs. 16,418 crores for the year ended 31 March 2020. Particularly during the last six months,
there has also been a significant decline in the Bank’s deposit base, an increase in their NPA ratios resulting
in breach of loan covenants on its foreign currency debt and credit rating downgrades resulting in partial
prepayment of foreign currency debt linked to external credit rating. The Bank has also breached minimum
Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Liquidity Coverage Ratio requirements of RBI during the year and has
provided an amount of Rs.334 crores for the expected penalty on the SLR breach. The Bank has also
breached the RBI mandated CET1 ratio and Tier 1 capital ratio which stood at 6.3%.and 6.5% as compared to
the minimum requirements of 7.375% and 8.875% respectively. This requires the Bank to take effective steps
to augment its capital base in the year 2020-21. The breach of the CET1 and Tier 1 requirements was also
impacted by the decision of the Bank to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio, on a prudent basis, on its
NPA loans over and above RBI's minimum loan provisioning norms. Further, on 5 March 2020, the Central
Government, based on the RBI's application imposed a moratorium under section 45 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective 5 March 2020. The RBI, in consultation with the Central
Government and in exercise of the powers under section 36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949,
superseded the Board of Directors of the Bank on 5 March 2020. The above indicators of financial stress and
actions taken by the RBI resulted in a significant withdrawal of deposits. On 13 March 2020, the Government
of India notified the Yes Bank Limited Reconstruction Scheme 2020 (‘the Scheme’) [notified by the Central
Government, in exercise of the powers conferred by sub section (4) and subsection 7 of section 45 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949]. Under this Scheme the authorized share capital of the Bank was increased to
Rs.6,200 crores. The Bank has received capital from investors amounting to Rs.10,000 crores on 14 March
2020. The State Bank of India (SBI) and other banks and financial institutions invested in the Bank at a price
of Rs.10 per equity share of the Bank (Rs.2 face value with a Rs.8 premium). SBI is required to hold upto 49%
with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are
subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing
investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares) in the Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75%
of their holding as per this Scheme. A new Board of Directors, CEO and MD and Non Executive Chairman
have also been appointed pursuant to the Scheme. In addition, the moratorium imposed on the Bank on 5
March 2020 was vacated on 18 March 2020 as per the Scheme. RBI has also granted short-term funding to
the Bank for the period of 90 days. The Bank has submitted a proposal seeking extension for a period of one
year. The draft reconstruction scheme proposed on 6 March 2020 had also envisaged that the Bank would be
able to write back Additional Tier 1 (AT1) securities amounting to Rs.8,695 crores to equity. However, the
final Scheme issued by the Government of India on 13 March 2020 does not contain any reference to the
write back of the AT1 securities. Based on the legal advice on the contractual terms of the AT 1 bonds, the
Bank has fully written back AT 1 bonds aggregating to Rs. 8,415 crores on 14 March 2020. This action by the
Bank has been legally challenged through a writ petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High court.

In line with the RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020, the Bank has
granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable,
o falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 (later extended to August 31, 2020) to all eligible
m(jwfz}\« borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on 29 February 2020.
L& R the opinion of the Bank, based on the financial projections prepared by the Bank and approved by the
: -Board for the next 3 years, the capital infusion, lines of liquidity provided by RBI and the reconstruction
Sci‘ﬁeme, the Bank will be able to realize its assets (including its deferred tax asset) and discharge. its
ligbﬁlities in its normal course of business and hence the financial statements have been prepared on a'goin
Fpﬁcern basis. The said assumption of going concern is inter-alia dependent on the Bank’s ability to achi
iprovements in liquidity, asset quality and solvency ratios and mitigate the impact of Cov.
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material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, as stated above, as per management and the Board, there are mitigating factors to such
uncertainties including the amount of capital funds that have been raised in March 2020, the nature and
financial resources of new investors who have infused funds in the Bank, the new Board of Directors, CEO
and MD and part time Chairman appointed as per the Scheme and the extent of regulatory support
provided to the Bank by the RBI.

Our conclusion on the Standalone Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

3. Emphasis of matter paragraph in auditor’s report
a.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 included the
following Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, which do not require any adjustment in the Restated
Standalone Financial Statements

» that the Bank has a total deferred tax asset of Rs. 8,281 crores as at 3 1 March 2020, As per
the requirements of AS 22 - Income Taxes, based on the financial projections prepared by the
Bank and approved by the Board of directors, the Bank has assessed that there is reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realized. The Bank expects to have a taxable profit for the future years. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter

e the Bank had made an additional provision of Rs. 15,422 crores for the period ended 31
December 2019 on a prudent evaluation of the status of NP As based on discussion with
regulator over and above the RBI norms relating to the minimum provision to be made by
banks on their loans and advances. The additional provision is judgmental based on the quality
and status of specific loans identified by the Bank as at 31 March 2020. We believe that this
judgment exercised by the Bank is appropriate. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

b.  On the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 included the
following Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, which do not require any adjustment in the Restated
Standalone Financial Statements

e the Standalone financial statements which describes the ongoing enquiry by the Bank into
certain anonymous whistle blower allegations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter

4. Change in estimates

a. From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank considers slippages in Corporate NPAs post the
period end till the date of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related
provisioning requirements. Further, the Bank had decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision
Coverage Ratio on its NPA loans over and above the RBI loan level provisioning requirements. This
change is considered as change in estimates, and consequently no retrospective adjustments have been
made in this regard to the Restated Financials

b.  As part of the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise for the Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 2018-19 concluded

in November 2019, the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') has pointed out certain retrospective divergence in

.. respect of the Bank's asset classification and provisioning under the applicable prudential norms on

5,\3\\ income recognition, asset classification and provision as at 31 March 2019 and accordingly;. the'im act
\‘§ of such dlvergence is considered in the year in whmh the RBI has issued the repmt and consequent
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5. Material regroupings

Appropriate regrouping/reclassifications have been made in the Restated Financial Statements in accordance
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2019 (as amended), in respect of the corresponding items of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and cash flows in order to align them with the groupings as per the audited financial
statements of the Bank. Non-financial information including ratios, percentages, etc, have been updated to the
extent applicable, as a consequence of regroupings / reclassifications made, as indicated above.

6. Material errors

There are no material errors that require any adjustment in the Restated Standalone Financial Statements.
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.1

18.2

18. Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the restated accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2020

Background

YES BANK is a publicly held bank engaged in providing a wide range of banking and financial services.
YES BANK is a banking company governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The Bank was
incorporated as a limited company under the Companies Act, 1956 on November 21, 2003. The Bank
received the licence to commence banking operations from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on
May 24, 2004. Further, YES BANK was included to the Second Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 with effect from August 21, 2004. Also the Bank has a branch at International Financial Services Centre
(IFSC’) at GIFT City, Gujarat (‘IBU’). The Bank classifies transactions undertaken by IBU as overseas
operation.

On March 13, 2020, the Government of India notified the “Yes Bank Ltd. Reconstruction Scheme, 2020”
(Scheme). As per the Scheme, authorized capital has been increased from ¥ 11,000 million to ¥ 62,000
million. The State Bank of Iudia (SBI) and other investors invested in the Bank at a price of Z 10 per equity
share of the Bank Z 2 face value with a ¥ 8 premium). As per the scheme, SBl is required to hold upto 49%
with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are
subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing
investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares) in Yes Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75%

of their holding as per this Scheme.

Basis of preparation

The Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management from the audited standalone
financial statements of each of the years ended March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (together, the "Historical
Audited Financial Statements"). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank in
preparation of the Restated Standalone Financial Statements and are consistent with those adopted in the
preparation of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Restated Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared by the Bank in accordance with the
requirements of relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time in pursuance of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, to the extent applicable. The Restated Summary Statements have
been prepared by the Bank specially for inclusion in the offer document to be filed by the Bank with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) to facilitate the management discussion and analysis of the
Bank’s financial performance in connection with its proposed initial public offering, and were approved by
the Board on July 3, 2020.

The Historical Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements
prescribed under the Third Schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The
accounting and reporting policies of The Bank used in the preparation of these restated financial statements
conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the extent applicable and practices
generally prevalent in the banking industry in India. The Bank follows accrual method of accounting and
the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated by RBI guidelines.

Use of estimates

ilities) as of the date of the restated financial statements and income and expenses during the reporti g’«'l

enod. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the restated financial statement
i ! . o

rudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting

I !

s‘tlhéflates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.3 Assessment of Going Concern:

In the aftermath of the IL&FS crisis in September 2018, the financial sector had been heavily constrained
from a liquidity stand-point. Also, rising defaults in Power and Infrastructure sector in second half of 2019
have taken a toll on the stressed book of various Banks and NBFCs. In this macro environment, given its
low capital covers, the Bank has been adversely impacted on account of elevated slippages in its corporate
book especially in power and infra sector. The Bank reported a marginal profit for the quarter ended 30
June 2019 and reported loss in the quarter ended September 30, 2019. For the quarter ended December 31,
2019, as a consequence of increase in NPAs, additional recording slippages post period end and increase in
Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR), the reported loss was I 185,604 million. The Bank had also breached the
RB! mandated Common Equity (CET1) ratio which stood at 0.62% at 31 December 2019 as compared to the
requirement of 7.375%. The delay in capital raising triggered the downgrade of the Bank’s rating by Rating
Agencies.

In addition the deposit outflow in early October on account of a combination of events such as invocation
of Promoter’s pledged shares\IT glitches for Yes Bank (and others)\problems arising from financial
distress in Punjab and Maharashtra Cooperative Bank led to a continuing breach in Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (LCR) starting October 2019 and continues till date. The Bank’s deposit base has seen a reduction
from T 2,094,973 million as at September 30, 2019 to X 1,657,554 million as at December 31, 2019. The deposit
position as at March 31, 2020 is ¥ 1,053,639 million and has reduced further to ¥ 1,027,179 million as at May
02, 2020. The Bank had also prepaid ~USD 1.18 billion (% 85,000 million) by February 29, 2020. On March 5,
2020, the Central Government, based on the RBI's application imposed a moratorium under section 45 of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 for a period of 30 days effective March 5, 2020 which was lifted on March
18, 2020. Further, the RBI, in consultation with the Central Government and in exercise of the powers under
section 36ACA of the Banking Regulation Act 1949, superseded the Board of Directors of the Bank on
March 5, 2020. As per the moratorium a restriction was imposed on the withdrawal by depositors of
amounts up to ¥ 50,000 and the Bank also could not grant or renew loans or make any investments.

A new Board of Directors, MD & CEO and Non Executive Chairman have also been appointed under the
Scheme. The Bank has since obtained a Board approval to raise additional equity of upto Rs 150,000 million.
As a consequence of the reconstitution the Bank was deemed to be un-viable. Consequently, write-back of
certain Basel III additional tier 1 Bonds ("AT 1 Bonds") issued by the Bank had been triggered. Hence, such
AT 1 Bonds amounting to ¥ 84,150 million have been fully written down permanently. The Trustees, on
behalf of the holders of AT 1 Bonds have filed a writ petition seeking to challenge the decision of the Bank
to write down AT 1 bonds. The Bank, based on the legal opinion of its external independent legal counsel is
of the view that the merits of the Bank’s decision to write back the AT 1 bonds is in accordance with the
contractual terms for issuance of AT 1 Bonds. The Bank had also been granted a short term special liquidity
facility for 90 days from the RBI. The Bank also raised CDs of X 72, 000 million as at March 31, 2020. As a
consequence of the above factors the Bank’s loss post tax and AT 1 write back (exceptional income) is X
164,180 million. The Bank’s CET1 ratio is 6.3% (regulatory requirement with CCB of 7.375%) and tier 1
capital ratio is 6.5% (regulatory requirement of 8.875%) as at March 31, 2020. The Bank has substantially
enhanced its PCR and strengthened its Balance Sheet. However, RBI's current framework on 'Prompt
Corrective Action' (PCA) considers regulatory breaches in CET as a potential trigger. The Bank remains in
constant communication with RBI on the various parameters and ratios and RBI has not imposed any fine
on the Bank for the regulatory breaches.

wwwww ] The Bank’s deposit base has seen a reduction from X 2,276,102 million as at March 31, 2019 to ¥ 1,053,639
/ g & {52) i \ million as at March 31, 2020 (Position as at May 02, 2020 T 1,027,179 million). Consequently, the Bank's
arterly average ‘Liquidity Coverage Ratio’ (LCR) has fallen from 74% for the quarter ended December 31,
f\?. 9 to 40% for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 (regulatory limit 100%), position as at May, 02, 2020
' 34;8%(regulatory limit 80%). The Bank also has a deferred tax asset of X 82,810 million as at March 31, 2020
fﬁ;iough the Bank has made a loss of ¥ 164,180 million for the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank ha
ax asset in
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Balance Sheet, as basis financial projections approved by the Board of Directors, there is reasonable
certainty of having sufficient taxable income to enable realization of the said deferred tax asset as specified

in Accounting Standard 22 (Accounting for Taxes on Income).

In the month of March 2020, SARS-CoV-2 virus responsible for COVID-19 continued to spread across the
globe and India, which has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and Indian financial
markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic outlook and activities. On March 11, 2020,
the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization. On March 24,
2020, the Indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown which was further extended across the
country to contain the spread of the virus. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the
Bank's future results will depend on related developments, which remain highly uncertain.

The Bank witnessed significant deposit withdrawal immediately post the moratorium was lifted, however
the deposits stabilised post March 23, 2020. While further reduction in deposits lost post moratorium may
cast material uncertainty, particularly in the current COVID scenario, the Bank under the leadership of new
management and Reconstituted Board is confident that it can tide over the current issues successfully.

This belief is reinforced by the pedigree of new investors of the Bank (fed by State Bank of India and other
Financial Institutions). The Bank believes that the stress is temporary in nature and would be rectified
through infusion of fresh capital and the liquidity initiative measures being undertaken. Further, The
Bank’s management and board of directors have made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going
concern based on the detailed projected financial statements including plan for raising of deposits and other
sources of funds for the next 3 years and are satisfied that with the proposed capital infusion and the Bank’s
strong customer base and branch network, will enable the Bank to continue its business for the foreseeable
future, so as to be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in its normal course of business. Based
on the projection and assessment, the Bank believes that it will achieve operating profit in near term and
expects higher level of recoveries from NPA as significant portion of the stressed book already classified as
NPA, the Bank expected to be on a growth trajectory. As such, the financial statements continue to be
prepared on a going concern basis.

18.4 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank considers slippages in Corporate NPAs post the
period end till the date of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning
requirements. Further, the Bank had decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio
on its NPA loans over and above the RBI loan level provisioning requirements. As a result, the Bank
recognized additional provisions of ¥ 154,220.39 million for the period ended December 31, 2019. In line
with the RBI's COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and the
Governor’s Statement dated May 22, 2020, the Bank has granted a moratorium of six months on the
payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and August31,
2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on February 29, 2020. For all such
accounts where the moratorium is granted (except advances at IFSC Banking Unit (IBU)), the asset
classification shall remain stand still during the moratorium period (i.e. the number of days past-due shall
exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification under the Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning norms) and as the asset classification as of March 31, 2020 has been retained
based on the overdue status as at February 29, 2020. Hence on account of above mentioned RBI's COVID-
19 Regulatory Package, Bank has not considered slippages post March 31, 2020 till the date of results /
financial statement.

In line with RBI requirements, the Bank holds necessary provisions as at March 31, 2020 against the assets
‘“‘:t:\\zwhere the asset classification benefit has been extended on account of standstill requirements.
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18.5 Restated Significant accounting policies

18.5.1 Revenuie recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the

revenue can be reliably measured.

s Interest income is recognized in the profit and loss account on accrual basis, except in the case of non-
performing assets. Interest on non-performing assets is recognized as per the prudential norms of the
RBI. Penal Interest is recognized upon certainty of its realization.

e Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

e Commission on guarantees issued by the Bank is recognized as income over the period of the
guarantee.

¢ Commission on Letters of Credit (‘L.C’) issued by the Bank is recognized as income at the time of issue
of the LC.

¢ Income on non-coupon bearing discounted instruments is recognized over the tenure of the instrument
on a straight line basis. In case of coupon bearing discounted instruments, discount income is
recognized over the tenor of the instrument on yield basis.

e In case of Bonds and Pass Through Certificates (PTC), premium on redemption, if any, is amortised
over the tenure of the instrument on a yield basis.

*  Revenue from financial advisory services is recognized in line with milestones achieved as per terms of
agreement with clients which is reflective of services rendered.

o Facility fees and loan processing fees are recognised when due and realizable.
s Other fees and commission are accounted for as and when they became due.

18.5.2 Investmeiits

Classification and valuation of the Bank’s investments are carried out in accordance with RBI Circular
DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015.

Accounting and Classification

The Bank follows settlement date accounting for Investments. In compliance with RBI guidelines, all
investments, are categorized as “Held for trading” (HFT’), ”Available for sale” ('AFS’) or "Held to
maturity” (HTM') at the time of its purchase. For the purpose of disclosure in the balance sheet,
investments are classified as disclosed in Schedule 8 (‘Investments’) under six groups (a) government
securities (b) other approved securities (¢) shares (d) bonds and debentures (e) subsidiaries and joint
ventures and (f) others.

a) Cost of acquisition

Costs such as brokerage pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition and broken period
interest are charged to the profit and loss account as per the RBI guidelines.

b) Basis of classification

Securities that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified

under the HFT category. Investments that the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified under

&

% “ﬂ,«w""”*w;; {\}”‘\\ the HTM category, or as per RBI guidelines. Securities which are not classified in the above categories
?re classified under the AFS category.
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¢)  Transfer betweeit categories

Reclassification of investments from one category to the other, if done, is in accordance with RB]
guidelines. Transfer of scrips from AFS / HFT category to HTM category is made at the lower of book
value or market value. In the case of transfer of securities from HTM to AFS / HFT category, the
investments held under HTM at a discount are transferred to AFS / HFT category at the acquisition
price and investments placed in the HTM category at a premium are transferred to AFS/ HFT at the

amortized cost.

Transfer of investments from AFS to HFT or vice- a- versa is done at the book value. Depreciation
carried, if any, on such investments is also transferred from one category to another.

d)  Valuation

Investments categorized under AFS and HFT categories are marked to market (MTM) on a periodical
basis as per relevant RBI guidelines. Net depreciation, if any, in the category under the classification
mentioned in Schedule 8 (‘Investments’) is recognized in the profit and loss account. The net
appreciation, if any, in the category under each classification is ignored, except to the extent of
depreciation previously provided. The book value of individual securities is not changed consequent
to periodic valuation of investments.

Investments received in lieu of restructured advances scheme are valued in accordance with RBI
guidelines. Any diminution in value on these investments is provided for and is not used to set off
against appreciation in respect of other performing securities in that category. Depreciation on equity
shares acquired and held by the Bank under restructuring scheme is provided as per RBI guidelines.

Investments classified under the HTM category are carried at their acquisition cost and any premium
over the face value, paid on acquisition, is amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining period
to maturity. Amortization expense of premia on investments in the HTM category is deducted from
interest income in accordance with RBI Circular DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015.
Where in the opinion of management, a diminution, other than temporary in the value of investments
classified under HTM has taken place, suitable provisions are made. Profit/loss on sale of investments
in the 'Held to Maturity” category is recognised in the profit and loss account and profit is thereafter
appropriated (net of applicable taxes and statutory reserve requirements) to Capital Reserve.

Equity investments in subsidiaries/joint ventures are classified under ‘Held to Maturity’. The Bank
assesses these investments for any permanent diminution in value and appropriate provisions are

made.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Paper and Certificates of deposit being discounted instruments, are valued
at carrying cost.

Pass Through Certificates purchased for priority sector lending requirements are valued at Book Value
in accordance with RBI guidelines.

The market/ fair value applied for the purpose of periodical valuation of quoted investments included
in the AFS and HFT categories is the market price of the scrip as available from the trades/ quotes on
the stock exchanges and for Subsidiary General Ledger (‘SGL') account transactions, the prices as
periodically declared by Financial Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd.(FBIL).

The market/ fair value of unquoted government securities included in the AFS and HFT category is
determined as per the prices published by FBIL. Further, in the case of unquoted bonds, debentures,
pass through certificates (other than priority sector) and preference shares, valuation is carried out by
applying an appropriate mark-up (reflecting associated credit risk) over the Yield to Maturity ('YTM’)

rates of government securities. Such mark up and YIM rates applied are as per the lelevant rates

N {tspubhshed by FIMMDA /FBIL.

o Wwith RBI guidelines. The short position is reflected as the amount received on sale and is netted i
Investment schedule. The short position is marked to market and loss, if any, is Charged to the Proﬁt
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and Loss account while gain, if any, is ignored. Profit / Loss on settlement of the short position is

recognised in the Profitand Loss account.

Units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) held under AFS category are valued using the Net Asset Value
(NAV) shown by VCF as per the financial statement. The VCFs are valued based on the audited results
once in a vear. In case the audited financials are not available for a period beyond 18 months, the

investments are valued at T 1 per VCF.

Quoted equity shares are valued at their closing price on a recognized stock exchange. Unquoted
equity shares are valued at the break-up value if the latest balance sheet is available, else, at X 1 per
company, as per relevant RBI guidelines.

At the end of each reporting period, security receipts issued by the asset reconstruction company are
valued in accordance with the guidelines applicable to such instruments, prescribed by RBI from time
to time. Accordingly, in cases where the cash flows from security receipts issued by the asset
reconstruction company are limited to the actual realization of the financial assets assigned to the
instruments in the concerned scheme, the Bank reckons the net asset value obtained from the asset
reconstruction company from time to time, for valuation of such investments at each reporting date. In
case of investment in Security Receipts on or after April 01, 2017 which are backed by more than 50%
of the stressed assets sold by the bank or 10% of the stressed asset sold by the bank post April 01, 2018,
provision for depreciation in value is made at higher of - provisioning rate required in terms of net
assets value declared by Reconstruction Company(RC)/Securitization Company(SC) or the
provisioning rate as per the extant asset classification and provisioning norms as applicable to the
underlying loans, assuming that the loan notionally continue in the books of the Bank. All other
investments in the Security Receipts are valued as per the NAV obtained from issuing RC/SC.

Investments in quoted Mutual Fund (MF) Units are valued at the latest repurchase price/net asset
value declared by the mutual fund. Investments in un-quoted MF Units are valued on the basis of the
latest re-purchase price declared by the MF in respect of each particular Scheme.

Investment in listed instruments of Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)/Infrastructure Investment
Trust (INVIT) is valued at closing price on a recognized stock exchange with the higher volumes. In
case the instruments were not traded on any stock exchange within 15 days prior to date of valuation,
valuation is done based on the latest NAV (not older than 1 year) submitted by the valuer.

Sovereign foreign currency bonds are valued using Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader (CBBT) price
or Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVAL) price or on Treasury curve in the chronological order based on
availability.

Non- Sovereign foreign currency Bonds are valued using either Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader
(CBBT) price, Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVAL) price , Bloomberg Generic price (BGN) , Last
available CBBT pricing for the instrument or Proxy Bond Pricing from Bloomberg in the chronological
order based on availability.

Masala bonds are valued using either Composite Bloomberg Bond Trader (CBBT) price, Bloomberg
Valuation Service (BVAL) price or as per FIMMDA guided valuation methodology for unquoted bonds
in the chronological order based on availability.

Special bonds such as oil bonds, fertilizer bonds, UDAY bonds etc. which are directly issued by
Government of India (GOT’) is valued based on FBIL valuation.

Equity shares in the Banks demat account, acquired through exercise of pledge, is not accounted as
investments. Upon sale of the pledged shares, the proceeds are utilized to offset the borrower’s liability

Non-performing investments are identified and depreciation / provision are made thereon based on
the RBI guidelines. Based on management assessment of impairment, the Bank additionally creates

orf

provision over and above the RBI guidelines. The depreciation / provision on such n

investments are not set off against the appreciation in respect of other performing se¢
on non-performing investments is not recognised in the Profit and Loss account until r
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e)  Profit/Loss on sale of Investients

Profit/Loss on sale of Investments in the HTM category is recognized in the profit and loss account
and profit thereafter is appropriated (net of applicable taxes and statutory reserve requirements) to
Capital Reserve. Profit/Loss on sale of investments in HFT and AFS categories is recognized in the
Profit and Loss account.

P Accounting for repos / reverse repos

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Repos) and securities purchased under agreements to
resell (Reverse Repos) including liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) with RBI are treated as
collateralized borrowing and lending transactions respectively in accordance with RBI master circular
No. DBR.No.BP.BC.6/21.04.141/2015-16 dated 1 July 2015. The first leg of the repo transaction is
contracted at the prevailing market rates. The difference between consideration amounts of first and
second (reversal of first) leg reflects interest and is recognized as interest income/expense over the
period of transaction.

Bank also undertakes Repo and Reverse repo transactions from IFSC Banking Unit in GIFT City in
Foreign currency Sovereign Securities and accounting is similar to the domestic repo transactions.

& Investment fluctuation reserve

With a view to building up of adequate reserves to protect against increase in yields, RBI through
circular number RBI/2017-18/147 DBR.No.BP.BC.102/21.04.048/2017-18 dated April 2, 2018, advised
all banks to create an IFR with effect from the FY 2018-19.

Transferred to IFR will be lower of the following (i) net profit on sale of investments during the year or
(ii) net profit for the year less mandatory appropriations; until the amount of IFR is at least 2 percent of
the HFT and AFS portfolio, on a continuing basis.

18.5.3 Advances

Accounting and classification

Advances are classified as performing and non-performing based on the relevant RBI guidelines.
Advances are stated net of specific provisions, interest in suspense, inter-bank participation certificates
issued, direct assignment and bills rediscounted.

Asset classification
Provisioning

Provisions in respect of non-performing advances are made based on management’s assessment of the
degree of impairment of the advances, subject to the minimum provisioning level prescribed in relevant RBI
guidelines. The specific provision levels for retail non-performing assets are also based on the nature of
product and delinquency levels. Specific provisions in respect of non-performing advances are charged to
the Profit and Loss account and included under Provisions and Contingencies. From the quarter ended
December 31, 2019, the Bank consider slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end till the date of
results / restated financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning requirements.

In accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and
April 17, 2020, the Bank has granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all installments and /
or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 ((fater extended to August 31,
_2020) to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on February 29, 2020. For all such
- “%.\C\counts where the moratorium is granted (except advances at IFSC Banking Unit (IBU)), the asset
issification as of March 31, 2020 has been retained based on the overdue status as at February 29,2020. As
consequence the Bank has not recognized any slippage in asset classification from standard to NPA post
uary 29, 2020 on account of moratorium. :




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.5.4

As per the RBI guidelines a general provision is made on all standard advances, including provision for
borrowers having unhedged foreign currency exposure and for credit exposures computed as per the
current marked to market values of interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts. These also
include provision for stressed sector exposures and provision for incremental exposure of the banking
system to a specified borrower beyond Normally Permitted Lending Limit (NPLL) in proportion to bank’s
funded exposure to specified borrower. Such provisions are included in Schedule 5 - ‘Other liabilities &
provisions - Others’.

In respect of restructured standard and non performing advances, provision is made for the present value of
I F p

principal and interest component sacrificed at the time of restructuring the assets, based on the RBI

guidelines.

Accounts are written-off in accordance with the Bank’s policies. Recoveries from bad debts written-off are
recognised in the Profit and Loss account and included under other income.

In case of loans sold to asset reconstruction company, if consideration is more than net book value, the Bank
records the security receipts as investment at Net Book Value as per RBI guidelines.

The Bank has in place a Country Risk management policy as part of its Board approved Credit policy, which
is based on extant regulatory guidelines and addresses the identification, measurement, monitoring and
reporting of country risk. Countries are categorized into seven risk categories, viz. Insignificant, Low Risk,
Moderately Low Risk, Moderate Risk, Moderately Risk, High Risk and Very High Risk. The Bank calculates
direct and indirect country risk in line with the policy requirements. Indirect exposure is reckoned at 50% of
the exposure in case of countries where the net funded exposure exceeds 1% of the Bank’s total assets.
Further, if the net funded exposure of the Bank in respect of each country exceeds 1% of the Bank’s total
assets, provisioning is required to be made on exposure to such countries. Depending on the risk category of
the country, provisioning is done on a graded scale ranging from 0.25% to 100% for exposures with
contractual maturity greater than or equal to 180 days. In respect of short-termy exposures with contractual
maturity less than 180 days, 25% of the normal provision requirement is held.

Transactions involving foreign exchange

Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Income and expenditure items of integral foreign operations
(representative offices) are translated at the daily average closing rates and of non-integral foreign
operations (foreign branches) at the monthly average closing rates.

Premia/discounts on foreign exchange swaps, that are used to hedge risks arising from foreign currency
assets and labilities, are amortized over the life of the swap.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the balance sheet date at rates notified by
the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India (FEDATI’). Foreign exchange contracts are stated at net
present value using LIBOR/SWAP curves of the respective currencies with the resulting unrealised gain or
loss being recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and correspondingly in other assets (representing
positive Mark-to-Market) and in other liabilities (representing negative Mark-to-Market (MTM)) on a gross
basis.

In accordance with AS 11 ‘The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, contingent liabilities in
respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts, derivatives, guarantees, endorsements and
other obligations are stated at the exchange rates notified by FEDAI corresponding to the balance sheet
date.

'B\oth monetary and non-monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations

translated at closing exchange rates notified by FEDAI at the Balance Sheet date and the resultmg profit

ss arising from exchange differences are accumulated in the Foreign Currency Transla’uon Account
il the disposal of the net investment in the non-integral foreign operations. '
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18.5.5

18.5.6

Y : X i
’§§ fer the RBI guidelines on "Prudential Norms for Off-balance Sheet Exposures of Banks a general‘

In accordance with the RBI clarification, the Bank does not recognise in the profit and loss account the
roportionate exchange gains or losses held in the foreign currency translation reserve on repatriation of
ge g p;

profits from overseas operations.

Currency future contracts are marked to market daily using settlement price on a trading day, which is the
closing price of the respective future contracts on that day. While the daily settlement prices is computed
on the basis of weighted average price of such contract, the final settlement price is taken as the RBI
reference rate on the last trading day of the future contract or as may be specified by the relevant authority
from time to time. All open positions are marked to market based on the settlement price and the resultant
marked to market profit / loss is daily set.

Earnings per share

The Bank reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)
20, “Earnings per Share” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. Basic earnings per equity

share have been computed by dividin cd average number of

o3
=3

equity shares outstanding for the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed using the weighted average number of equity
shares and dilutive potential equity shares options outstanding during the period except where the results
are anti-dilutive.

Accounting for derivative transactions

Derivative transactions comprises forward rate agreements, swaps and option contracts. The Bank
undertakes derivative transactions for market making/ trading and hedging on-balance sheet assets and
liabilities. All market making/trading transactions are marked to market on a monthly basis and the
resultant unrealized gains/losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Derivative transactions that are undertaken for hedging are accounted for on accrual basis except for the
transaction designated with an asset or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost or market
value in the financial statements, which are accounted similar to the underlying asset or liability.

Cross currency interest rate swaps which are used by the Bank to hedge its foreign currency borrowings
have been designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at fair value. The corresponding gain or loss is
recognised as cash flow hedge reserve. Further to match profit/ loss on account of revaluation of foreign
currency borrowing, the corresponding amount is recycled from cash flow hedge reserve to Profit and Loss
account.

The Bank follows the option premium accounting framework prescribed by FEDAI SPL- circular dated
Dec 14, 2007. Premium on option transaction is recognized as income/expense on expiry or early
termination of the transaction. Mark to market (MTM) gain/loss (adjusted for premium received/paid on
option contracts) is recorded under 'Other Income’.

The amounts received/paid on cancellation of option contracts are recognized as realized gains/losses on
options. Charges receivable/payable on cancellation/ termination of foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps are recognized as income/ expense on the date of cancellation/ termination under ‘Other
Income’.

Valuation of Interest Rate Futures (IRF) is carried out on the basis of the daily settlement price of each
contract provided by the exchange.

The requirement for collateral and credit risk mitigation on derivative contracts is assessed ba

nternal credit policy. Overdue if any, on account of derivative transactions are accounted in dccordanc,‘
w\ﬂh extant RBI guidelines. '
‘A

ision is made on the current gross MTM gain of the contract for all outstanding interest raté and
Fdl/elgn exchange derivative transactions.
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18.5.7  Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only
when it increases the future benefit /functioning capability from / of such assets.

18.5.8  Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method, over estimated useful lives, as determined
by the management, at the rates mentioned below-

Class of asset Useful life of Assets Useful life of Assets as per
: as per Companies Bank's Accounting Policy
Act, 2013
Owned Premises 60 years 60 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years
Computer hardware! 6 years 3 years
Computer software * 6 years 4 years
Vehicles! 8 years 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 10 years
Automated Teller Machines (ATMs")! 15 years 10 years
Leasehold improvements to premises - Over the lease period or 9
years whichever is less.

*As per RBI Guidelines.

1 Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013,

s Assets costing up to ¥ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

e  For assets purchased/ sold during the year, depreciation is being provided on pro rata basis by
the Bank.

¢ Improvements to leasehold assets are depreciated over the remaining period of lease

¢ Reimbursement, if any, is recognised on receipt and is adjusted to the book value of asset and
depreciated over the balance life of the asset

»  Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of the asset, the unamortised depreciable
amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset

e The useful life of assets is based on historical experience of the Bank, which is different from the
useful life as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

18.5.9  Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
n amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net
ézxelling price and its value in use. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is recognised
"~ ¢ &debiting the profit and loss account and is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of

-ty

hassets exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets.
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18.5.10 Employee benefits
Employee Stock Option Scheme ('ESOS’)

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for the grant of options to acquire equity shares
of the Bank to its employees. The options granted to employees vest in a graded manner and these may be
exercised by the employees within specified periods.

Measurement of the employee share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. The Bank measures compensation cost
relating to employee stock options using the intrinsic value method. Compensation cost is measured by the
excess, if any, of the fair market price of the underlying stock (i.e. the last closing price on the stock
exchange on the day preceding the date of grant of stock options) over the exercise price. The exercise price
of the Bank’s stock option is the last closing price on the stock exchange on the day preceding the date of
grant of stock options and accordingly there is no compensation cost under the intrinsic value method.

Conipensated absence

The employees of the Bank are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/unutilized leave subject to
a maximum limijt. The employees cannot encash unavailed/unutilized leave. The Bank provides for leave
encashment / compensated absences based on an independent actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date,
which includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest rates and leave
utilisation.

Gratuity

The Bank provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or
on termination of employment for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ eligible salary payable for each
completed year of service if the service is more than 5 years. The Bank accounts for the liability for future
gratuity benefits using the projected unit cost method based on annual actuarial valuation,

The defined gratuity benefit plans are valued by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date using
the projected unit credit method as per the requirement of AS-15, Employee Benefits, to determine the
present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related service costs. Under this method, the
determination is based on actuarial calculations, which include assumptions about demographics, early
retirement, salary increases and interest rates. Actuarial gain or loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss
account.

Provident fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund,
a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Bank contribute monthly at a pre
determined rate. Contribution to provident fund are recognized as expense as and when the services are
rendered. The Bank has no liability for future provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

In February 2019, the honorable Supreme Court of India in its judgment clarified that certain special
allowances should be considered to measure obligations under Employees' Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the PF Act). The Bank has been legally advised that there are
interpretative challenges on the application of judgment retrospectively and as such does not consider there

s any probable obligations for past periods. The Bank has given effect of this judgment from April 01, 2019
| '\\\“@ fospectively.
it “»“Z”‘E
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National Pension Systemn (NPS)

The NPS is a defined contribution retirement plan. The primary objective is enabling systematic savings
and to provide retirees with an option to achieve financial stability. Pension contributions are invested in
the pension fund schemes. The Bank has no liability for future fund benefits other than the voluntary

contribution made by employees who agree to contribute to the scheme.

18.5.11 Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account on

a straight line basis over the lease term in accordance with Accounting Standard -19, Leases.

18.5.12 Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax comprises of the amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under. Deferred income
taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for the future tax consequences of timing differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be
realized in future. In case of unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, all
deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets supported by
convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted
to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain to be realized.

18.5.13 Provisions and contingent assets/liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Bank or a present obligation that arises from past events that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made. The Bank does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses

its existence in the restated financial statements

In accordance with AS 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Bank creates a
provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is

reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the restated financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

18.5.14 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money
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18.5.16  Debit and credit cards reward points

The Bank estimates the probable redemption of debit and credit card reward points and cost per point
using actuarial valuation method by employing an independent actuary, which includes assumptions such
as mortality, redemption and spends.

Provisions for liabilities on said reward points are made based on the actuarial valuation report as
furnished by the said independent actuary and included in other liabilities.

18.5.17 Bullion

The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis for selling to its customers.
The imports are typically on a back-to-back basis and are priced to the customer based on a price quoted by
the supplier. The Bank earns a fee on such bullion transactions. The fee is classified in other income. The
Bank also deals in bullion on a borrowing and lending basis and the interest paid / received thereon is
classified as interest expense / income respectively.

18.5.18 Siare issue expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Share Premium Account in terms of Section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

18.5.19 Segnent information

The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with AS-17, Segment Reporting and as per
guidelines issued by RBI.

18.5.20  Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)

The Bank, in accordance with RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/ 04.09.01/2015-16 dated April 7, 2016,
trades in priority sector portfolio by selling or buying PSLC. There is no transfer of risks or loan assets in
these transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an “Expense’ and the fee received from
the sale of PSLCs is treated as ‘Other Income’.
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18.6 Capital

18.6.1  Equity Issue

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has issued 231,055,018 equity shares of X 2 each
for cash pursuant to a Qualified Institutions Placement (QIP) at X 83.55 aggregating to X 19,304.64 million.

On March 13, 2020, the Government of India notified the “Yes Bank Ltd. Reconstruction Scheme, 2020
(Scheme). As per the Scheme, authorized capital has been increased from ¥ 11,000 million to ¥ 62,000
million (X 8,000 million as at March 31, 2019). The State Bank of India (SBI) and other investors invested in
the Bank at a price of ¥ 10 per equity share of the Bank (X 2 face value with a ¥ 8 premium). As per the
scheme, SBI is required to hold upto 49% with a minimum holding of 26% by SBI in the Bank (which is
subject to a 3 year lock in). Other investors are subject to a 3 year lock in for 75% of the investments they
make in the Bank under this Scheme. Existing investors (other than investors holding less than 100 shares)
in YES Bank are also subject to a lock in for 75% of their holding as per this Scheme. Further, as per final
reconstruction scheme of the Bank, Bank has issued 10,000 million equity shares at X 10 each aggregating to
< 100,000.00 million.

The share allotment under reconstruction scheme is given below:

Sr No. > Name of Investor Subscription Amount Number of Equity Shares
- Rin'million)- Allotted (in Million)
1 State Bank of India 60,500 6,050
2 Housing Development Finance 10,000 1,000
Corporation Limited
3 ICICI Bank Limited 10,000 1,000
4 Axis Bank Limited 6,000 600
5 Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 5,000 500
6 The Federal Bank Ltd 3,000 300
7 Bandhan Bank Limited 3,000 300
8 IDFC First Bank Limited 2,500 250
TOTAL 100,000 10,000

The Bank accreted ¥ 79,550.00 million (net of estimated share issue expenses of I 450.00 million) as
premium. The Bank also issued 4,384,174 shares pursuant to the exercise of stock option aggregating to ¥
284.53 million. During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the Bank has issued 12,065,794 shares
pursuant to the exercise of stock option aggregating to ¥ 953.47 million.

On September 8, 2017, the shareholders of the Bank approved the sub-division of each equity share
having a face value of ¥ 10 into five equity shares having a face value of ¥ 2 each through postal
ballot. The record date for the sub-division was September 22, 2017. All shares and per share
information in the restated financial results reflect the effect of such sub-division.

gfé;““ ‘“‘;Qmmg the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Bank has issued 20,538,180 shares pursuant to the
wmm Ye E‘rclse of stock option aggregating to ¢ 1,378.65 million.
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Movement in Share Capital

(¥ in million)

Share Capital As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2018
Opening Share Capital 4,630.07 4,605.93 4,564.86
Addition due to exercise of Stock Option 8.76 2413 41.07
Addition due to shares issued for QIP 462,11 - -
Addition due to shares issued under Reconstruction
scheme 20,000.00 -
Closing Share Capital 25,100.94 4,630.07 4,605.93

18.6.2  Proposed Dividend:

The Bank has made loss during the year and as consequence to that the Bank has not declared any
dividend. Further, the Reserve Bank of India, vide its circular dated April 17, 2020, has declared that banks
shall not make any further dividend payouts from profit pertaining to financial year ended March 31, 2020,
until further instructions with the view to conserve capital in the environment of heightened uncertainly
caused by COVID- 19.

For FY2019, the Board of Directors of the Bank has recommended a dividend of ¥ 2 per equity share for
approval by shareholders at the 15" Annual General Meeting. If approved, the total liability arising to the
Bank would be ¥ 5,582.01 million, including dividend tax (previous year ¥ 7,503.64 million). The actual
dividend payout may however change due to equity shares options exercised by employees between the
end of the financial year and the dividend declaration date.

For FY 2018, the Board of Directors of the Bank has recommended a dividend of * 2.70 per equity share for
approval by shareholders at the 14th Annual General Meeting. If approved, the total liability arising to the
Bank would be * 7,496.43 million, including dividend tax (previous year ° 6,605.48 million). The actual
dividend payout may however change due to equity shares options exercised by employees between the
end of the financial year and the dividend declaration date.

18.6.3  Capital Reserve

Profit on sale of investments in the Held to Maturity category is credited to the Profit and Loss Account and
thereafter appropriated to capital reserve (net of applicable taxes and transfer to statutory reserve
requirements). During the year ¥6,655.51 million (net of applicable taxes only) (previous year: ¥1,010.10
million and FY 2018 ¥659.65 million) was transferred to Capital Reserve,

18.6.4  Imrvestment Reserve

The Bank has transferred ¥ 147.23 million to Investment Reserve (Previous year: ¥ 6.71 million and FY 2018
¢ Nil ) (net of applicable taxes and transfer to statutory reserve requirements) on provisions for
depreciation on investments credited to Profit and Loss Account.

18.6.5  Casl Flow Hedge Reserve

\Il“\l:e Bank has debited ¢15.53 million to Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (Previous year: credited ¥ 218, 7 » ;
\ ‘eu c\i FY 2018 debited ¢ 83.92 million) on cross currency interest rate swaps which are used by;’ 4 1e Bank to

\|/r)xmn\he e its foreign currency borrowings and have been designated as cash flow hedges and are measured at
i fgmf alue. : ‘
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18.6.6  lnwvestment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR)

The Bank had made losses during the year ended March 31, 2020, and hence the Bank has transferred Nil in
IFR (Previous year: ¥ 539.07 million and Y 2018 ¥ Nil).

18.6.7  Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital Adequacy Ratio as per RBI guidelines as at March 31, 2020 is given below:

(¥ inanillion )

Basel ~ 111 As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2020 2019 2018

Common Equity Tier I 151,738.68 256,989.71 248,503.97
Additional Tier I Capital 3,414.00 87,871.00 88,879.76
Tier-1 capital 155,152.68 344,860.71 337,383.73
Tier-2 capital 152,940.48 159,730.59 132,373.34
Total capital 308,093.16 504,591.30 469,757.06
Credit Risk - Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 2,036,091.58 2,678,862.12 2,232,542.97
Market Risk - RWA 137,164.65 191,932.33 181,613.67
Operational Risk - RWA 228,985.68 184,986.56 139,276.11
Total risk weighted assets 2,402,241.90 3,055,781.01 2,553,432.74
Common Equity capital adequacy ratio (%) 6.3% 8.4% 9.7 %
Tier-1 capital adequacy ratio (%) 6.5% 11.3% 13.2 %
Tier-2 capital adequacy ratio (%)(¥) 2.0% 5.2% 5.2 %
Total capital adequacy ratio (%) 8.5% 16.5% 18.4 %
Amount raised during the year by issue of IPDI - - 54,150.00
Amount raised during the year by issue of Tier I Capital - 30,420.00 70,000.00

* Tier I ratio of the Bank was below the regulatory minimum requirements and hence as per RBI guidelines Tier II
ratio is restricted to 2%

18.6.8  Tier I and Tier II Capital

During the financial year ended March 31 2020, the Bank has not issued Tier I or Tier Il instruments.

During the financial year ended March 31 2019, the Bank has issued Tier II instruments amounting to ¢

30,420 million:
(¥ inmillion)
Particulars Nature of Date of Issue Coupon Tenure Amount
Security Rate (%)
Rated Listed Non-convertible, Debentures  September 17, 2018 9.12 10 Years 30,420

Redeemable, Unsecured, Basel 111
ompliant Tier 2 Bonds in the nature

30,420

TOTAL. .
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During the financial year ended March 31 2018, the Bank has issued additional Tier | instruments
amounting to ¥54,150 million and Tier Il instruments amounting to ¢ 70,000 million:

(< in million)

Particulars Nature of Date of Issue Coupon Tenure Amount
Security Rate (%)
Rated, Listed, Non Convertible, Debentures  September 29, 2017 7.80 10 Years 25,000.00

Redeemable, Unsecured, Basel 111
Comptliant Tier II Bonds in the
nature of debentures

Rated, Listed, Non Convertible, Debentures October 03, 2017 7.80 9 Years1l 15,000.00
Redeemable, Unsecured, Base] 111 Months &

Compliant Tier I Bonds in the : 28 Days

nature of debentures

Perpetual Subordinated Unsecured Debentures October 18, 2017 9.00  Perpetual 54,150.00

Basel IIl Compliant Additional Tier I

Bonds In The Nature Of Debentures

Rated, Listed, Non Convertible, Debentures February 22, 2018 8.73 10 Years 30,000.00
Redeemable, Unsecured, Basel 111

Compliant Tier II Bonds in the

nature of debentures

TOTAL  1,24,150.00

Write Down of AT1 Bonds

On March 13, 2020, pursuant to the provisions of Section 45 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) reconstituted YES Bank Limited (“the Bank”). As a consequence of the reconstitution, the
Bank was deemed to be non-viable. Further, the Bank incurred losses and breached RBI mandated Common
Equity Ratio (CET 1) and other statutory ratios. This activated the triggers for write-down of Basel III
additional tier 1 Bonds amounting to ¥ 84,150 million ("AT 1 Bonds") issued by the Bank. Accordingly, the
Bank was constrained to write down AT Bonds on March 14, 2020. The Trustees, on behalf of the holders of
AT 1 Bonds have filed a writ petition seeking to challenge the decision of the Bank to write down AT 1 bonds.
The Bank, based on the legal opinion of its external independent legal counsel is of the view that the merits of
the Bank’s decision to write down the AT 1 bonds in accordance with the contractual terms for issuance of
AT 1 Bonds.

Interest on Additional Tier I Capital (Unsecured, Non-Convertible, Tier I Subordinated Perpetual Bonds in
the nature of Promissory Notes issued under Basel II guidelines) amounting to ¥ 84.0 million was not paid by
the Bank as the regulatory ratio of the Bank were lower than the minimum required.
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18.6.9

Investinents

1) Value of Investments

(¥ in million)

IParticulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2020 2019 2018

Gross value of Investments 514,465.51 905,718.50 687,662.67
- In India 509,999.97 782,311.14 677,302.96

- Qutside India 4,465.54 123,407.36 10,359.71
Provision for depreciation® 75,317.25 10,498.17 3,673.29
- In India ’ 72,363.27 10,219.73 3,667.74

- Qutside India 2,953.98 278.45 5.55
Net Value of Investments 439,148.26 895,220.33 683.989.39
- In India 437,636.70 772,091.41 673,635.22

- Qutside India 1,511.56 123,128.92 10,354.16

* Includes a provision of ¥ 68,254.23 million (FY 2019 ¥ 987.81 million) (FY 2018 ¥ 606.24 million) held for non
performing investments

I1) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(< in million)

IParticulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,

2020 2019 2018

Opening Balance 10,498.18 3,673.29 1,073.85
Add: Provision made during the year 64,819.07 7,166.05 2,617.68
Less: Write off / write back of provision during the year - 341.16 18.24
Closing Balance 75,317.25 10,498.18 3,673.29

< //permitted to be undertaken by banks as per extant RBI guidelines, shifting of securitie;

Sales and transfers of securities to/from Held to Maturity (HTM) category

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has sold and transferred securities from HTM category
exceeding 5% of the book value of investment held in HTM category at the beginning of the year. The 5%
threshold referred to above does not include onetime transfer of securities to/from HTM category with
the approval of Board of Directors permitted to be undertaken by banks as per extant RBI guidelines, sale
of securities under pre-announced Open Market Operation (OMO) auction to the RBI and sale of securities
or transfer to AFS / HFT consequent to the reduction of ceiling on SLR securities under HTM. The book
value of HTM investment sold during the year ended March 31, 2020 was X 241,592.9 million. The market
value of investments (excluding investments in subsidiaries) under HTM category was ¥ 316,942.3 million
and was higher than the book value thereof as at March 31, 2020.

permitted by the Reserve Bank from time to time, sale of securities or transfer to AFS / HET coﬁgeq ent t
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the reduction of ceiling on SLR securities under HTM, sale of securities under pre-announced Open
Market Operation (OMO) auction to the RBI and repurchase of Government securities by Government of
India from banks as permitted by RBI

FY 2018

The Bank has not sold or transferred securities to or from HTM category exceeding 5% of the book value
of investment held in HTM category at the beginning of the year. The 5% threshold referred to above does
not include onetime transfer of securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors
permitted to be undertaken by banks as per extant RBI guidelines, shifting of securities explicitly
permitted by the Reserve Bank from time to time, sale of securities or transfer to AFS / HFT consequent to
the reduction of ceiling on SLR securities under HTM, sale of securities under pre-announced Open
Market Operation (OMO) auction to the RBI and repurchase of Government securities by Government of
India from banks as permitted by RBL

-t
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Repo Transactions

The details of securities sold and purchased undér repos and reverse repos during the year ended
March 31, 2020:

(T inmillion)

Minimum Maximum Daily As at
outstanding  outstanding average 31-Mar-20
during the during the outstanding
year year during the
year

Securities sold under repos
i) Government Securities - 250,626.15 75,718.15 4,000.00
ii) Corporate debt securities - - - -

Security purchased under reverse
repo

i) Government Securities 104,176.27 12,596.33 -

ii) Corporate debt securities - - - -

The details of securities sold and purchased under repos and reverse repos during the year ended

March 31, 2019:
(¥ inmillion)
Minimum Maximum Daily As at
outstanding outstanding average 31-Mar-19
during the during the outstanding
year year during the
year

Securities sold under repos
i) Government Securities - 69,230.88 11,884.73 4,996.81
ii) Corporate debt securities - - - -

Security purchased under reverse
repo
i) Government Securities - 96,027.29 20,868.98 20,310.16

ii) Corporate debt securities - - - -

‘T‘ ¢ above table represents the book value of securities sold and purchased under repos, triparty repos (TREPS) and

na\reverse repos with interbank counterparties. It does not include securities sold and purchased under
!
A,d}lsted Facility (LAF) with RBI.

& details of securities sold and purchased under repos and reverse repos during the year ended
rch 31, 2018:
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(¥ inmillion)

Minimum Maximum Daily As at
outstanding outstanding average 31-Mar-18
during the during the outstanding
year year during the
year
Securities sold under repos
i) Government Securities - 48,441.62 4,078.77 5,311.40
ii) Corporate debt securities - - - -
Security purchased under reverse
repo
i) Government Securities 511.25 85,267.55 20,442.17 47,459.65
iif) Corporate debt securities - - - -

The above table represents the book value of securities sold and purchased under repos, triparty repos (TREPS) and
reverse repos with interbank counterparties. It does not include securities sold and purchased under Liquidity
Adjusted Facility (LAF) with RBI

Non-SLR Investment Portfolio

i Issuer composition of Non SLR investments

Issuer composition of Non SLR investments as at March 31, 2020 is given below:
(¥ inmnillion)

No Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of
private  investment grade’ ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
placement securities  securities # securities®
() {b) (c) (d)
i) PSUs - - - - -
ii) Financial Institutions 115,898.28 79,892.87 79,318.77 3,065.10 9,236.96
iii) Banks - - - ~ -
iv) Private Corporates 31,286.71 30,894.21 19,950.00 525.62 5,907.34
v) Subsidiaries/ Joint 2,390.00 2,390.00 - 2,390.00
ventures
vi) Others 35,678.82 35,442.14 - - 35,442.14
vii} Provision held towards (75,174,72)
depreciation™*
Total 110,079.10 148,619.22 99,268.77 3,590.71 52,976.44

*Investments amounting to ¥ 49,426.43million are exempted from applicability of RBI prudential limit for Unlisted
Non-SLR securities

# excludes investment in equity shares and units, non -Indian government securities of IBU and non SLR
government of India securities

** Includes a provision of ¥68,254.23 million held for non performing investments




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Issuer composition of Non SLR investments as at March 31, 2019 is given below:

(¥ inmillion)

No Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of
private  investment grade’ ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
placement securities  securities # securities*
{2 (b) (0) (d)
i) PSUs 1,112.80 1,112.80 - - 62.80
i) Financial Institutions 129,659.42 86,742.28 - 3,065.10 15,756.38
iii) Banks 696.05 0.00 - 0.00 696.05
iv) Private Corporates 51,852.94 51,132.73 5,500.00 525.62 7,799.85
v) Subsidiaries/ Joint 2,240.00 2,240.00 - 2,240.00
ventures
vi) Others 166,501.23 45,644.20 - - 166,241.23
vii)  Provision held towards (10,453.24) -
depreciation**
Total 341,609.21 186,872.01 5,500.00 3,590.71 192,796.31

Investments amounting to 189,246.31 million are exempted from applicability of RBI prudential limit for Unlisted
Non-SLR securities

# excludes investment in equity shares and units, non -Indian government securities of IBU and non SLR
government of India securities

** Includes a provision of T987.81 million held for non performing investments

Amounts reported under columns (1), (b), (c) and (d) above are not mutually exclusive.

Issuer composition of Non SLR investments as at March 31, 2018 is given below:

(¥ inmillions)

No Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of ‘below Extent of Extent of

private  investment grade’ ‘unrated’ “unlisted”

placement securities  securities # securities*

(a) (b) © (d)

i) PSUs 5423.34 911.70 - - 5,423.34

ii) Financial Institutions 53,731.19 53,726.19 - 264.19 264.19

iii) Banks 30.22 30.22 - 0.00 0.00

iv}) Private Corporates 102,809.99 91,650.26 50.00 568.12 12,863.92
v) Subsidiaries/ Joint 1,055.00

ventures 1,055.00 - - 1,055.00

vi) Others 35,481.69 32,030.53 - - 35,481.69
vii)  Provision held towards - (3,402.88)

depreciation** - - - -

Total 195,128.56 179,403.90 50.00 832.31 55,088.14

Investments amounting to ¥ 51,538 millions are exempled from applicability of RBI prudential limit for Unlisted
Non-SLR securities.

\ excludes investment in equity shares and units.

9 *Hucludes a provision of ¥606.24 million held for non performing investments
A’n{g‘uqts reported under columns (a), (b), (c) and (d) above are not mutually exclusive

/s
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ii. Non-Performing Investments
(Tt million)

Particulars March March March
i 31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2018

Opening Balance 1,154.08 674,94 460.09
Additions during the year 91,069.68 479.14 285.76
Reductions during the year - - 70.91
Closing Balance 92,223.76 1,154.08 674.94
Total Provision Held 68,254.23 987.81 606.24

18.6.11 Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap
The details of Forward Rate Agreements / Interest Rate Swaps outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is given below:

(Tin million)

Sr.No  Items As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2018
i) The notional principal of swap agreements 1,866,270.43 1,702,671.19  1,141,440.35
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties 4,408.91
fail_ed to fulfill their obligations under the 2,740.33 1,760.74
agreements!
iii) Collateral required by the bank upon entering into - i )
swaps
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps 11.02% 12.75% 2156 %
[Percentage Exposure to Banks] !
[Percentage Exposure to PSUs] ! 27.25% 22.14% 52.29 %
v) The fair value of the swap book 2 (741.28) (1,661.03) (285.43)
- INBMK (696.49) (179.66) (39.32)
- MIBOR (380.88) (1,280.48) (817.97)
- MIFOR (993.94) (542.91) 129.79
- FCYIRS 1,330.02 342.03 (57.93)

1 Losses and Credit risk concentration are measured as net receivable under swap contracts
2Fair values represent mark-to-market including accrued inferest.

The nature and terms of the Rupee IRS as on March 31, 2020 are set out below:
(Tin million)

Nature , Nos: - Notional Benchmark e Terms
. . Principal : - - 5
Trading 10 12,000.00 INBMK Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 1 1,000.00 INBMK Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
290,287.95 MIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
278,097.10 MIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payabl

93,574.20 MIFOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivabl
69,019.80 MIFOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payabl

" o]
! ’M‘OH . /~”
India
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The nature and terms of the FCY IRS as on March 31, 2020 are set out below:
(Tinmillion)

Nature -~ “Nos, Notional Benchmark Terms
Principal

Hedging 2 36,103.25 USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
Trading 744 404,022.83 USD LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 718 407,992.62 USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
Trading 191] 245,277.18 USD LIBOR Floating Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 35 4,562.73 EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 53 5,265.57 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
Trading 1 139.26 JPY LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 13 9,181.95 GBP LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 13 9,659.74 GBP LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
Trading 1 86.25 AUD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable

The nature and terms of the Rupee IRS as on March 31, 2019 are set out below:

(Tin million)
Nature Nos: - Notional Principal~ Benchmark : o “Terms: :
Trading 13 15,760.00 INBMK Fixed Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 1 1,000.00 INBMK Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 630 278,870.61 MIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 645 261,024.55 MIBOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 266 103,934.30 MIFOR Fixed Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 173 64,632.70 MIFOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
The nature and terms of the FCY IRS as on March 31, 2019 are set out below:
(Tin million)
Nature Nos. - Notional Principal "Benchmark Terms
Hedging 2 32,997.03  USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 611 347,201.72  USD LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 548 339,546.98 USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 228 225,530.36  USD LIBOR Floating Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 36 4,728.11 EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 42 5,304.32 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 1 124.84 JPY LIBOR Fixed Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 14 11,152.68  GBP LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 3 10,863.00  GBP LIBOR Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
The nature and terms of the Rupee IRS as on March 31, 2018 are set out below:
(Tin million)
Nature = Nos  Notional Principal - Benchmark Terms
Hedging 2 750.00 MIFOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 13 15,760.00 INBMK Fixed Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 1 1,000.00 INBMK Fixed Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 473 235,350.32 MIBOR Fixed Payable V /5 Floating Receivable
s “F&@ding 498 206,242.32 MIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
oo, | VEralding 252 95,332.30 MIFOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
, 5?3{:, f};\m&\raggli\‘ng 134 54,299.10 MIFOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payablé}_

AAloshi Marg, o

fdhataxmi, «:f

i:ago()ﬂr E{f}f re and terms of the FCY IRS as on March 31, 2018 are set out below:
Rt Ny
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(Tin million)
Nature Nos. Notional Principal Benchmark Terms
Hedging 2 39,105.00 USD 1LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floaling Payable
Trading 400 201,337.24 USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/5 Floating Payable
Trading 400 174,714.57  USD LIBOR Fixed Payable V /S Floating Receivable
Trading 162 102,673.66  USD LIBOR Floating Receivable V /S Floating Payable
Trading 18 2,652.59 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable
Trading 18 2,872.49 EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 1 123.01 JPY LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 2 4,613.88 GBP LIBOR Fixed Payable V/S Floating Receivable
Trading 2 4,613.88  GBP LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/S Floating Payable

18.6.12 Un-hedged / uncovered foreign currency exposure of the Bank

The Bank’s foreign currency exposures as at March 31, 2020 that are not hedged/covered by either derivative
instruments or otherwise are within the Net Overnight Open Position limit (NOOP) and the Aggregate Gap limit, as
approved by the RBL. NOOP is ¥ 5,561.32 million as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 X 2,205.59 million and March
31, 2018 ¥ 1,353.36 million).

18.6.13 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of exchange traded interest rate derivatives:

(T inmillion)

Sr.No. Particulars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,
2018

Notional Principal amount of

exchange traded interest rate

derivatives undertaken

during the year :

- 6.79% Government

Securities 2027

-7.17% Government Securities

2028

-6.68% Government Securities

2031

-7.26% Government Securities

2029

-7.27% Government Securities

2026

-7.57% Government Securities

2033

-6.45% Government Securities

2029

- 22,884.80 35,757.20
66,193.40 173,803.40 -
750.00 750.00 -
207,328.40 - -
4,000.00 - -
5,050.00 - -

51,647.20 - -

Notional Principal amount of
2 exchange traded interest rate
derivatives outstanding-
jgw\ -7.17% Government Securities i 4,945.00 -
470, { 2028
< \\ %,-6.68% Government Securities
\p031
#16.45% Government Securities

& §029

hor,
Olceius,
U ‘!)0(md

- 750.00

B 50.00 -
ni)ai«‘-ﬂ(}{)’t 1.
tndi
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Notional Principal amount of
exchange traded interest rate

3 LS . N.A.
derivatives outstanding and
not “highly effective”
Mark-to-Market value of

4 exchange traded interest rate NA.

derivatives outstanding and
not “highly effective”

18.6.14  Currency Futures

The Bank had dealt in exchange traded currency forwards (Futures) during the financial year ended March 31, 2020,
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. As at March 31, 2020 the open contracts on the exchange were Nil and for March
31, 2019 were to the tune of USD 4.10 million X 285.29 million) for April 2019 expiry and for March 31, 2018 - Nil
open contracts.

18.6.15 Disclosures on risk ex

As per RBI Master circular DBR.BP.BC.N0.23/21.04.018/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015, the following disclosures are being
made with respect to risk exposure in derivatives of the Bank:

a)  Purpose: The Bank uses Derivatives including Forwards & swaps for various purposes including hedging its
currency and interest rate risk in its balance sheet, customer offerings and proprietary trading. The management
of these products and businesses is governed by Market Risk Policy, Investment Policy, Derivatives Policy,
Derivatives Appropriate ness Policy, Hedging Policy and ALM policy.

b)  Structure: The Board of Directors of the Bank have constituted a Board level sub-committee, the Risk
Monitoring Committee (RMC’) and delegated to it all functions and responsibilities relating to the risk
management policy of the Bank and its supervision thereof.

€)  As part of prudent business and risk management practice, the Bank has also instituted a comprehensive limit
and control structure encompassing Value-at-Risk (VAR), Sensitivity, Greeks, Stop loss & credit limits for
derivative transactions including suitability and appropriateness framework. The Bank has an internal
reporting mechanism providing regular reports to the RMC as well as to the management of the Bank. Such a
structure helps the Bank to monitor and mitigate market risk across FX and interest rates.

d)  The Bank has an independent Middle Office and Market Risk functions, which are responsible for monitoring,
measurement, and analysis of derivative related risks, among others. The Bank has a Credit Risk Management
unit which is responsible for setting up counterparty limits and also a treasury operation unit which is
responsible for managing operational aspects of derivatives including settlement of transactions. The Bank is
subject to a concurrent audit for all treasury transactions, including derivatives transactions, a monthly report of
which is periodically submitted to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the Bank.

€) In addition to the above, the Bank independently evaluates the potential credit exposure on account of all
derivative transactions, wherein risk limits are specified separately for each product, in terms of both credit
exposure and tenor. As mandated by the Credit Policy of the Bank, the Bank has instituted an approval
structure for all treasury/derivative related credit exposures. Wherever necessary, appropriate credit covenants
are stipulated as trigger events to call for collaterals or terminate transaction and contain the risks.

f)  The Bank reports all trading positions to the management on a daily basis. The Bank revalues its trading
position on a daily basis for Management and Information System ('"MIS’) and control purposes and records the
same in the books of accounts on a monthly basis.

e rtakmg the hedge and the ALCO monitors all outstanding hedges on a peuodlcal basis. Fur t

7gmg Policy” has stipulated conditions to ensure that the Hedges entered into are effechve

/. efér Note 18.5.6 for accounting policy on derivatives.
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The details of derivative transactions as at March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and MARCH 31, 2018 are given below:

(¥ inmillion)

Sr.  Particular Currency derivatives? Interest rate derivatives *
No
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018

i)  Derivatives (Notional
Principal Amount)

a) For hedging 5,642.15 24,894.18 27,349.32 36,103.25 32,997.03 39,855.00
b) For trading 542,581.81 837,853.50  756,398.59  1,830,218.15  1,675,217.65 1,101,585.35

iiy  Marked to market

positions?

a) Asset (+) 19,535.19 11,870.11 9,189.21 30,747.24 11,227.54 5,481.15

b) Liability (-) 23,096.02 12,210.08 8,273.63 33,599.65 13,228.06 5,599.59
iif)  Credit exposure? 58,076.46 64,931.17 56,452.85 47,601.51 26,289.71 17,500.44

iv)  Likely impact of one
percentage change in
interest rate
(100*PV01)

(Refer Note 1&2

below)

8) on hedging 71.75 320.47 479.20 941.23 1,103.47 1,726.80
derivatives

b) on trading

L 725.32 1,283.29 535.57 1,425.50 2,205.81 2,100.19
derivatives

v) Maximum and

minimum of

100*PV01 observed

during the year

(Refer Note 1&2

below)

a) on hedging
Maximum 339.25 564.00 604.30 1,209.84 1,779.17 1,798.95
Minimum 71.40 308.14 364.25 848.67 1,082.50 3.62

b) on trading
Maximum 1,455.90 1,368.24 1,025.93 2,362.83 2,932.88 2,216.24
Minimum 670.30 348.04 409.68 1,200.15 1,654.17 1,394.45

1 Currency derivatives includes options purchased and sold, cross currency interest rate swaps and currency futures.
2 Trading portfolio including accrued interest.
3 Mark to Market for credit exposure includes accrued interest.

4 Interest rate derivatives include Interest Rate Swaps, forward rate agreements and exchange traded intevest rate derivatives.

Note:
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3)  The notional principal amount of foreign exchange contracts classtfied as trading at March 31, 2020 amounted to ¥
1,496,207.26 million (Previous year ¥2,816,549.88 niillion and FY 2018 ¥ 2,999,631.85 million)). For these trading
contracts, as on March 31, 2020, marked to market position was asset of < 34,541.65 million (Previous year: ¥
40,879.82 million, FY 2018 ¥ 21,147.95 nullion) and liability of ¢ 33,551.58 million (Previous Year: ¥ 42,674.09
nullion, FY 2018 ¢20,920.03 million). The notional principal amount of foreign exchange contracts classified as
hedgmg at March 31, 2020 amounted to ¥23,260.15 million (previous year: ¢17,548.88 million, FY 2018 ¥ 816.98
million). Credit exposure on forward exclunge contracts at March 31, 2020 was ¥57,079.44 million (Previous Year: &
101,707.60 million, FY 2018 ¥ 93,577.45 million ) of which exposure on CCIL is ¥28,336.86 million (Previous Year: &
55,019.15 million, FY 2018 ¥ 56,459.69 million).

Asset quality

18.6.16 Nou-Performing Advances

The details of movement of gross NPAs, net NPAs and provisions during the year ended March 31, 2020, during the
year ended March 31, 2019 and the year ended March 31, 2018 are given below :

(Tin million)
No. Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
)] Net NPA to Net Advances 5.03% 1.86% 0.64 %
(if) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 78,825.60 26,268.02 20,185.57
b) Additions (Fresh NPAs 372,724.86 82,157.37
Ehzring the year) ( 79,708.31
Subtotal (A) 451,550.46 105,971.33 102,342.94
Less:
(i) Up-gradations 25,593.93 11,149.95 33,264.06
(ii) Recoveries 28,760.66 11,306.45 35,724.93
(iii) Write-offs (including 68,419.98 4,689.33 7,085.93
Technical Write Off)
Sub-total (B) 122,774.57 27,145.73 76,074.92
Gross NPAs (closing balance) 328,775.89 78,825.60 26,268.02
(A-B)
(1) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 44,848.50 13,127.46 10,722.68
(b) Additions during the year 85,296.67 50,002.04 68,015.64
(c) Reductions during the year 43,907.37 18,281.00 65,610.86
(d) Closing balance 86,237.80 44,848.50 13,127.46
(iv) Movement of provisions for
NPAs
(excluding provision on
standard assets)
(a) Opening balance 33,977.10 13,140.56 9,462.89
(b) Additions during the year 287,428.19 29,701.27 14,141.74
(c) write off / write back of 78,867.20 8,864.73 10,464.07
excess provision
(d) Closing balance 242,538.09 33,977.10 13,140.56

7t sth Floor,
bdbe Exvell

W:,,;Fr@m the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank considers slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end t111

Kl Compound,

1k . Joshi MEAVE %)u'dehnes vide circular dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 on COVID-19 Regulatory Package ‘Under

'& % e of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning requirement A
Eon e%ZI znce NPA till March 13, 2020 was considered in the quarter ended December 2019 results. Subsequen

e Bank granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all installments and / or mterest as
le, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 (later extended to August 31, 2020). The Bank in Im‘ef.
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with RBI circular has upgraded NPA's of ¥ 312,15 million (slipped between March 1, 2020 to March 13, 2020) which it
had declared as NPA as at December 31, 2020.

During, the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank had written off certain NPA as a technical write off.
(Tinmillion)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Opening balance of Technical Write off as at April 01 - - -
Add: Technical Write off during the financial year 63,580.60 - -

Less: Recoveries made from previously Technical Writter - - -

Accounts in previous financial year.

Closing balance of Technical Write off as at March 31 63,580.60 - -

18.6.17 Provision coverage Ratio

The provision coverage ratio of the Bank as at March 31, 2020 computed as per the RBI guidelines is 73.77%
(previous year 43.10%, FY 2018 50.02%)

18.6.18 Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning for NPAs

In terms of the RBI circular no. DBR.BP.BC.N0.32/21.04.018/2018-19 dated April 1, 2019. banks are required to
disclose the divergences in asset classification and provisioning consequent to RBI's annual supervisory process in
their notes to accounts to the financial statements, wherever either or both of the following conditions are satisfied:
(a) the additional provisioning for NPAs assessed by RBI exceeds 10 per cent of the reported profit before provisions
and contingencies for the reference period and (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceed 15 per cent of
the published incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period. As part of the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise
for FY 2018-19 concluded in November 2019, the RBI has pointed out certain retrospective divergence in the Bank's
asset classification and provisioning as on March 31, 2019. In conformity with the above mentioned RBI circular, the
below table outlines divergences in asset classification and provisioning,.

Sr. Particulars (¥ in millions)
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 78,825.59
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI 111,595.59
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) 32,770.00
4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 44,848.49
5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI 67,838.49
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 22,990.00
7 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as reported by the Bank 33,977.10
8 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2019 as assessed by RBI 43,757.10
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 9,780.00

10 Izigfgorted Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 17.202.79
Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended

11  March 31, 2019 after taking into account the divergence in 10,840.31
provisioning

V@ ‘lnde‘r 1s of the RBI circular no. DBR.BP.BC.N0.32/21.04.018/2018-19 dated 1" April, 2019. banks are required to

5 ;@I}’IS &ge\ he divergences in asset classification and provisioning consequent to RBI's annual supervisory process. n

‘qu"iélr Stad to accounts to the financial statements, wherever either or both of the following conditions are satisfied:
m(»m e

1?&\61 §1t10na1 provisioning for NPAs assessed by RBI exceeds 10 per cent of the reported profit before.pr
ban;l dfifigencies for the reference period and (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceed 15 per cent of

i th,@fpgb lfshed incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period. Based on the above, no disclosure on dx\}ergence ings, o
- & ’ D
S £

‘i.‘./
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asset classification and provisioning for NPAs is required with respect to RBI's annual supervisory process for
FY2018

FY 2018

Divergence reported in financial of March 31, 2018.

*  The Bank classifies performing and non-performing advances (NPAs) as per the RBI's Prudential Norms on
Income recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning,.

¢ Based on application of RBI's prudential norms as stated above, the Bank classified and made the
prescribed provisions against the NPAs as at the end of 31st March, 2017.

*  Aspartof the Risk Based Supervision (RBS) exercise for FY 2016-17 concluded in October 2017, the RBI has
pointed out certain retrospective divergence in the Bank's asset classification and provisioning as on 31st
March 2017. In conformity with the RBI circulars DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018/2016-17 issued on April 18,
2017, SEBI circular issued on July 18, 2017 and as per approval from the Board of Directors at its Board

Meeting held on Qctcber 26, 2017, the below table outlines divergences in asset classification and

Meeting |
provisioning.

Sr. Particulars (X in millions)
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 20,185.57
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 83,737.57
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) 63,551.99
4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 10,722.68
5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 58,916.24
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 48,193.56
7 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 9,462.89
8 Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 24,821.38
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 15,358.49
10 Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 33,300.96
11" Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 after

taking into account the divergence in provisioning 23,161.28

The net current impact of the aforementioned retrospective slippages due to divergence noted by RBI in
October 2017 has been duly reflected in the results for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Out of the total divergence current position as on Mar 31, 2018 is as under:

Particulars  in millions) %
1. Net Repayments (In full / partial)* 24,343.47 38.30%
2. Sold to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) 8,031.58 12.64%
against Security Receipts*™ (non cash component)
3. Outstanding as on March 31, 2018 (a+b): 31,176.94 49.06%
a) Upgraded as Standard on account of satisfactory 26,326.94 41.43%
account conduct
b) Classified as NPA*** 4,850.00 7.63%
Total (1+2+3) 63,551.99
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18.6.19 Disclosure as per requirenient of Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets

As per requirement of RBI circular on Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets
dated June 7, 2019, below mentioned are details as of March 31, 2020.

Sr. Description of Resolution Plan (RP) No of cases Aggregate Loan Outstanding

No. (X in millions)

1 Payment of Overdues by the borrower 49 76,287.76

2 Restructuring / change in ownership outside - -
IBC

3 Resolution pursued under IBC - -

4 Assignment of debt / recovery proceedings - -

18.6.20 Concentration of NPAs
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18.6.21 Sector-wise Advances and NPA

The details of Sector-wise Gross Advances and Gross NPAs as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are given

below:
(<in million)
Sector As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Gross Gross % of Gross Gross Gross % of Gross
Advances NPAs NPAs to Advances NPAs NPAs to
Gross Gross
Advances in Advances in
that sector that sector
Priority Sector
Agriculture and Allied
or 79,647.00 4,673.54 5.87% 111,749.39 1,898.74 1.70%
activities
Advances to industries
sector eligible as 105,102.24 1,773.45 1.69% 129,938.12 524.80 0.40%
priority sector lending
Gems and Jewellery 20,304.04 24.28 0.12% 30,993.87 5.10 0.02%
Textile 13,420.26 100.57 0.75% 16,092.38 144.72 0.90%
Services 263,133.75 4,407.02 1.67% 276,349.81 2,416.79 0.87%
Personal Loans - - - 179.12 11.57 6.46%
Others 30,672.76 567.39 1.85% 23,134 .42 142.80 0.62%
Sub-Total (A) 478,555.75 11,421.40 2.39% 541,350.86  4,994.69 0.92%
Non Priority Sector
Agriculture and Allied
activities 10,433.92 - - 40,838.96  1,436.64 3.52%
Industry 791,414.54 197,295.10 24.93% 1,015,658.40 49,271.25 4.85%
Construction 100,392.51 68,998.41 68.73% 123,099.91  6,533.30 5.31%
Electricity (generation-
transmission and 91,443.87 25,943.61 28.37% 128,619.87 6,674.29 5.19%
distribution)
Services 496,107.12 117,654.36 23.77% 687,709.95  21,678.71 3.15%
Commercial Real Estate 232,582.40 73,512.82 31.76% 238,146.48  11,369.22 4.77%
NBFCs 23,648.99 8,270.81 34.97% 69,941.58 73.55 0.11%
Tourism, Hotel and 74,510.02 0.01 0.00% 120,061.67 99.24 0.08%
Restaurants
Personal Loans 50,645.71 678.96 1.34% 43,403.39 514.21 1.18%
Others 129,813.98 1,726.06 1.33% 120,011.56 930.10 0.78%
Sub-Total (B) 1,478,415.28  317,354.48 21.47%  1,907,622.26  73,830.90 3.87%
1,956,971.03 328,775.88 16.80% 2,448,973.12  78,825.60 3.22%




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Vs /BANK]

The details of Sector-wise Gross Advances and Gross NPAs as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are given

below:
(Fin million)
Sector As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Gross Gross Y% of Gross Gross Gross % of Gross
Advances NPAs | NPAs to Gross Advances NPAs NPAs to
Advances in Gross
that sector Advances in
that sector
Priority Sector
Agriculture and Allied 111,749.39 1,898.74 1.70% 108,333.92 1,152.95 1.06 %
activities
Advances to industries 129,938.12 524.80 0.40% 101,882.22 559.16 0.55 %
sector eligible as
priority sector lending
Gems and Jewellery 30,993.87 5.10 0.02% 24,830.95 - -
Services 276,349.81 2,416.79 0.87% 215,285.26 76418 0.35 %
Personal Loans 179.12 11.57 6.46% 407.33 8.07 1.98%
Others 23,134.42 142.80 0.62% 22,107.22 16.60 0.08 %
Sub-Total (A) 541,350.86 4,994.69 0.92% 448,015.95 2,500.96 0.56 %
Non Priority Sector
Agriculture and Allied 40,838.96 1,436.64 3.52% 5,319.14 - -
activities
Industry 1,015,658.40 49,271.25 4.85% 1,037,517.44 | 22,282.04 215 %
Construction 123,099.91 6,533.30 5.31% 109,338.86 2,5676.69 2.36 %
Electricity (generation- 128,619.87 6,674.29 5.19% 185,688.75 7,539.25 4.06 %
transmission and ’
distribution)
Services 687,709.95 21,678.71 3.15% 450,248.18 1,060.75 0.24 %
Commercial Real Estate 238,146.48 11,369.22 4.77% 146,172.40 115.93 0.08 %
NBFCs 69,941.58 73.55 0.11% - - -
Tourism, Hotel and 120,061.67 99.24 0.08% 67,879.79 108.00 0.16%-
Restaurants
Personal Loans 43,403.39 514.21 1.18% 27,654.56 140.12 0.51 %
Others 120,011.56 930.10 0.78% 79,723.91 284.15 0.36 %
Sub-Total (B) 1,907,622.26 73,830.90 3.87% 1,600,463.23 | 23,767.06 1.49 %
2,448,973.12 78,825.60 3.22% 2,048,479.18 | 26,268.02 1.28 %

LA ha Excetus,

li.?ompound,}




L8TT6 e (66'c2D) | (06'062) | (60°T) - - - - - - - - - G8°860°T LLSITT | 00L ei0].
20°806 20805 | 00F €611 (19D - - - - 94768 89608 00% - - - - - - ss0]
64'91% 64'91% 00T (6z687) | leTese) | (001) - - - (scese) | (peosy) | (00e) | - - - FHS60'T | €0'EHT'T | 009 [npqnog
- - - - - - j j i (1t9) (#sTe) (oo | j . e ¥.TT 001 pre
pueisqng
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 000 000 - piepuvlg
el
puein £
06'189 06'189 00 (66€21) | (06062} | (00°T) - - - - - - - - - 88°658 0876 00°s Tel0],
01'59¢ 01°692 002 IE'6LL (191) - - - - 646v1 | 1299 | 00T - - - - - - 5507
6L'9TF 6491 00T (6zes2) | (6zesz) | (00D - - - {seorn) | eck) | (o) |- - - Y768 90°056 00F mauqnroq
- - - j j j j i i (tye) Gseco | oD | _ i e ¥4TC 00'1 pie
puejsqng
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 000 000 - piepurelg
Eitiislg) Z
L6°CHC L6'THT 00C - - - - - - - - - - - - L6°THC L6'THT 00¢C 1e30),
L6THT L6THT 00T - - - - - - L6THT | L6THT | 00T - - - - - - s507
- 3 - - - - - - - (c6zve) | Wezre) | 00 | - - - Leeve L67¢ve 0oc myiqnoq
- ) . . N . ] j j j B . . . . (000} {000 - pie
pueisqng
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - piepurelg
i | 1
‘- [2] v T
0Z02'TE 0202'1€ o 3 s1 Supu | som | SWCIE 610218
YOI S13 Bu urpue | aMO | u03I1dyj Surp SIdM U021y} yodaep YoIepw Siam uon}
YOIRA J UO3IB] SIdMOIIOq 31 rISINO 0110q :
jese Ju MOII0q pueIsino R ‘o | 1oq u ugsino 0o110q uo je se jese Ju oLI0q eILJISSE[D
e uoala pueisino 00 UOISIAOL] junour 30 ON uots jun (o] OISIAQL, junowx 0 'O ISTIAOL, u Jo U013 moueisino Q0 J9ss
orsiaorg | 3O 'ON v 1014 3 ISIAOL] V| OON | msmord | e | oy W | puels) JOON | - v
unowy owy ON UOISIAOIL] unowy
4 Ad
£108 2 g
wo maMm_WMM uwuo 1€ “ﬂﬂv-m_ . ay3 Surmp ﬁ::ﬁwg pa.myanysax ﬁwmwnum.wwuiw_.umwk Surmp ﬁ:zﬁw“ﬂwuiugm& g g 1234 oYy Buruado) Amwu”:mwnu 1mdy Buzbmﬂm
¥ V paiminnsoy JO A13A003Y /310G /S330-31IM o suonepeidn Jo suonepeid umo(y UHNP SUHMPINNSAL YSAIY U0 S¥ SPUNO0J)Y PaInpnysay yo adA] N

(uonpuiug 2)
:MO01aq UATS aIe (70T ‘1€ UDIBIN Papua feak ays Suninp paimonisay SRINOJE JO S[1e3ap YL

SJUNOIIY PAINIINAIS  ¢T'9ST

E\E 0202 '1£ YOIeIN popus 1eoA o1 10] SJUSUIS)EIS [CIOUPUl] SUOEpUElS PIJeIsay




‘suwnjod aapodadsal

oy Jopun pasopdsip £1aaoda1 [ented pue pajiear SSRI[Ie [PUORIPPE 33 LM 2]qeieduwiod jou a1e pue 1eak ay3 Suuinp (uostaoxd ur aseardap 10§)A1240021 /37eS /50
-oum pue (uoistaoid ur esearmdwur 105)Bunnionysal Ysal uUWN[Od I9PUN  PIsO[OSIp St ‘edueleq Suntedo 03 peredwiod se JUNOddE PaIMONISAI JUBSIXD
o ur suorsiaoxd Ul JusWRAOW 9T-GL0Z/8I0F0 1T/ ONDE dd Mdd ou 1e[noa [y o (1) THE ered £q pexmbar se Aoemooe feoneunyiire jo ssodind a3 104
-asodand uoneyussaid 10y parouds usaq aney syuswiedar fenred 1o AIide] [eUORIPPE SUIJIEAR SI9MOII0] Bunsixs jo Jequinu

ayy “Aderndoe [eapaunyre jo asodind sy 10y “I9ABMOY ‘,SIUN0dE PRIMIONNSAI JO AI12A0D1/3[ES /SJO-BILIM , JOPUN PISO[SIP I8 SJUNOIE PIIMINASSI Bunsixs
w syuswedar renred pue Jesd ayg Sunmp SuLIMdNYSAI YSaL],, 12PUN PISO[ISIP Ale SPUNODE PaInIdNIsal Sumnsixa Ur s19mo1roq Aq pa[leae saN1[Ide] [EUCHIPPY
"SIURAPE PAIMIONINSSI S UO P[OY UOISIAOL] SROULAPY SUIWLIOJIS] UON SSPNIOUL ]qe) A0 e ) Ul uorsiaoad oy,

10§ papraoxd A[[ng a1e Yorym SaI1eYS Ul JUSURSIAUT SP[OUI JOU S0P pue sadueape 03 surejtad 21qe3 2A0qe AL

~1eak oy SuLInp s3asSE JO B[ES PUER SLIBA0AI BULISPISUOD J33JR ST 0Z0T ‘1§ YPILJN J8 Se ST9MO1I0q JO IoquInu pue junowe Surpuesino a1

0202 1€ YoIe]N papua Ieak 213 SulInp sedueApe Painidnijsal wolj popeiddn sjmodde ou Usaq dARY 218 L

“(81°9°8T "ou 230N) 330N

oouaBIaAI(] Ul PasOpSIp ale Junnjonysal uo sauepind 1gy Ypim 20uri[duwod Uou jo JUnodde o 6107 ‘T YN Papud Teak [erdueuly ol 10j paynusp a0usdivAl(]

- ¢z°9°g1 ou jurod ur pasopstp asoyy 31deoxe 00z ‘1€ YdIIN Papua Tea£ s SuLnp paInjonysal usaq 34y YORIm SISed NG OU 918 1YL

L I o RN-T N

~1S970N

0202 "I€ UDIEIA PopUS 1894 oUj] 107 SHUSWIE}S [CIOUPUL] SUOTEPURIS PojeIsay




S8'860°L (80°957) (sz18e’D) | (9) - - - - - - SZ'I6T | 020 - 89°€90°T 98996 | 0L reloL,
- i . _ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - $S0]
F5960°T €0e61T 9 (0£902) (c2709%) () - - - 8¢ 9P1 L6'SHT 001 8,682 | 0270 - 85698 1960%'T | 9 [miqnoQg
- — ) ) ] . . - } ; j ) i , . . pre
Ire vLTT I (9091) GFyvD) | (81'502) L1 8E'9PL L6'EVT 1 pueisqng
- - - (82°6%) (£¥5.8) @ - - - 6D (6£°8€) (o01) |- - - LIS [T€16 € prepuelg
Te301,
puern €
88'658 08246 S (£5'052) (LLs3e'D) | (9) - - - - - - ST 16T 0T0 - 1T'SI8 LESIET 8 =01,
- - - - - - - - - $507]
¥Tes 90056 iz {6£:002) ¥z ssw) (n - - - $COPL L6'SHT I 8468C | 020 01219 SUI9TT | ¥ In3qnoQg
- - . ) ] ) ] ) j ) ) } pie
Ire vLTT L (o0791) GFivD | (81°502) g 8E'9VL L6'EVT 1 puejsqng
- - - (826%) (Lv548) @ - - - F6'1) (6r8e) | (1) LIS LTET6 € prepuesg
. SIYIO z
L6'THT L6°THT 4 (15°9) (15°9) - - - - - - - - - 8H'8hT 8¥'85C z 1e10],
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - $507]
L6THE L6THT z (1c9) (1579) - - - - - - - - - - 85 ShT SH'8FT z nyqnogy
- _ _ . _ _ . _ _ _ ~ _ - _ ~ _ _ - Uum
puejsgng
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - prepuelg
ua I
P 6102'1€ ‘ o s s1 som Supu | swom | SWOCIE | SIOTTE
IR $19 3u urpue | amo Surp U0 UoTeN YoTeN SIoMm uoy
Lu.:mE je @ Zonﬁwﬂz m.ﬁmgoho@ mhwﬁﬁ EOmumﬂﬁ O‘COD BISINo O.EOQ b
jese su MOL0q IpueIsInNo o Isjno | 110q ueisino uo Jese jese Ju o110q BIIJISSE]))
Se U02191)) ) UOISIAOL] JO 'ON uors UOTSTAOL] jo u jo
. IpUeISIno JO "ON junoury jun jo junowry . 1S1AOX] . U0 IpUeISInoe | Jo "ON jossy
UOISTAOL] 1AOLJ ON nowy ON
junowry owry ‘ON UOISTAOL] | junowry
Ad
A4 Y3 JO TE I R Ad ) a3 Surump L108a3e0 Adaygy oy - (samn8yy Sun
10 S© SJUR09>Y PaInIanIsa 9] SULIMNP SPINOIIE PIINJONIISSI pIepue)s painpnysar | SuLmp sjunodde painonysai Surmp SUIMIONISHI Usal Suruado) x g a3 o T dy nINISIY
VP ! J0 1910903 /210G /5350-231Ip4 03 suonjeperSdn 30 suoneperSumo( HTp SUHMINGSAL Ysal] U0 SB SJUNnoddy painionisayy yo odA Y ON

oI 1T )
:MOTaq UDALS 31 6T(T ‘1€ YIIBJA Papus 1eak a3 Surmp PaINONISY SJUNOIDE JO S[IEap oy ],

020T "L€ YdIBIA PSPUs 1234 311 10] SJUSUISIE)G [e1Ueul] SUO[EPUE]S DIILIsay




‘suwnjod aandadsal au opun
pasopsip £12a0021 [enied pue pajieae sanI[Idey [EUORIPPE a3 YYIm 3[qeredwod jou are pue 1eak ayz Sunmp (uorsiaoxd ur asea1dsp 105)AI0A031 /31es /§50
-2jum pue (uorstaoid ur asesidul 10§)SULINIONISAI YSS) UWN[0) I9pun pasopsip st ‘edueleq Sutuado o3 patedwos se Junodde painionisar Sunsxe ayj
ur suorstaoid Ul JUBWBaAOW 91-G107/810H0 12 /€2 ON' DG dg Y4 ou Ie[noad 1y Jo (1x) ‘7F'¢ ered Aq paumbar se Koeanooe peopswyytie jo asodind sy 107 7

-asod.and uoneuasard 105 patoudr usaq aaey sjuswdedar fenred 10 Liioey [euonippe SUIreAR SI9MO1I0( SUDSIXD JO J9qUINU 3} ‘£oeInDde TEDHRWIILIe

jo asodand ayy 10j “IoAemOy ¢, S]UN0dR PIINIONISAI JO AIDA0IRI/3[eS /SJJO-21LIM|, IPPUN PSSO[ISIP I8 SHUNODIR DIIMIONISSI Bunsixe ur syuswdedar

[enied pue 1ead sy Suunp Sunmdnysal ysalj, IOPUn PaIsOSIp I SJUNOIIE PRINONYSSI SUNSIXS Ul SISMOLIO] Aq palreae sanI[R] [RUOHIPPY

‘SadueApe paInjoniisal s} uo pay mQmew\rOuQ Jo30 pue QOGT/OHQ SSOT ueo] MG‘H@GQW Sepnour sjge] 2A0qe o} Ul EOHmM\rOkQ oyl

10J @wUM\wOHQ .\mzﬂw 21k dIYyMm saJeys Ul JUaUl}sasul 9pNjoUl JOU Se0P pue ssduespe 031 mﬁiwuhmﬁ o[qe} 2a0qe ],

“reak a1 SuLInp s3198Se JO S[ES PUE SILIDA0IDI FULISPISUOD J2}e SI 4107 ‘1€ UDIEJA ' St SI9AMO0LI0] JO I3qUnuU pue junoue SGurpuesino ayJ,

6T0T ‘I YoIeN pepus Jea£ oy unmp seoureape parmdnmnsal wolyy paperddn sjunodoe ou usaq aaey 219 ],

- & s O

‘6107 ‘1€ YOTBN Pepus 1ead o) SULIMp PaInjonnsal Uusaq ALY DIy Sased JIAG ou ale sl ],

~1S9J0N

0Z02Z “T€ UDIEJA PopUD 1894 oy} 10) 5jUWIajE]S [EPURUL] oUOjeplie}s pajeisay]




89°€90°1 (rosee) | (@ | Brsst) | (9s00%c) | (g) | - - - 95968 | pE€0L | - 5082 8£'6809 | ST
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - $S07]
98°G98 (6rssn) | (1) | Gzow) (e6'79) (1) | 0sesy 049281 | 009 8LTFF | 65°€T - 659 ¥H26 z [nygnoQq
QC9F1 L6'ERT L - - - - - _ - (69:621) | (1829 (001 | 64601 | - - 62C1T SF'18T 4 piepuejsqng
zL1e LTE16 ¢ {c9°2) (18°6€) (M) | w0 | emee) | @ | (orose) | 6resyn) | (009 | 66¢ SL6L - 8870 9 0LLS | 11 piepuesg
[ejoy puersy | €
17518 LE8ICT | 8 (8918} | (6¥z8) | (D | (bT881) | (98°00%c) | (¢) | - - - LEL8Y | PEeOL | - §9°295 8€'864S | TIL e10L,
- - - - - - - $507]
0T'Z19 ST | ¥ (tevd) | rzsn) | (1) | BLo2) (¢6°28) (1) | 15°¢%¢ TTSETL | 00% 6S8LE | (oez - $T'S9 L6 z ny3qnoQg
8COFL L6°EHT I - - - - - - 09:9¢ L6'SHT 00T 64601 - 000 000 - piepueisqng
TL1S LTE16 € (Lr2) (62°0¢) - oroon | tedee) | @ | (orose) | 6rsesyl) | 009 | e6< cL6L - 0¥'20S $6°0046 | 0T prepuejg
sPYIO | T
SP'ShT ST'8vC z (8tce) | (cszw) n | - - - - - - 6169 | - - LLTIT 00'162 € TeI0L
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - $S07]
$H8teT $H'8FC z (0oee) | (00€e) - - - - arqre $F'19¢ 002 6169 | - - 000 (000 - mpqno
(00°0) (00°0) - - - - - - - (6cz12) | (8%'182) (002 | - - - 6CTIT $H'18C 4 piepuejsqng
000 000 - (8770 (zge) m |- - - - - - - - - 850 756 1 pIepue;g
¥ap |1
SI0T'1E ,
UdIRN 12 > s1 LWETE | hete
S107'1¢ am u Jurpu UDIeN SIOM
e s1oMm uoazayy | Jur Mmo1 | uoarayy | Bu uoary | Su SIoM om0 eRkicyiNg u
oIy 3B a [e34s 0219y} | ejsino je se 01L10q
se guip oxogq | uo pueisino | 10q | u IpUe}ISINo u IpUeIsine | or1oq 110G jese 3u o1jedIISSeLD)
S€ Hoao ue$ino 00 ISTAOL] junowry 0 OISIAOL] | junowry 9 OISIAOK, Junour 00 ot u (o] uosem pueIsino jo jossy
UOISIAOCL] : JOTON | 181a0) w o i jo- ISHA0Id v 130N SIACIJ | nowry m u P ‘ON
] ON ONl junowry
ON OIS1A01]
C:CEC/J\.
5] (2} .
. A oy Suunp Ad 9yl surinp AroSajed X9 oW R (samnSy g 0
Ad 24 JO 1€ yoien piepuejs painjonijsax 1ea4 ay) Suunp 7 N
U0 S $JUN0YY POINISNLSS SJUNO0JdE PAIN}INIISAI Jo 01 suonepesdd Sunnp sjunosoe pamjnnsas SUIIMIANIISOI USHL Suruado) x g oys yo T Tudy ULIN}ONASIY
3 V painnisay AI2A0033] /212G /5330-93HIAA i hHep a 30 suonepeiSumo(g HIIMSII YSO1] U0 SB SJUNoddy PaInjoniisay] jJoadAy

oL 11 )

:m0]3q u2018 24V §TOT ‘IS YOAVIN papua svahi ay] Surnp paingonigsay spunoon Jo spivgap ay

0202 “T€ YoIeJAl papus 1834 S} 10] SJUSLIIEIS [eIOURUL] SUO[EPUEIS PoJeIsay




‘suwnjod aandadsal
alp) 1apun pasopsip A1aacdal ented pue ps[iear ssnie] [RUOKIPPE A3 M 2[qeredwod jou a1e pue 1eak auy Surmp (uorsiaoid Ut 953109 10J) 41940031 /aTes /Jj0
-jum pue (uoistaoid ur aswasdur 103)SULMIONISAI YSSly UWIN(OY Iopun pasopsip st ‘edueeq Jurusdo o3 peredwrod se junodde paInjonnsal Junsixd
ay) ur suolsiaoid Ul JUBWBAOW 9]-G10Z /810 F0 1T /€2 ON DG dg¥gd ou tendan 1gy jo (x) gH¢ eieg Aq paxmbar se Asemooe Jeoysunpire jo asodind aiy 104 4

-asodind uoneyussaid 10y paious ussq aaey syusurdedas enred xo Aoey [euonippe Surreae sramorroq 3unsixs jo LgWNU
a1 “Aoemode [espsungiiie jo ssodimd a1y 10 “I2A9MOY ¢, SJUNOIOE PIIMIDILISAI JO AISAODDI /B[ES /SJJO-OLIM , TOPUN PISO[ISIP SIe SJUNO0IOE PAINIONIISaI SUnsIxa
ur syuswdedar [ensed pue tesd sy Sunmp Sulinoniser Ysai, IOpUn PasOSIP SI8 SJUNOIDE PIIMIdNIIsal Sunsixs Ul SI9MOII0] Aq PalleAe SaBI[Ie) [PUOHIPPY "9
"$8oUBAPE PaIN}ONISal sy} Uo poy suotsiaoid 130 pue uoisiaoid ssof ueo] jereusd sepnpour a[qe) aaoqe ay ur uotsiaoxd ay], ‘g
-3UIpUERISINO JUNOWE 3} Ul UOHJIWL /7 3 JO 2N[eA 300q J9U JO S3IBYS UI JUSUNSIAUL 9PN[OUT JOU S0P pue sadueape o3 suteptad a[qe; saoqe 3], ¥
*Teak a1y} uULINp $39SSE JO S[S pUB SLIPA0I21 JULISPISUOD I23Je SI QT0T ‘1¢ YDIEA J8 SE SI9MO1I0q JO IaqUInU pire junoure SUIpuelsino ay], ¢
8107 ‘1€ YoIeN papus 1eak oy SuLmp sedueape paIndnnss wolj papeiddn sjunodde ¢ z.mm@ aaeyaIRy] T
"9107 1€ YdIBA Popue Jesi a3 Surninp paindnisal ussq saAey YdoIym sased NG ou ale amdy], 'L
~iS270N

0202 “I£ YoIeIAl Popua 1eaA oy[] 10J sjusiioje)g [eUelUL] SUO[EPURIS pajeisoy




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.23 Restructuring of Advances - Micro Small and Medium Enterprises.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has restructured advances amounting to I 369.24 million (previous
year - Nil, FY 2018 Nil) to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises.

18.6.24 Disclosure under COVID19 Regulatory Package

As per requirement of RBI circular RBI/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 on
COVID19 Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning, below mentioned are details of where
moratorium / deferment was extended as of March 31, 2020 as per above circular.

Particulars % In million

Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment 150,105.54
was extended, in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 of above mentioned circular®;

Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended. 27,129.45
Provisions made during the Q4FY2020 terms of paragraph 5 of above mentioned 2,378.42
circular;

Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and Not Applicable

the residual provisions in terms of paragraph 6 of above mentioned circular

* Borrowers with overdue status as of February 29, 2020 and continue to be in overdue as of March 31, 2020.
Reported amount is position as of March 31, 2020.

From the quarter ended December 31, 2019, the Bank consider slippages in Corporate NPAs post the period end till
the date of results / financial statement, while determining NPAs and related provisioning requirements. Hence
NPAs till March 13, 2020 was considered in the quarter and nine months ended December 2019 results reported on
March 14, 2020. Further the Bank had decided, on a prudent basis, to enhance its Provision Coverage Ratio on its
NPA Ioans over and above the RBI loan level provisioning requirements. As a result, the Bank recognized additional
provisions of X 154,220.39 million in the quarter ended December 31, 2019. Subsequently, RBI issued guidelines on
COVID-19 Regulatory Package, under which, the Bank granted a moratorium of three months on the payment of all
installments and / or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 (later extended to
August 31, 2020). For all such accounts where the moratorium is granted ((except advances at IFSC Banking Unit
(IBU) and advances to NBFC sector), the asset classification shall remain stand still during the moratorium period
(i.e. the number of days past-due shall exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification under
the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms) and as the asset classification as of March 31,
2020 has been retained based on the overdue status as at February 29, 2020. Hence on account of above mentioned
RBI circular dated April 17, 2020, Bank has not considered slippages post March 31, 2020 till the date of results /
financial statement.

In line with RBI requirements, the Bank holds necessary provisions as at March 31, 2020 against the assets where the
ssification benefit has been extended on account of standstill requirements.
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18.6.25 Financial assets sold to Securitization Company /Recoustruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
a) Details of Financial assets sold to Securitization/Reconstruction Company during the vear ended March 31, 2020
are as follows-
(T inmillion)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
(i) No. of accounts 1 2 8
.. Aggregate principal value (net of specific provisions) of accounts ;
() sold to SC / RC 1,233.55 5,450.56 1580378
Aggregate consideration received in Cash (previous year
(i) includes Net Book Value of Security Receipts of ¥2,878.10 1,114.00 4 55870 17,911.10
million ) V0
() Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts ) )
transferred in earlier years -
(v) Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value* (119.55) (891.86) 2,107.32

*As per the extant RBI guidelines, the Bank has not recognized the gains in the restated financial statements and has recorded the
Security Receipts at Net Book Value (NBV). If the sale value is lower than the net book value, the entire loss has been writien off
in the year of sale.

b) Details of Investments held as Security Receipts received by sale of NPA to Securitization/Reconstruction
Company as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as follows-

(¥ inmillion)
Backed by NPAs* sold by other
banks/ financial institutions/ non-
Backed by NPAs* sold by  banking financial companies as
Particulars the Bank as underlying underlying Total
As at
As at March  As at March As at March As at March 31, March As at March
31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2020 2019 31, 2020 31, 2019

Net Book value of
investments in 15,532.65 17,266.83 - - 15,532.65 17,266.83

security receipts

* Includes all Security Receipts received by Bank on sale of assets as permitted under RBI circular DBOD.BP.BC.No.
2:'1::%.@2/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014.
& Co™x
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Details of Investments held as Security Receipts received by sale of NPA to Securitization/Reconstruction Compary as at March
31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as follotws-

Backed by NPPAs* sold by other
banks/ financial institutions/ non-
Backed by NPAs* sold by banking financial companies as
Particulars the Bank as underlying underlying Total
As at
As atMarch  As at March As at March As at March 31, March  As at March
31, 2019 31, 2018 31, 2019 2018 31, 2019 31,2018
Net Book value of
investments in 17,266.83 18,847.22 - - 17,266.83 18,847.22
security receipts
c) Details of ageing of Investments held as Security Receipts as at March 31, 2020 are as follows-
(T inmillion)
SRs issued within LLMSI,}s'v]ASAS_He_d:nng SRs more than
. iliailr J yt:dlb dSU .
Past 5 Years within past 8 years 8 years ago
(i) Book Value of. SRs backed by NPAs* sold by the 20,734.54 871.68
Bank as underlying
Provision held against (i) 5,633.31 440.27
(ii) Book value of SRs backed by NPAs* sold by other
banks / financial institutions / non-banking financial - - 141.99
companies as underlying
Provision held against (ii) - - 141.99
Total (i) + (ii) 20,734.54 871.68 141.99

“Tncludes all Security Receipts received by Bank on sale of assets as permitted under RBI circular DBOD.BP.BC.No.

98/21.04.132/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014.

Details of ageing of Investments held as Security Receipts as at March 31, 2019 are as follows-

(T inmillion)

SRs issued within

Past 5 Years

i} Book Val f SRs backed by NPAs* sold th
(i) Book Value c.> SRs backed by NPAs* sold by the 2128801
Bank as underlying
Provision held against (i) 4,143.48
(if) Book value of SRs backed by NPAs* sold by other
banks / financial institutions / non-banking financial -
companies as underlying
Provision held against (ii) -
Total (i) + (ii) 21,288.01

SRs issued more
than 5 years ago but
within past 8 years

489.18

366.87

489.18

SRs more than
8 years ago

158.63

158.63
158.63

® in miﬂidn)
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SRs issued within SRs issued more SRs more than

Past 5 Years tha.n 5'years ago but 8 years ago
within past 8 years

(i) Book Value of SRs backed by NPAs* sold by the

Bank as underlying 21,201.01 - -

Provision held against (1) 2,353.80 - -

(ii) Book value of SRs backed by NPAs* sold by other
banks / financial institutions / non-banking financial - - 176.96
companies as underlying

Provision held against (ii) - - 176.96
Total (i) + (ii) 21,201.01 - 176.96

*Includes all Security Receipts received by Bank on sale of assets as permitted under RBI circular DBOD.BP.BC.No.
98/21.04.132/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014.

18.6.26 Non-performing financial assets purchased/ sold fromy/ to other bank

The Bank has not purchased/sold any non performing financial assets from/to another bank during the year ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

18.6.27  Provisions for Standard Assets

Provision on standard advances for the year FY 2019-20 was ¢ 12,597.18 million. As per requirement of RBI circular
RBI1/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 on COVID19 Regulatory Package -
Asset Classification and Provisioning, the Bank has created provision amounting to % 2,378.42 million.

Provision on standard advances for the year FY 2018-19 was ¥32,007.97 million. During the year FY 2018-19 based on
review of Credit portfolio of the Bank, the Bank had identified certain performing accounts which faced stress due to
market and liquidity condition. The Bank had created Contingency Provision of I 21,000 million in FY 2018-19
towards such identified accounts. The Bank has utilized the same during the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

Provision on standard advances for the year FY 2017-18 was X 9,493.91 million.

18.6.28 Business ratios

Business Ratios As at March As at March  As at March

31,2020 31,2019 31,2018
i) Interest income as a percentage to working funds! 8.56% 9.00% 8.55%
if) Non interest income as a percentage to working funds! 3.89% 1.40% 2.20%
iii) Operating profit as a percentage to working funds! 3.92% 2.47% 3.27%
iv) Return on assets! (5.39%) 0.52% 1.78%
v) Business (deposits + net advances) per employee? (¥ in million) 119.51 232.74 213.02
vi) Profit per employee? (¥ in million) (7.34) 0.89 2.30

1 Working funds represents the average of total assets as reported in Return Form X to RBI under Section 27 of the Banking

on Act, 1949.
rpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus advances), interbank deposits have been mcl
yees have been considered.
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18.6.29 Asset Liability Managenent

The following table sets forth the maturity pattern of assets and liabilities of the Bank as on March 31, 2020

(T inmillion)
Maturity Buckets Alé(‘)]zr:ii Insv:cs::;;:: Deposits  Borrowings FCY Assets Liabi]fticei
1 Day 8,025.33 71,789.61 8,441.02 - 8,979.71 68.99
2-7 days 9,708.54 6,371.23 30,023.25 30,674.28 1,079.07 1,843.81
8-14 Days 4,915.97 12,327.99 25,286.98 10,000.00 1,727.93 1,512.93
15-30 Days 13,982.47 22,911.60 58,617.11 10,514.33 7,007.66 14,250.90
1-2 Months 18,841.10 6,655.15 60,540.55 5,526.27 15,982.49 23,244.12
2-3 Months 27,924.66 68,869.55 53,676.95 5,22,566.50 7,942.29 9,385.51
3-6 Months 88,869.66 29,080.88 2,18,193.16 30,823.89 23,900.57 27,626.33
6-12 Months 2,10,239.94 39,658.60 2,01,121.17 69,532.14 29,603.21 40,786.90
1-3 Years 6,15,287.44 45,538.60 1,10,073.90 1,03,259.49 52,635.38 74,307.17
3-5 Years 3,69,496.19 86,511.33 2,80,739.70 1,62,949.70 36,761.05 13,316.29
5+ Years 3,47,141.65 49,433.72 6,925.64 1,92,058.43 32,499.00 38,763.72
TOTAL 1,714,432.94 439,148.26 1,053,639.43  1,137,905.03  218,118.37 245,106.68

The following table sets forth the maturity pattern of assets and liabilities of the Bank as on March 31, 2019
(T in million)

1day 18,741.23 115,057.51 14,114.50 2,766.20 45,844.33 3,009.61
2 days to 7 days 25,450.36 82,235.40 72,695.90 11,443.21 143,295.26 44,405.33
8 days to 14 days 18,905.83 76,910.98 56,700.46 8,127.59 51,584.38 7,211.95
15 days to 30 days 87,805.53 49,944.03 93,871.31 25,199.10 8,897.66 24,760.44
31 days to 2 months 53,956.34 21,081.44 102,819.85 42,943.52 9,979.06 17,926.29
Over 2 to 3 months 59,965.66 20,424.66 93,756.82 51,850.79 10,069.68 30,538.71
Over 3 to 6 months 134,256.62 54,993.97 291,401.98 94,698.15 12,414.32 75,875.66
Over 6 to 12 months 267,698.90 81,453.84 532,865.04 80,783.27 15,576.34 87,206.34
Over 1 year to 3 years 815,539.91 106,228.31 259,174.09 225,747 43 68,904.81 137,663.10
Over 3 years to 5 years 458,421.60 173,169.29 744,942 .50 239,219.02 61,780.53 75,666.30
Over 5 years 474,254.06 113,720.89 13,759.37 301,462.81 53,294.83 38,451.86
TOTAL 2,414,996.02 895,220.33 2,276,101.82  1,084,241.09 481,641.20 542,715.58

Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used
by the Bank for compiling the return submitted to the RBI.
,N:;::x;%@%rity profile of foreign currency assets and liabilities is excluding Off Balance Sheet item.
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The following table sets forth the maturity pattern of assets and liabilities of the Bank as on March 31, 2018

(T inmillion)

1 day 10,988.03 137,582.88 13,024.30 - 14,880.51 193.47
2 days to 7 days 13,100.67 30,880.58 82,984.05 49,556.74 17,967.18 10,924.44
8 days to 14 days 13,216.35 35,252.15 63,368.79 3,380.43 2,842.68 5,178.34
15 days to 30 days 72,905.99 75,887.61 81,897.55 14,135.49 19,366.13 13,097.10
31 days to 2 months 52,563.54 23,284.64 137,014.31 18,042.32 8,389.32 13,384.64
Over 2 to 3 months 62,912.23 22,200.05 115,962.90 33,629.88 12,158.69 27,379.05
Qver 3 to 6 months 148,767.19 35,487.29 202,682.14 69,982.00 15,531.12 59,634.76
Over 6 to 12 months 265,795.20 61,563.74 389,251.43 24,335.08 25,143.58 39,802.43
Over 1 year to 3 years 708,650.71 44,110.38 181,873.32 131,991.66 45,377.19 61,440.64
Over 3 years to b years 358,786.63 134,284.60 719,657.50 101,783.36 72,149.10 93,754.96
Over 5 years 327,652.08 83,455.47 19,665.19 302,098.86 25,085.58 29,695.44
TOTAL 2,035,338.63 683,989.39 2,007,381.48 748,935.81 258,891.07 354,485.28

Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and
assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the return submitted to the RBI.

18.6.30 Exposures

The Bank has lending to sectors, which are sensitive to asset price fluctuations. Such sectors include capital market
and real estate.

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

The exposure, representing the higher of funded and non-funded limits sanctioned or outstanding to real estate
sector, is given in the table below:

(¥ in million)

Sr. Particulars As at As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i) Direct exposure
Residential Mortgages 68,518.37 61,423.70 37,895.13
Commercial Real Estate* 274,390.37 343,537.29 254,879.15
Of total Commercial real estate - exposure to 179,976.26 226,018.49 174,818.07
residential real estate projects
Of total Commercial Real Estate - outstanding as 234,579.57 248,340.53 164,404.61
advances

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities
(MBS) and other securitized exposures
- Residential 2,782.25 3,767.22 757.85
- Commercial Real Estate - - -
1) Indirect exposure
Z ég* d based and non fund based exposures on 87,231.42 128,267.61 63,456.04

s,
. o,

\§‘§ gnal Housing Board and Housing Finance
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TOTAL 432,922.41 536,995.81
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*Commnercial real estate exposure classification is based on RBI circular DBOD.BP.BC.No. 42/08.12.015/2009-10

dated Septemnber 9, 2009.

Exposure to Capital Market

The exposure representing the higher of funded and non-funded limits sanctioned or outstanding to

capital market sector is given in the table below:

(T inmillion)

Sr. Particulars
No.

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

1) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and
units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

iif) advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security;

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible
bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the
advances;

v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers;*

vi) loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution
to the equity of new companies in anticipation of
raising resources;

vii) financing for acquisition of equity in overseas
companies /financing for acquisition of equity in
Indian companies

viii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity
flows / issues;

ix) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks
in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds;

x) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

xi) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both
registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

As at
March 31,
2020

285.73

4,633.02

6,333.69

10,462.61

10,555.53

19,215.80

200.41

51,686.80

As at
March 31, 2019

442.60

6,154.06

5,295.06

13,646.54

21,789.52

44,218.55

202.53

91,748.86

As at
March 31, 2018

204.88

3,736.64

2,237.61

9,488.19

23,171.23

12,949.56

173.00

51,961.11

ufbal-4000 1y @ 0.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16).

p or WpOImNaLy 'fl}f % .
W Joshi Marg, | iy
umalaxmidap'tlﬂ? arket exposure is veported in line with Para 2.3 of RBI's Master Circular on Exposure Norms dated July 1;2015
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*Oul of the above 282.59 million is exposure lo YES Securities (India) Limiled, which is a subsidiary of the Bank

18.6.31 Risk Category wise Country Exposure

As per the extant RBI guidelines, the country exposure (direct and indirect) of the Bank is categorised into various

risk categories listed in the following table. As at March 31, 2020, the funded country exposure (net) of the Bank as a
percentage of total funded assets for Mauritius was 1.07% (March 31, 2019: 0.80%) (March 31, 2019 : United States of
America was 4.37% and for United Kingdom was 1.11%) and (March 31, 2018 : United States of America was 0.62%
and for United Kingdom was 0.94%). As the net funded exposure to Mauritius exceeded 1.0% of total funded assets,
the Bank held a provision of ¥ 68.97 million on country exposure at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: X 532.78 million

and March 31, 2018: "NIL") based on RBI guidelines.

(T inmillion)
Provision Provision Exposure Provision
Risk Exposure (net) held Exposure (net) held (net) held
Catevor as at as at as at as at as at as at
gory March 31, 2020 March 31, March 31, 2019 March 31, March31, March3l,
2020 2019 2018 2018
Insignificant 149,504.65 - 374,555.20 532.78 223,896.21 -
Low 60,475.34 68.97 65,596.60 - 54,802.82 -
Moderately - - 239178 - 1,750.32 -
Low
Moderate 4,148.74 - 1,549.65 - 704.61 -
Moderate ) ) ) } ) )
High
High - - - - - -
Very High - - - - - -
TOTAL 214,128.73 68.97 444,093.23 532.78 281,153.96 -

18.6.32 Details of factoring exposure
The factoring exposure of the Bank outstanding as on March 31, 2020 is X 2,251.50 million (previous year: X 6,059.85

million, FY 2018 ¥ 7,362.30 million).

Miscellaneous

18.6.33 Income Taxes

Provisions made for Income Tax during the year

(T in million)
For the year For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31, ended March
2020 2019 31, 2018
Current income tax expense 13,401.93 22,982.24 22,385.22
Deferred income tax credit (57,480.82) (16,611.55) (2,687.77)
(44,078.89) 6,370.69 19,697.45
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18.6.34 Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI

(¢ inmillion)

For the year ended March
31, 2020
Deficiency (Note Sorting Machines were not installed) observed during incognito visit '
0.01
of a YES Bank Branch
Penalties on account of Soiled/ Mutilate/ Counterfeit Notes deposited by currency 0.00
chest —
TOTAL 0.01
(Z inmillion)
For the year ended March
31,2019
Non-compliance with RBI directions on Time-bound implementation and
. . . 10.00
strengthening of Swift related operational controls.
Penalty on account of non- compliance with RBI guidelines on issuance of co-branded 1.13
open loop prepaid cards*
Penalties on account of counterfeit notes deposited by branches and currency chest 0.02
TOTAL 11.15

* Based on communication received from the RBI vide letter dated April 22, 2019,

(T inmillion)

For the year ended March
31,2018

Penalty on account of non-compliance with the directions issued by RBI on Income

Recognition Asset Classification (IRAC) norms and delayed reporting of information 60.00
security incident involving the outsourced ATM switch of the bank.

Penalties on account of counterfeit notes/ soiled notes remitted by branches and
currency chest

TOTAL 60.07

18.6.35 Fees/ Remunteration received from bancassurance

Bank has earned & 836.40 million from bancassurance business during year ended March 31, 2020 (previous year: ¥
868.16 million, FY 2018 ¥ 767.80 million).

e,

lﬂcnrA_\\ toMarch 31, 2020, the deposits of top 20 depositors aggregated to ¥ 130,699.58 million (plevm siy 1
6 7 7@1 million, FY 2018 ¥ 244,366.30 million) (excludmg certificate of dep051ts, which are tradable: instrumen
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18.6.37 Concentration of Advaices

As at March 31, 2020 the top 20 advances aggregated to ¥439,799.02 million (previous year T617,993.23 million, FY
2018 % 484,353.89 million), representing 11.62% (previous year 13.28%, FY 2018 -12.72%) of the total advances. For this
purpose, advance is computed as per definition of Credit Exposure in RBI Master Circular on Exposure Norms
DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015.

18.6.38 Councentration of Exposures

As at March 31, 2020 the top 20 exposures aggregated to T 497,206.14million (previous year X 677,765.38 million, FY
2018 ¥ 556,575.44 million), representing 12.56% (previous year 13.54%, FY 2018 13.68%) of the total exposures.

Exposure is computed as per definition of Credit and Investment Exposure in RBI Master Circular on Exposure
Norms DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015.

18.6.39 Earnings Per Share ("EPS’)

The Bank reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20
“Earnings Per Share”. The dilutive impact is mainly due to stock options granted to employees by the Bank.

The computation of earnings per share is given below:

(T inmillion)

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Basic (annualised)
Weighted average no. of equity shares 2,928,382,648 2,309,296,728 2,292,768,279
outstanding
Net profit / (loss) (¥ ) (164,180.31) 17,202.79 42,245.64
Basic earnings per share () (56.07) 7.45 18.43
Diluted (annualised)
Weighted average no. of equity shares 2,928,411,435 2,331,418,688 2,339,752,831
outstanding
Net profit / (loss) (¥ ) (164,180.31) 17,202.79 42,245.64
Diluted earnings per share (¢) (56.06) 7.38 18.06
Nominal value per share (¥ ) 2 2 2

The difference between weighted average number of equity shares outstanding between basic and diluted in the
above mentioned disclosure is on account of outstanding ESOPs.

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per equity
share has been computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares options outstanding during the year,
_—except where the results are anti-dilutive. The dilutive impact is on account of stock options granted to employees by
There is no impact of dilution on the profits in the current year and previous year.
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18.6.40 Owerseas Assets, NPAs and Reveue

The below table shows total assets, NPAs and revenue for the overseas branches of the Bank

i million

Particulars Year ended March Year ended March Year ended March

v‘ ¢ 31, 2020 31, 2019 31,2018
Total assets 176,562.78 331,594.88 181,840.46
Tofal NPAs 7,995.64 - -
Total revenue 10,935.62 15,602.98 9,184.00

18.6.41  Repatriation of profits

During the FY 2019-20, there is no repatriation of profits.

During FY 2018-19, given adequate availability of liquidity at IBU and on account of high volatility in USD-INR
movement which could expose Bank to translation risk to the extent of accumulated reserves at IBU, IBU repatriated
an amount of USD 90 million (X 6,459.43 million) to HO from its accumulated reserves.. The Bank has not recognized
any gain in Profit and Loss Statement, as per RBI notification dated April 18, 2017, from Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve (FCTR) on repatriation of accumulated profits / retained earnings.

During the FY 2017-18, there is no repatriation of profits.

18.6.42 Sponsored SPVs

The Bank has not sponsored any SPV and hence there is no consolidation due to SPVs in Bank’s books for FY 2020,
FY 2019 and FY 2018.

18.6.43 Credit default swaps

The Bank has not transacted in credit default swaps during the year ended March 31, 2020 (previous year: Nil, FY
2018: Nil).

18.6.44 Credit/ Debit card reward points

Provision for credit card and debit card reward points for the year ended March 31, 2020

(¥ inmillion)
Particulars For the year ended March  For the year ended March
31, 2020 31,2019
Opening provision 233.67 11212
Provision made during the year 166.98 180.73
Utilised/ Write-back of provision (57.79) (59.18)
. ,@Q%gl‘g provision 342.86 233.67

s, K g

gﬂoﬁm igand debit card
y i

gzéz}?%n of credit card and debit card reward points is based on actuarial valuation method obtained Sfrom an independent
e /; - .. e

o7 i
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18.6.45 Corporate Social Respousibility (CSR)

a) Amount required to be spent by the Bank on CSR during the year ¥ 831.9 million (previous year X
955.8 million, FY 2018 ¥ 772.21 million ).

by Amount spent towards CSR during the year and recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss

account on CSR related activities is ¥ 405.42 million (previous year ¥ 537.86 million, FY 2018 X
452.13 million), which comprise of following -

(< inmillion)

March 31, 2020 March, 31 2019 March, 31 2018
mﬁ::itd / I Amt I Amt
n ] n
In cash provision | Total unpfu.d/ Total unpaid / Total
cash provision cash ..
provision
i. Construction/acquisition
of any asset
ii. On purposes other than
(i) ab 21112 194.30 405.42 470.78 67.08 537.86 397.89 54.24 452.13
i) above ‘

18.6.46  Staff retirement benefits

The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the Bank’s restated
financial statements as of March 31, 2020 , March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

a) Changes in present value of Obligations

(Tin million)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March As at March

31,2019 31,2018

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 1,440.46 1,129.14 873.21
Interest Cost 101.77 85.75 60.03
Current Service Cost 366.86 271.85 256.57
Past Service Cost - - -
Benefits Paid (153.87) (80.28) (103.59)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obligation (201.45) 33.98 42.92
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 1,553.76 1,440.46 1,129.14

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

(¥ in million)

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,117.87 1,144.35
of-Adjustment to Opening Balance - -
@ &, }E»?ﬁe ed return on plan assets 78.42 80.05

Of‘ba% 200.00 -

N, }J’ﬁi%%g}é\ : (153.87) (80.28)
M}}f)';i:i‘!;’fkf@tuzr(i;a ligain/ ( loss) on plan assets (26.95) (26.25)
mbai-4 »oﬁairf Q‘Chfé of plan assets at the end of the period 1,215.46 1,117.87

Indiz
e
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-

The Bank has entire contribution of Gratuity Fund as Investments with Insurance Companies which are invested
Y P
primarily in debt instruments as approved by IRDA,

Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on the expected average long-term rate of return on investments of
the Fund during the estimated term of the obligations

Net gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 comprises the following components:
(T inmdllion)

For the year ended For the year For the year

March 31,2020 ended March 31, ended March 31,

2019 2018

Current Service Cost 366.86 271.85 256.57
Interest Cost 101.77 85.75 60.03
Expected Return on plan assets (78.42) (80.05) (60.92)
Net Actuarial gain recognized in the year (174.50) 60.24 52.40
Past Service Cost - - -
Expenses recognized 215.71 337.79 308.08

Experience History:
(¥ inmillion)

For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year For the
ended ended ended ended ended year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(Gain)/Loss on obligation due ) 15 63.57 (70.88) 4639 1411 3371
to change in assumption
Experience (Gain)/Loss on 47.68 (29.59) 113.80 30.12 (9.26) (51.13)
obligation
::‘Si“t:”al Gain/(Loss) onplan ¢ o5y (26.25) (.21) 6.96 (14.25) (2.49)

The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out below:

For the year For the year For the year ended
ended ended March 31, 2018
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Discount Rate 6.00% 7.05% 7.60%

Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality TALM (2012-14) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult

Future Salary Increases 9.00% 12.00% 12.00%

Disability -

0; E{})ﬁtﬂ&gn 13%-25% 13%-25% 13%-25%

- —-Retigement 60 yrs 60 yrs 60 yrs

i ffoot. Y

dhy, Lroenrss o ) \g

U o
Agﬁuaria(% %ﬁsumption on salary increase also takes into consideration the inflation, seniority, promotion and. other

: ahatay

i gy 11
fm bai-élbLe)g%‘./a“:gﬁfgfdorS'

intha /;
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Position of plan asset / liability

(T inmillion)

For the year For the year ended For the year ended
ended March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
March 31, 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 1,215.46 1,117.87 1,144.35
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the
1,553.76 1,440.46 1,129.15
year
Plan asset / (liability) (338.3) (322.59) 15.20

The Bank is yet to determine future contribution to Gratuity fund for Financial Year 2020-21
National Pension Scheme

The Bank has contributed ¥ 24.36 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: T 19.33 million and
March 31, 2018: T 15.22 million) to NPS for employees who had opted for the scheme. The Bank has no liability for
future fund benefits other than its annual contribution for the employees who agree to contribute to the scheme.

Provident Fund (PF)

The Bank has recognised in the profit and loss account X 1,039.82 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March
31, 2019: T 804.29 million and March 31, 2018: ¥ 716.81 million ) towards contribution to the provident fund.

Compensated absence

The Bank has recognised T 169.54 million in the profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2020 (March 31,
2019: ¥ 169.60 million and March 31, 2018: ¥ 51.72 million) towards compensated absences.

18.6.47 Segment Results

Pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI on AS-17 (Segment Reporting) - Enhancement of Disclosures dated April 18,
2007, effective from period ending March 31, 2008, the following business segments have been reported.

e  Treasury: Includes investments, all financial markets activities undertaken on behalf of the Bank's customers,

proprietary trading, maintenance of reserve requirements and resource mobilisation from other banks and
financial institutions.

e Corporate / Wholesale Banking: Includes lending, deposit taking and other services offered to corporate

customers.
e Retail Banking; Includes lending, deposit taking and other services offered to retail customers.

e Other Banking Operations: Includes para banking activities like third party product distribution, merchant

o M‘»«w%l?ag\ ing etc.
v BT
Gy Crien Sy
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Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2020 are set out below:

(T inmillion)

Business Segments Corporate / Retail Other Banking

Treasury Wholesale Bankin Ovperations Total

Banking & p

Segment Revenue 118,905.25 170,550.01 59,161.77 1,982.65 350,599.67
Less: Inter-segment o o , ;s (55,518.69)
Revenue net of inter- : o ’ 295,080.98
segment , e e . S ’ . ’
Result (15,056.16) (244,768.03)  (10,469.90) (36.45) (270,330.55)
Unallocated Expenses . . ... (22,078.65)
Operating Profit (292,409.19)
Income Taxes (65,259.44)
Extra-ordinary Profit/(Loss) 62,969.45
Net Profit (164,180.31)
Other Information:
Segment assets 718,647.95 1,258,879.95  503,345.05 2,481,105.39
Unallocated assets . - ey 97,163.85
Total assets o o o ; 2,578,269.23
Segment liabilities 1,317,079.06 479,468.85  547,960.41 2,345,478.98
Unallocated liabilities .- . 232,790.24
Total liabilities 2,578,269.22

Other banking operations includes income from bancassurance business ¥ 836.40 million during year ended March
31, 2020.

Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2019 are set out below:
(T inmillion)

Business Segments Treasury Corporate / Retail Other Banking Total
Wholesale Banking Operations
Banking

Segment Revenue 222,653.47 45,658.71 2,051.90 374,903.85
Less: Inter-segment ; . - (32,759.28)
Revenue net of inter- segment . o - . . 342,144.57
Result o 14,180.12  (4,524.82) 916.64 46,032.30
Unallocated Expenses s . (22,458.83)
Operating Profit 23,573.47
Income Taxes 6,370.68
Extra-ordinary Profit/(Loss) -
Net Profit 17,202.79
Other Information: o - .. o

Segment assets 1,302,259.99  1979,884.76  486,554.09 88539  3,769,584.22
Unallocated assets ... .. ~ f 38,677.42
Total assets .. . . 3,808,261.64
Segment liabilities  1,081,751.87  1,411,797.46 947,394, 1,082.29 3,442,025.66
Unallocated liabilities - ; 366,235.98
Total liabilities 3,808,261.64

Other hanking operations includes income from bancassurance business T 868.16 million during year ended. March

~v F!g’f;nm 19(*;
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Segmental results for the year ended March 31, 2018 are set out below:

(T inmillion)

Business Segments Treasury Corporate/ Retail Other Banking Total
Wholesale Banking Operations
Banking

Segment Revenue 65,927.05 166,358.80 29,728.16 1,954.12 263,968.13
Less: Inter-segment , i : : 9,044.11
Revenue net of inter- segment , o o 254,924.02
Result 29,460.99 54,748.04 (5,907.63) 1,108.21 79,409.61
Unallocated Expenses L ~ - - = (17,466.51)
Operating Profit 61,943.10
Income Taxes 9,697.46
Extra-ordinary Profit/ (Loss) -
Net Profit 42,245.64
Other Information: : y o ..

Segment assets 1,022,128.60 1,714,630.3 371,370.33 329.97 3,108,459.22
Unallocated assets L - - . o - 15,996.81
Total assets o - .. .. 3,124,456.03
Segment liabilities 751,075.32 1,261,531.12  750,850.50 4,724.60 2,768,181.54
Unallocated liabilities . e . . 356,274.49
Total liabilities ‘ , , - o ,, 3,124,456.03
Other banking operations mcludes income from bancassulance busmess ? 767 80 mxlhon durmg yeal ended March

31, 2018.

Notes for segment reporting:

1. The business of the Bank is concentrated largely in India. Accordingly, geographical segment results have not been
reported in accordance with AS-17 (Segment Reporting).

2. In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the Management and have
been relied upon by the audilors.

3. Income, expense, assets and liabilities have been either specifically identified with individual segment or allocated to
segments on a systematic basis or classified as unallocated.

4. The unallocated assets Includes tax paid in advance/tax deducted at source and deferred tax asset.

5. The unallocated liabilities include Share Capital, Reserves & Surplus and Tier 1 bond borrowings.

‘“”“’blte; segment transactions have been generally based on transfer pricing measures as determined by the Management.

/@0 & Co ™ <
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18.6.48 Related Party Disclosures

The Bank has transactions with its related parties comprising of subsidiary, key management personnel and

the relative of key management personnel

As per AS 18 “Related Party Disclosures”, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Bank’s related parties for the year
ended March 31, 2020 are disclosed below:

Subsidiary

. Yes Securities (India) Limited

. Yes Asset Management (India) Limited
. Yes Trustee Limited

Individuals having significant influence:

. Mr. Ravneet Gill, Managing Director & CEO (till March 05, 2020)

. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Administrator - Appointed by the Reserve Bank of India, (from March 06, 2020
till March 25, 2020)

. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Managing Director & CEO (from March 26, 2020)

Investing Company
Investing party - State Bank of India Limited (SBI)

Key Management Personnel (‘KMP’) (Whole time Director)

. Mr. Ravneet Gill, Managing Director & CEO (till March 05, 2020)

. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Administrator - Appointed by the Reserve Bank of India, (from March 06, 2020
till March 25, 2020)

. Mr. Prashant Kumar, Managing Director & CEO (from March 26, 2020)

The following represents the significant transactions between the Bank and such related parties including
relatives of above mentioned KMP during the year ended March 31, 2020
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18.6.49 Operating Leases

Lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2020 was ¥ 3,900.61 million
(Previous year: X 3,613.24 million, FY 2018 ¥4,041.06 million). During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank paid
minimum lease payment 3,782.51 million (Previous year: ¥3,623.94 million, FY 2018 ¥3,696.34 million).

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of future rentals payment on operating leases:
(T inmillion)

Lease obligations As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 3,337.42 3,461.65 3,674.42
Later than one year and not later than five years 10,090.09 9,751.31 14,583.08
Later than five years 13,749.82 12,418.84 16,627.33
TOTAL 27,77.33 25,631.80 34,884.83

The Bank does not have any provisions relating to contingent rent.
The terms of renewal/ purchase options and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements.
There are no undue restrictions or onerous clauses in the agreements.

18.6.50 ESOP disclosures

Statutory Disclosures Regarding Joining Stock Option Scheme:

The Bank has Five Employee Stock Option Schemes viz.

A

* Joining Employee Stock Option Plan I (JESOP 1),

* Joining Employee Stock Option Plan 11 (JESOP 11I),

*  YBL ESOP (consisting of two sub schemes JESOP 1V/PESOP 1)

*  YBLJESOP V/PESOP II (Consisting of three sub schemes JESOP V/ PESOP I1/PESOP 11 -2010)

*  YBL Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (YBL ESOS 2018) [Consisting of YBL Joining Employee Stock
Option Plan, 2018 (JESOP 2018); YBL Performance Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 (PESOP 2018),
PESOP 2019; and YBL MD&CEO (New) Stock Option Plan, 2019 (MD&CEO Plan 2019)]

Effective from June 13, 2018, all new options have been granted under the YBL ESOS 2018 (which inter-alia consists
of JESOP 2018, PESOP 2018 and MD & CEO Plan 2019). The YBL ESOS 2018 and plans formulated thereunder are in
compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time. Source
of shares are primary in nature, since the Bank has been issuing new equity shares upon exercise of options

JESOP 1I and JESOP III were in force for employees joining the Bank up to March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007
respectively. Grants under PESOP II had been discontinued w.e.f. January 20, 2010. Grants under JESOP IV /PESOP I
and JESOP V/ PESOP II -2010 had been discontinued w.e.f. June 12, 2018 pursuant to coming into effect of YBL ESOS
2018. However, any options already granted under the abovementioned plans would be valid in accordance with the

terms & conditions mentioned in the plans
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JESOP/PESOP ESOP Scheme Exercise period
JESOP 11 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP 111 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP JESOP 1V 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
JESOP V 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
MD&CEQ Plan 2019 20%,30% & 50% each year, from end of 1t year from the Grant date
PESOP | 25% after each year from the Grant date
PESOP 11 30%, 30% & 40% after each year from the Grant date
PESOP 11 - 2010 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 31d year from the Grant date
PESOP JESOP 2018 50% after 3 years and balance after 5 years from the Grant date
PESOP 2018 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 3 year from the Grant date
PESOP 2019 30%, 30% & 40% each year, from end of 3d year from the Grant date

Options under all the aforesaid plans are granted for a term of 10 years (inclusive of the vesting period) and are
settled with equity shares being allotted to the beneficiary upon exercise.

A summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option plans as on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is set out below:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

PESOP JESOP PESOP JESOP PESOP JESOP
Options outstanding at
the beginning of the 35019115 18,254,826 46257335  15963,100 64,802,165 20,614,950
year
Granted during the year 18,032,000 2,025,000 365,000 5,940,000 3,847,500 1,697,500
5;‘::“5“1 during the 4,037,675 346,499 9,265,020 2,800,774 15,590,830 4,947,350
Forfeited / lapsed 12,316,650 5,419,275 2,338,200 847,500 6,801,500 1,402,000

during the year
Options outstanding at
the end of the year
Options exercisable 16,388,915 6,650,302 18,701,265 3,901,451 18,413,585 2,277,350
Weighted average

36,696,790 14,514,052 35,019,115 18,254,826 46,257,335 15,963,100

. L. 63.56 80.52 70.84 106.08 64.76 74.59
exercise price (°) ,
Weighted average
remaining contractual 2.39 177 1.50 1.86 1.78 1.82

life of outstanding
option (yrs)

The Bank has charged Nil amount, being the intrinsic value of the stock options granted for the year ended March 31,
2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. Had the Bank adopted the Fair Value method (based on Black- Scholes
pricing model), for pricing and accounting of options, net profit /loss after tax would have been lower by X 505.40
million (Previous year: ¥ 375.18 millions, FY 2018 X 414.98 millions), the basic earnings per share would have been X
(56.24) (Pre{lious year: ¥ 7.29, FY 2018 X 18.24 ) per share instead of X (56.07) (Previous year: X 7.45, FY 2018 X 18.43)

P erﬁféT';effé;: nd diluted earnings per share would have been ¥ (56.24) (Previous year: ¥ 7.22, FY 2018 ¥ 17.88) per
7 R L(“) g5 p Yy P
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The following assumptions have been made for compulation of the fair value of ESOP granted for the year ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Risk free interest rate 6.29%-9.23% 6.29%-9.23% 6.29%-9.23%
Expected life 1.5yrs-75yrs 1.5yrs-75yrs 15yrs-75yrs
Expected volatility 25.01%-48.72% 25.01%-48.72% 25.01%-48.72%
Expected dividends 1.10% 1.20% 1.20%

In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the Management.

18.6.51 Deferred Taxation

The deferred tax asset of ¥ 82,809.96 million as at March 31, 2020, ¥ 25,320.14 million as at March 31, 2010 and

8,717.59 million as at March 31, 2018 is included under other assets and the corresponding credits have been taken to

joo)

the profit and loss account.

The components that give rise to the deferred tax asset included in the balance sheet are as follows:
(¥ in million)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
2020

Deferred tax asset
Depreciation 585.78 598.64 415.56
Provision for gratuity and unutilized leave 322.73 391.24 208.24
Provision for Non Performing Assets 60,164.53 9,779.42 2,926.75
Amortization of premium on HTM securities 132.39 1,035.72 1,025.76
Provision for standard advances 3,123.15 11,119.17 ' 3,220.59
Other Provisions 18,481.38 2,404.94 920.69
Deferred tax asset 82,809.96 25,329.13 8,717.59

The Bank has a total deferred tax asset of T 82,809.96 million as at March 31, 2020. During the year ended March 31, 2020,
the Bank has made loss of ¥ 164,180.31 million, however it had taxable profit in the year ended March 31, 2020. The Bank
continues to carry such deferred tax asset in its Balance Sheet, as basis financial projections approved by the Board of
Directors, there is reasonable certainty of having sufficient taxable income to enable realization of the said deferred tax
asset as specified in Accounting Standard 22 (Accounting for Taxes on Income).

During the quarter ended September 30, 2019, the Bank had elected to exercise the option permitted under section
115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the
Bank had recognised Provision for Income Tax and re-measured its deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed in the
aforesaid section and recognized the effect of this change by revising the annual effective income tax rate. The rate of

ome, tax is changed from 34.944% to 25.168%. The re-measurement of accumulated deferred tax asset had resulted in a

Prdy

.&4&4@313 Agditional charge of ¥ 7,086.10 million.
Sth Floor, ™ ~,:;§'
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18.6.52  Provisions and Contingencices

The breakup of provisions of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are
given below:
(T i million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year For the year
March 31, 2020 ended ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Provision for taxation (44,078.89) 6,370.68 19,697 46

Provision for investments 64,819.07 6,824.89 2,599.44

Provision for standard advances (19,410.78) 22,514.06 1,687.43

Provision made/ write off for non performing

advances 278,060.36 25,669.54 10,788.29

Others Provisions* 4,115.69 2,767.12 462.88
TOTAL 283,505.45 64,146.28 35,235.50

* Other Provisions includes provision made against other assets.

Other Disclosures

18.6.53 Disclosure on Remuneration
a. Composition of the N&RC of the Bank as on March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Mr. Mahesh Krishnamurti Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sunil Mehta Non-Executive Director (Chairman)

Mr. Atul Bheda Non-Executive Director

Mr. Swaminathan Janakiraman Director nominated by State Bank of India

The roles and responsibilities of the N&RC are as under-

1. To review the current Board composition, its governance framework and determine future requirements and
making recommendations to the Board for approval;

2. To examine the qualification, knowledge, skill sets and experience of each director vis-a-vis the Bank's
requirements and their effectiveness to the Board on a yearly basis and accordingly recommend to the Board
for the induction of new Directors;

3. Toreview:

A. the composition of the existing Committees of the Board and to examine annually whether there is any
need to have a special committee of directors to meet the business requirements of the Bank and accordingly
recommend to the Board for formation of a special committee.

B. Review the Terms of Reference of the Board Level Committees and recommend the changes therein, if any,
to the Board;

4. To scrutinise nominations for Independent/Non-Executive Directors with reference to their qualifications
and experience and making recommendations to the Board for appointment/filling of vacancies;

5. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

6. To Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;

7. To carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;

.. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report

: ; f performance evaluation of independent directors; -

N ]g validate 'fit and proper' status of all Directors on the Board of the Bank in terms of the Gh"delmes issued
vthe RBI or other regulatory authorities; iy

" ’ d -] Tmlodevelop and recommend to the Board Corporate Governance guidelines apphcable '

in¢orporating best practices; 8

rmnplement policies and processes relating to Corporate Governance principles;

ﬂ1e Bank for
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12.
13.
14.
15.

16.

17.

19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
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To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director;

To devise a Policy on Board diversity;

To recommend to the Board a policy relating to, the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees including performance/achievement bonus, perquisites, retirals, sitting fee, etc.;

To review the Bank's overall compensation structure and related polices with a view to attract, motivate and
retain employees and review compensation levels vis-a-vis other Banks and the industry in general;

To ensure the following while formulating the policy on the aforesaid matters:

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors, key managerial personnel and senior management of the quality required to run the company
successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

(c) remuneration to Whole time directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long- term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals.

(d) Recommend to the board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management

To consider grant of Stock Options to employees including employees of subsidiaries and administer and
supervise the Employee Stock Option Plans;

To function as the Compensation Committee as prescribed under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 and is authorized to allot shares pursuant to exercise of Stock Options by employees;

To review the Human Capital Capacity Planning on annual basis;

To review the list of risk takers on annual basis;

To review the HCM Policies and provide suitable guidance for additions/ modification/ deletions, if any;

To review the Succession Planning; and :

To perform any other functions or duties as stipulated by the Companies Act, Reserve Bank of India,
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges and any other regulatory authority or under any
applicable laws as may be prescribed from time to time.

a.  Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes and the key features and objectives
of remuneration policy-

The Bank has framed Compensation and Benefits Policy based on the guidelines contained in the RBI

circular DBOD No. BC.72/29.67.001/2011-12 dated January 13, 2012 which was approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on January 7, 2013. The remuneration of
MD&CEOQ/Wholetime Directors is in accordance with the above mentioned circular and shall be
reviewed basis RBI guidelines issued from time to time and approved by N&RC before obtaining
Regulatory approvals.

The compensation philosophy of the Bank is aligned to the organizational values aimed at encouraging
Professional Entrepreneurship and reinforcing a strong culture promoting meritocracy, performance,
potential and prudent risk taking.

The Bank’s Remuneration policy is to position its pay structure competitively in relation to the market
to be able to attract and retain critical talent. The compensation strategy clearly endeavors to
differentiate performance significantly and link the same with quality and quantum of rewards. The
Bank also strives to create long term wealth creation opportunities through stock option schemes.

Human Capital Management shall review the policy annually or as required, based on changes in
statutory, regulatory requirements and industry practices pertaining to Compensation and Benefits.

b Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration
processes. It should include the nature and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks

e broad factors taken into account for the Annual Review /revision of Fixed Compensation (TCC) &
é{formance Bonus are:

Individual performance based on the Annual Performance Review (APR) process of it
Bank.
Business Unit performance in terms of financial outcomes, productivity, etc.
Consideration of all types of risk factors and shall be symmetrical with rlsk o
well as sensitive to the time horizon of risk.
4. Profitability of the Bank. e
5. Industry Benchmarking and consideration towards cost of living adjustment/inflation” -
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The Bank subscribes to a ‘Sum-of-Parts” compensation methodology, which is reflective of the
Bank’s commitment and philosophy of creating and sharing value with its employee partners.

The sum-of-parts compensation comprises:

Fixed Compensation
Variable Compensation in the form of Performance Bonus
Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

The Board of Directors of the Bank through its Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&RC)
shall exercise oversight & effective governance over the framing and implementing of the
Compensation policy. Human Capital Management under the guidance of MD & CEO shall
administer the Compensation and Benefits structure in line with Industry practices and statutory
requirements as applicable from time to time.

¢ Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement
period with levels of remuneration and a discussion of the bank's policy and criteria for adjusting deferred
remuneration before vesting and after vesting.

The Bank ensures that the compensation remains adjusted for all types of risk, symmetrical with
risk outcomes as well as sensitive to the time horizon of risk. Further, the compensation in all forms
will be consistent with the risk alignment.

One of the key factors to be considered for the Annual Review /revision of Fixed Compensation
(TCC) & Performance Bonus includes individual performance based on the Annual Performance
Review (APR) process of the Bank. The evaluation on risk management parameters is an integral
part of the Annual Performance Review process, forming part of Key Result Areas of the executives
with suitable weightage. The inputs for assessment on these parameters will be independently
provided by the Risk Management function of the Bank.

For the services pertaining to a given financial year, where variable pay is 50% or more, 40-60% of
the variable pay shall be deferred over minimum period of 3 years. In the event of a negative
contribution, deferred compensation shall be subject to appropriate malus/claw back
arrangements as decided by the Board Remuneration Committee. Guaranteed bonus shall not be a
part of the compensation plan.

The compensation for executives in Risk Control and Compliance functions shall be independent
of the business areas they oversee.

The Bank shall not provide any facility or funds or permit employees to insure or hedge their
compensation structure to offset the risk alignment effects embedded in their compensation
arrangement.

d.  Description of the different forms of variable remuneration (i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and other forms) that the
Bank utilizes and the rationale for using these different forms.

The Bank subscribes to a ‘Sum-of-Parts’ compensation methodology, which is reflective of the
commitment and philosophy of creating and sharing value with the employee partners. The sum-
of-parts compensation for executives comprises:

Fixed Compensation (Total Cost to Company-TCC) - Includes value of perquisites.

Variable compensation in the form of Performance /Deferred Bonus - Variable pay shall be in the
form of Performance Bonus which will be calculated as a percentage of Fixed Pay. The evaluation
on risk management parameters is an integral part of the Annual Performance Review process,
orming part of Key Result Areas of the executives with suitable weightage. The inputs for
ssessment on these parameters will be independently provided by the Risk Management functior
’réf the Bank.
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Employee Stock Options Plans - These are formulated on a mid to long term basis by the Bank in
accordance with SEBI and other Regulatory guidelines. The grant of ESOP shall be under approval
from MD & CEQO, which shall be subsequently ratified by the Board Remuneration Committee.

e.  Quantitative Disclosures on Remuneration for MD & CEO and other risk takers

There were 14 meetings of the N&RC held during the year ended March 31, 2020. The Bank had paid a
remuneration of ¢3.35 million to the members of the N&RC for attending the meetings of the N&RC,,

A ST
S

Sy o
e
Lo

b7

Note:

No of For the Noof | For the No of For the
emplo year employe year eniployee year
yee ended es ended S ended
March 31, March March
2020 31, 2019 31,2018
a| (i) | Number of employees having received a
variable remuneration award during the 10 40.29 5 3535 S 78.50
tinancial year. (refer Note below)
(ii) | Number and total amount of sign-on 1 5.00 - - - -
awards made during the financial year.
(iii | Details of guaranteed bonus, if any, paid - - - - - -
) as joining / sign on bonus
(iv | Details of severance pay, in addition to - - - - - -
) accrued benefits, if any.
b | (i) | Total amount of outstanding deferred
remuneration, split into cash, shares and ;
share-linked instruments and other ! 245 1 4.9 2 1833
forms.(refer Note below )
c Breakdown of amount of remuneration
awards for the financial year to show
fixed and variable, deferred and non-
deferred
Total remuneration award 12 397.45 7 245.2 9 374.33
Of which Fixed Component 12 341.28 7 204.01 8 295.83
Of which Variable Component 10 56.17 4 41.19 8 78.50
Deferred 10 19.67 1 4.90 - -
Paid 10 36.50 4 36.29 8 78.50
d | (i) | Total amount of outstanding deferred
remuneration and reta11'1e.d remuneration 1 245 1 4.90 5 18.33
exposed to ex post explicit and / or
implicit adjustments.(refer Note below )
(ii) | Total amount of reductions during the
financial year due to ex- post explicit i ) 1 15.00 ) i
adjustments. .(refer Note below ) ’
(iti | Total amount of reductions during the
) financial year due to ex- post implicit
adjustments. - - - - - -
(change in variable payout due to change
in Market Conditions) .(refer Note below)

1. Amounts disclosed represent variable pay paid during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 for

Eg risk takers is yet to be determined.
{

Movement in Floating Provisions

AN services rendered by the risk takers during the year March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively. As the bonus
5th Floor, \\\:\\ pool for the year ended March 31, 2020 has not yet been allocated and accordingly, the deferred component for the

2t Compensation for MD & CEO is as approved by the RBI and paid by the Bank to the MD & CEO. Compensation
for other visk takers is as approved by the Bank.
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, 2,995,000 ESOP were issued to 11 risk takers.:
5,150,000 ESOPs to 4 risk taker and FY 2018 previous year 6,50,000 ESOPs to 6 risk taker) /
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The Bank has not created or utilized any floating provisions during the financial year ended March 31, 2020,
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. The floating provision as at March 31, 2020 was ¢ Nil (Previous year: ¢
Nil, FY 2018: ¥ Nil).

18.6.55 Drawdown from Reserves

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank has not drawn down any reserve. (Previous year: ¢
e NIL FY 2018: & Nil).
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

Qualitative Disclosure:

The Bank measures and monitors the LCR in line with the Reserve Bank of India’s circular dated June 09,
2014 and November 28, 2014 on “Basel Il Framework on Liquidity Standards - Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR), Liquidity Risk Monitoring Tools and LCR Disclosure Standards” as amended for “Prudential
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Liquidity Standards” dated March 31, 2015. The LCR guidelines
aims to ensure that a bank maintains an adequate level of unencumbered High Quality Liquid Assets
(HQLAs) that can be converted into cash to meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day time horizon
under a significantly severe liquidity stress scenario. At a minimum, the stock of liquid assets should
enable the bank to survive until day 30 of the stress scenario, by which time it is assumed that appropriate
corrective actions can be taken. Banks are required to maintain High Quality Liquid Assets of a minimum
0f 100% of its Net Cash Outflows.

* The Bank endeavors to meet the LCR requirement on an ongoing basis. The adequacy in the LCR
maintenance remains a conscious strategy of the Bank towards complying with LCR mandate.

* The Board of Directors of the Bank have empowered ALCO (Top Management Executive
Committee) to monitor and strategize the Balance Sheet profile of the Bank. In line with the
business strategy, ALCO forms an Interest Rate/Liquidity view for the bank with the help of the
economic analysis provided by the in-house economic research team of the bank. ALCO of the
Bank channelizes various business segments of the Bank to target good quality asset and liability
profile to meet the Bank’s profitability as well as Liquidity requirements with the help of robust
MIS and Risk Limit architecture of the Bank.

* Funding strategies are formulated by the ALCO of the Bank. The objective of the funding strategy
is to achieve an optimal funding mix which is consistent with prudent liquidity, diversity of
sources and servicing costs. Accordingly, BSMG (Balance Sheet Management Group) of the Bank
estimates daily liquidity requirement of the various business segments and manages the same on
consolidated basis under ALCO guidance. With the help of Liquidity Statement prepared by the
Bank, BSMG evaluates liquidity requirement and takes necessary action. Periodical reports are
also placed before the ALCO for perusal and review.

* The Bank’s HQLA comprises of Excess CRR, Excess SLR, eligible foreign sovereign investments,
Marginal Standing Facility (MSF) and Facility to Avail Liquidity for Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(FALLCR) as permitted under prudential guidance and eligible Level 2 investments. The Bank has
a very limited exposure to liquidity risk on account of its Derivatives portfolio. Further, the Bank
believes that all inflows and outflows which might have a material impact under the liquidity
stress scenario have been considered for the purpose of LCR. Further, SLR investments as well as
Corporate Bond portfolio of the Bank considered for HQLA is also well diversified across various
instruments and Liquid Asset Type Mix and should provide the Bank with adequate and timely
liquidity.

* The daily average LCR for quarter ending March 31, 2020 is 40.0% which is below the prudential
requirement. The LCR for the Bank had fallen below the regulatory limits on account of payment
/prepayment of deposits and borrowings on account of various internal and external events
including moratorium, multi notch rating downgrades, aftermath of cooperative bank failure etc.

* Accordingly, the Bank utilized the stock of HQLA to meet the commitments on account of these
liabilities resulting in LCR dropping below the prudential limit.

* _ The bank endeavors to restore the LCR on an urgent basis and is working towards the same by

gﬂ«n\eung deposits and long term borrowings along with through asset advances at the earliest.
e
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.57 Intra-Group Exposures to Subsidiaries

The Bank has three subsidiary viz. "YES Securities (India) Limited, Yes Asset Management (India) Limited and Yes
Trustee Limited ". Below mentioned are details of Intra-Group Exposure as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018.

(T in million)

Particulars As of March 31, As of March 31,  As of March 31,

2020 2019 2018

Total amount of intra-group exposures 1,375.00 7,500.00 2,150.00

Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 1,375.00 7,500.00 2,150.00

Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the 0.03% 0.15% 0.05%
bank on borrowers / customers (%)

During the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the intra-group exposures were within the
limits specified by RBI.

18.6.58 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awaresness Fund (DEAF)

(¥ in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

o onisatufoned to DEAE. 283 1353 4170
DRAF dung theyenr 2446 2006 555
by DEAT fards e 361 075 :
gla(f;?e%rsglitaon]geEZ; o 53.68 32.83 1353

18.6.59 Investor Education and Protection Fund

The unclaimed dividend amount due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during
the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 has been transferred without any delay.

18.6.60 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of Bank's Customer

The Bank has in place a policy on managing credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposures of its
borrowers. The objective of this policy is to maximize the hedging on foreign currency exposures of borrowers by
reviewing their foreign currency product portfolio and encouraging them to hedge the unhedged portion. In line with
the policy, assessment of unhedged foreign currency exposure is a part of assessment of borrowers and is undertaken
while proposing limits or at the review stage. Additionally, at the time of sanctioning limits for all clients, the Bank
stipulates a limit on the unhedged foreign currency exposure of the client (as a % of total foreign currency exposure
sanctioned by the Bank) after considering factors such as internal rating of the borrower, size, possibility of natural
hedging, sophistication of borrower and maturity of borrower’s financial systems, relative size of unhedged foreign
currency exposure with respect to total borrowings of the client, etc. Further, the Bank reviews the unhedged foreign

_ currency exposure across its portfolio on a periodic basis. The Bank also maintains incremental provision and capital

tngards the unhedged foreign currency exposures of its borrowers in line with the extant RBI guidelines.

.has maintained provision of X 777.93 million (previous year of T 537.52 million and FY 20183 5 4

s Loandna (;;i\gional capital of ¥ 2,304.16 million (previous year of T 1,297.78 million and FY 2018 ¥ 1,710

u E,pjfj Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of its borrowers as at March 31, 2020.
2




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.61

The Bank has reported 75 cases of fraud in the financial year ended March 31, 2020
(Previous Year: 107 cases amounting to X 1,939.69 million and FY 2018
has expensed off/ provided for the expected loss

Provisioning pertaining to Fraud Accounts

amounting to ¥ 65,931.87 million
91 cases amounting to % 9.51 million). The Bank
arising from these frauds and does not have any unamortized

provision.
18.6.62 Disclosure of complaints
A. Customer Complaints
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i)  No. of Complaints pending at the 3971 2,617
beginning of the year ! 2,681
i)  No. of Complaints received during the 84,580
year 111,764 110,301
iii)  No. of Complaints redressed during the 112,442 84,516
year ’ 109,711
iv)  No. of Complaints pending at the end of 2 681
2,593 . .
the year 3,271
Auditors have relied upon the information presented by management as above.
B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i) No. of unimplemented Awards at the Nil Nil Nil
beginning of the year
ii) No. of Awards passed by the Banking Nil Nil Nil
Ombudsman during the year
iti)  No. of Awards implemented during the year Nil Nil Nil
iv)  No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of Nil Nil Nil
the year

The above is based on the information available with the Bank which has been relied upon by the auditors.

18.6.63 Dues to Micro and Sinall Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from October 2, 2006,
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been ¥ 655.70
million (previous year ¥ 437.40 million) worth bills which were paid with delays to micro and small enterprises. There
have been ¥ 19.72 million worth bills remained unpaid as at March 31, 2020. There have been no demand of interest on
these payments. The above is based on the information available with the Bank which has been relied upon by the
auditors.

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from October 2, 2006,
—gertain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been no

P &rdﬁ@}t‘e cases of interest payments for FY 2018 due to delays in such payments to Micro, Small and Medjum
/N/QA L Ty A RS
D enterpd]
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.64 Securitization Transactions

The Bank has not done any securitization transactions during the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018. The Bank has assigned retail loans amounting to ¥ 27,511.49 million (90% of portfolio) during the

financial year ended March 31, 2020.

18.6.65 Letter of comfort

The Bank has not issued any letter of comfort which is not recorded as contingent liability during the year ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

18.6.66 Software Capitalized under Fixed Assets

The Bank has capitalized software under Fixed Asset amounting to ¥ 951.56 million, T 1,578.12 million and ¥1,418.30
million during the financial year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively.

F ol 1~
(\ i uul]uuu)

Particulars As at March As at March 31, As at March 31,
31,2020 2019 2018
At cost at March 31st of preceding year 5,296.77 3,722.63 2,488.26
Additions during the year 951.56 1,578.12 1,418.30
Deductions during the year - (3.99) (183.93)
Depreciation to date (4,148.74) (2,974.02) (1,939.86)
Net block 2,099.59 2,322.74 1,782.77
18.6.67 Provision for Long Term contracts

The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for
material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and recorded adequate provision as required
under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including
derivative contracts) in the books of account and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the restated financial

statements.

18.6.68 PSLCs sold and purchased during the ended March 31,2020

[ (X in million)
2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

Particulars Purchased Sold Purchased Sold Purchased Sold
PSLC - Agriculture - - - - - -
PSLC - SF/MF 105,000.00 - 96,000.00 - 58,000.00 -
PSLC - Micro ) ) ) } - -
Enterprises

- - 68,000.00 - 12,800.00 -

us,

pound,




Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.69 Disclosure on Complaints-

The Bank became aware in September 2018 through communications from stock exchanges of anonymous
whistleblower complaints alleging irregularities in the Bank’s operations, potential conflict of interest of the founder
and former MD & CEO and allegations of incorrect NPA classification. The Bank conducted an internal enquiry of
these allegations, which was carried out by management and supervised by the Board of Directors. The enquiry
resulted in a report that was reviewed by the Board in November 2018. Based on further inputs and deliberations in
December 2018, the Audit Committee of the Bank engaged an external firm to independently examine the matter. In
April 2019, the Bank had received the phase 1 report from the external firm and based on further review/
deliberations had directed a phase 2 investigation from the said firm. Further, during the quarter ended December 31,
2019, the Bank received forensic reports on certain borrower groups commissioned by other consortium bankers,
which gave more information regarding the above mentioned allegations. The Bank at the direction of its Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) obtained an independent legal opinion with respect to these matters. In
February 2020, the Bank has received the final phase 2 report from the said external firm. Meanwhile, in March 2020,
the Enforcement Directorate has launched an investigation into some aspects of transactions of the founder and former
MD & CEO and alleged links with certain borrower groups. The ED is investigating allegations of money laundering,
fraud and nexus between the founder and former MD & CEO and certain loan transactions. The Bank is in the process
of evaluating all of the above reports and concluding if any of the findings have a material impact on financial
statements/ processes and require further investigation. The Bank has taken this report to the newly constituted Audit
Committee and Board and will progress further action basis the guidance and recommendations.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Bank had received various whistleblower complaints against the Banks
management, former MD & CEO and certain members of the Board of Directors prior to being superseded by RBI. The
NRC, basis investigations conducted by the management has, post its review, concluded that they have no material
impact on financial statements.

In January 2020, the then Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank highlighted certain concerns around

corporate governance and other operational matters at the Bank. The then Board decided to get this investigated by an

independent external firm. A preliminary report has been received by the Board. While most of the allegations are

unsubstantlated the Board has requested the external firm for detailed recommendations highlighting areas where
0T, OFpC SEategovernance can be further strengthened.
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

18.6.70 Description of contingent liabilities

Sr. No. Contingent Liabilities Brief
1. Claims against the Bank not The Bank is a party to various legal and tax proceedings in the normal
acknowledged as debts course of business. The Bank does not expect the outcome of these

proceedings to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial
conditions, results of operations or cash flows.

2. Liability on account of forward ~ The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, currency options,
exchange and derivative forward rate agreements, currency swaps and interest rate swaps with
contracts. interbank participants and customers. Forward exchange contracts are

commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a future date at the
contracted rate. Currency swaps are commitments to exchange cash
flows by way of interest/principal in one currency against another,
based on predetermined rates. Interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash flows. The notional
amounts of financial instruments of such foreign exchange contracts
and derivatives provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s exposure to credit
or price risks. The derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or
unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market rates or
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favorable or unfavorable and, thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabiliies can fluctuate

significantly.

3. Guarantees given on behalf of As a part of its commercial banking activities the Bank issues
constituents, documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of its customers.
acceptances, endorsements and Documentary credits such as letters of credit enhance the credit
other obligations standing of the customers of the Bank. Guarantees generally represent

irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event of
the customer failing to fulfill its financial or performance obligations.

4, Other items for which the Bank Purchase of securities pending settlement, capital commitments,
is contingently liable amount deposited with RBI under Depositor Education =~ Awareness
Fund (DEAF), bill re-discounting, Foreign Exchange Contracts (Tom &
Spot)
5 PF Liability In February 2019, the honorable Supreme Court of India in its

judgement clarified that certain special allowances should be
considered to measure obligations under Employees' Provident Funds
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the PF Act). The Bank has been
legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the
application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider
there is any probable obligations for past periods. Due to imperative
challenges, the Bank has not disclosed contingent liability amount for
. past liability.

L .\/"yi‘\g@efer Schedule 12 for amounts relating to contingent linbility

5 Flogr, \_,Q;i\‘
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Restated Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Prior period comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year classification.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

AT

Venkataramanan Vishwanath
Partner

Membership No: 113156

Mumbeai
July 03, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
YES BANK Limited
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Managing Director & CEO
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(DIN: 07562475)
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